
 
BANK OF ASTANA 

1 
 

2017 JSC “ASTANA BANKI” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 BANK OF ASTANA  

“BANK OF ASTANA” JSC ANNUAL REPORT 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Almaty, 2018 

https://www.bankastana.kz/en/
https://www.bankastana.kz/en/


 
BANK OF ASTANA 

2 
 

2017 JSC “ASTANA BANKI” 

Contents 
 

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD OF "BANK OF ASTANA" JSC 3 

HISTORY AND BRIEF INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK 5 

BANK SHAREHOLDERS 6 

THE CORE VALUES OF OUR BANK 6 

DESCRIPTION OF THE CURRENT PRODUCT LINE 7 

THE MOST IMPORTANT EVENTS IN THE LIFE OF THE BANK IN 2017: 8 

ADVERTISING AND PR POLICY 12 

IT ARCHITECTURE AND STRATEGY OF THE BANK 13 

OPERATING ACTIVITY 14 

FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC INDICATORS 24 

RISK MANAGEMENT 29 

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 34 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 35 

INFORMATION ABOUT DIVIDENDS 44 

CONTACT INFORMATION 46 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2017 47 

 

   

https://www.bankastana.kz/en/


 
BANK OF ASTANA 

3 
 

2017 JSC “ASTANA BANKI” 

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD OF "BANK OF 

ASTANA" JSC 

Dear friends, 

I would like to express my sincere gratitude for 
your support and attention that you have been giving to 
the Bank of Astana all this time. It should be noted that 
last 2017 has become fruitful and rich in events for the 
Bank. The Bank of Astana has consolidated its position as 
a card leader in the Kazakhstan market, gradually 
introduced innovations in customer service, improved the 
product line, conducted successful IPO (initial public 
offering) on the Kazakhstan Stock Exchange (KASE) and 
SPO (secondary public offering) on the Moscow stock 
exchange (MOEX). In the same year, the influential world 
publication Global Finance presented the Bank of Astana 
the award “Best Digital Bank of Kazakhstan”. 

Over the past two years, the Bank of Astana has 
been a trendsetter in the introduction of innovative 
services and products to the Kazakhstan market, which 
include personal card delivery, online card order, mobile 
office Light-office, online deposit opening, development 
of a platform for children's cards with the addition of 
educational materials. One of the successful innovative implementations was the launch of mobile 
customer service in the Bank branches - Light-office, where the entire service is carried out on a tablet. 
The cash transactions, transfer operations, opening of accounts and many other things depending on 
the needs of the client are carried out with its help. This service has received many positive responses 
from customers, as its implementation has reduced the service time twice.  

The Bank continues to pay great attention to cooperation with recognized international leaders 
such as Warner Bros., Wargaming, Rovio Studio. Thanks to the success of card collaborations, the global 
contract with the legendary Warner Bros. film studio was extended for two years.  

In 2017, there were also achievements on the social front. In March, a socially oriented project 
in support of women's entrepreneurship "Pink collars" was launched, which is directly related to 
women's cards of the Bank of Astana. Thus, when carrying out non-cash payment for goods and 
services from a women's payment card, the Bank sent 0.7% of the amount spent by the customer from 
its own funds to support and develop women's entrepreneurship in the country. As a result, the 
customer making purchases contributed to the development of women's business and received 
cashback in the usual size. As a result of this project, six women's business conferences were held in 
Kazakhstan, covering more than 600 women who want to become businesswomen or those who have 
already become. 

We believe that digitalization is the only correct vector of development, which was determined 
a few years ago. The Bank continues to strictly adhere to the policy of innovation, customer focus and 
financial stability. The following indicators serve as proof: growth of net profit, availability of sufficient 
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capitalization and liquidity, cooperation with the public and quasi-public sector, and high support from 
the shareholders. We continue to develop our product range, improve services and ease of use of 
Mobile and Internet banking. 
 

The year 2017 has shown that thanks to the strategy and implementation of the tasks, as well 

as a cohesive teamwork, the Bank of Astana has implemented bold projects, improved service and 

products for the benefit of the customer. I would like to emphasize that the support and faith of 

customers, partners and shareholders played an invaluable role in the success of the Bank of Astana. 

 

With respect,  

 

Chairman of the Management Board  

of "Bank of Astana» JSC 

Iskender Mailibayev 

 

June, 2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.bankastana.kz/en/


 
BANK OF ASTANA 

5 
 

2017 JSC “ASTANA BANKI” 

HISTORY AND BRIEF INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK 

 

 

 "Bank of Astana" JSC (hereinafter – the 

Bank) was previously a 100% subsidiary of "Astana 

Finance" JSC. Currently, the major shareholder of 

the Bank is Tokhtarov O.T. (52.39%).  

 The Bank is registered as a legal entity on 

26.05.2008 - certificate of state re-registration No. 

5052-1900-JSC. Legal address: 22 Koktem-2 micro 

district, Bostandyk district, Almaty, 050040, 

Republic of Kazakhstan. License to carry out banking 

and other transactions No.1.1.257 dated August 24, 

2011.  

The Bank has been operating since 2008, 

and since the beginning of 2014 under the new 

trademark "Bank of Astana".  

 Inspired by the global trends of banking 

business and service technologies, in the spring of 

2014 we decided to bring to the market of 

Kazakhstan - a Bank that will be simple, clear and 

convenient. The Bank offers a full range of banking 

services to both private and business customers. 

From 01.01.2009, the Bank is a member of 

the Association of legal entities "Association of 

financiers of Kazakhstan" (certificate Series A 

No.268). 

The Bank has been carrying out financial 

activities since August 07, 2008 and is newly 

established. 

 We serve the customers in 8 regions of 

Kazakhstan – Almaty, Astana, Atyrau, Aktau and 

Karaganda, Shymkent, Ust-Kamenogorsk, Pavlodar. 

In the medium term, the Bank plans to significantly 

increase the regional network in major regional 

centers and cities of industrial importance of the 

Republic.  

 We have attracted the best specialists from 

around the world, loaded them into our financial 

laboratory and created a new generation Bank. 
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BANK SHAREHOLDERS 

 

 The actual composition of  
Bank of Astana shareholders:  

 
Olzhas Tokhtarov - 52.39%.  

Minority shareholders – 47.61% 

As part of the planned development of the Bank in accordance 

with the new business strategy for 2017, shareholders increased 

the authorized capital of the Bank by 7.3 billion tenge, which gave 

a new impetus to the Bank's activities. 

 

 

THE CORE VALUES OF OUR BANK  

 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

Our mission To exceed customer expectations by providing the highest quality financial 

service. 

 

Our vision To become a leader in the field of service, quality and innovation, and take 

a leading position in the factoring market. 

 

Financial performance According to the financial statements for 2017, audited by BDO Kazakhstan 

LLP, the assets of the Bank of Astana amounted to 339.7 billion tenge, 

shareholders' equity — 48.4 billion tenge, loan portfolio — 169.9 billion 

tenge, with the level of obligations – 291.3 billion tenge. 

 

Ratings The Bank's creditworthiness is confirmed by the international rating Agency 

Standard & Poor's in the form of assignment of long-term and short-term 

credit rating of the counterparty at the level of "D" 

 

CLIENT FOCUS 

PROFESSIONALISM TRANSPARENCY INNOVATIVENESS 

AMBITIOUSNESS          QUALITY SERVICE 

https://www.bankastana.kz/en/
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DESCRIPTION OF THE CURRENT PRODUCT LINE 

The Bank's priority areas are the development of client-oriented business areas - corporate business, 
small and medium-sized businesses, retail business and Bank cards, as well as the successful implementation of 
state programs. 

 
The main client segment of the Bank is legal entities. In this regard, the Bank has the following product 

line for legal entities: 
 

 settlement and cash services; 

 opening and maintainance of accounts; 

 cash transactions; 

 bank transfer; 

 exchange and foreign currency transactions; 

 quick settlements; 

 deposit acceptance; 

 credit activities; 

 Bank and tender guarantees; 

 guarantee facility; 

 Internet banking for legal entities; 

 Safe Deposit Box rental. 
 

In this regard, the following products currently represent the product line of the Bank for individuals: 
 

 settlement and cash services; 

 opening of accounts; 

 cash transactions; 

 exchange and foreign currency transactions; 

 deposit acceptance; 

 credit activities;  

 money transfer system; 

 quick settlements; 

 utility service payments; 

 payment cards; 

 Internet banking for individuals; 

 mobile banking; 

 Safe Deposit Box rental. 

 Service at POS terminals/ ATMs of the Bank
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THE MOST IMPORTANT EVENTS IN THE 

LIFE OF THE BANK IN 2017: 

 The first half of 2017, the Bank increased its 
share capital by 5,300,000 thousand tenge 
through a placement of ordinary shares of 
the Bank at the IPO to the unlimited circle of 
investors at "Kazakhstan stock exchange" 
JSC. It ncreased in the network of ATMs. 

 The second half of 2017, the Bank placed its 
shares on the SPO for a second time to the 
unlimited number of investors at the MSE 
(Moscow stock exchange) in the amount of 
2,881,835 at the price of 215 rubles for each 
share. Completion of all certification works 
and obtaining approval from the IPS to bring 
its own acquiring (POS/ATM) into 
commercial operation. 

Branch network of the Bank in 2017  

 The branch network of the Bank consists of 
8 branches which are represented in the 
following regions of Kazakhstan (Almaty, 
Astana, Karaganda, Pavlodar, Ust-
Kamenogorsk, Aktau, Atyrau, Shymkent)                                                                                                                                        

 

 In 2017 opened operating offices in 6 
Departments of the State-owned 
Corporation "Government for citizens" NJSC 
in Astana and Almaty, where payments to 

the budget, payment for the medical 
examination etc. are accepted. 

 
 

Bank's branch network 

Name  2017 
 

2018 (plan) 

Branches  8  9  

Departments  17  19 (+2) 

 

 

1. WE ARE TRUSTED BY: 

- more than 640,000 customers; 

- about 2,500 partners. 

2. We are in the first place in the number of 

contactless cards issued throughout Kazakhstan. 

3. We are in the first place to attract co-branded 

cards throughout Kazakhstan. 

4. We are in the 4th place among the issuers of 

Master Card payment cards throughout 

Kazakhstan. 

5. Master Card certification in terms of trade and 

Ecom-acquiring has been completed. 

6. The security audits are fulfilled to store and 

protect PIN Security and PCI DSS card data.   

7. The function of cash Deposit to the cards of the 

Bank of Astana has been launched at ATMs. 

8. Delivery of cards is carried out into the hands of 

the client at the specified address. 

9. E-PIN project was launched, i.e. self-installation 

of PIN-code by the client, issue of cards without 

PIN envelopes 

10. The project on the International safety 

standard - 3D Secure was launched. 

 

TARGET REGIONS 

Operations areas Target regions 

Non-target regions 
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Modernization and development of new products of thrift and dummy accounts for business 

customers: 

 "Current account with daily accrual of interest"  

 "Urgent";  

 "Corporate"; 

 "Labour force"; 

 "Subsoil use" 

Modernization and development of new products for retail customers: 

 "Astana" Deposit; 

 "Children" Deposit 

 Wargaming co-branded card 

 Al Saqr Finance co-branded card 

 "Social card" 

 "Forbes Card 

These deposits are designed for all segments and categories of depositors and provide for different 

conditions of savings. 

The Bank of Astana also continues to provide in full the following services to the population: 

 Opening and maintenance of accounts; 

 Cash transactions; 

 Exchange operations; 

 Cash remittance; 

 Rental of Safe Deposit boxes; 

 Payment to the budget; 

 Acceptance of utility payments. 

Active and successful participation in the state programs, including: 

 Financing program of SMBs at the expense of pension assets of "Single Pension Savings Fund" 
JSC; 

 Regional financing program of small and medium-sized businesses of Mangystau region; 

 Regional financing program of small and medium-sized businesses of Almaty region; 

 Regional financing program of small and medium-sized businesses of Almaty; 

 Program of conditional placement of funds in the second-tier banks for the subsequent 
financing of franchising projects of small and medium-sized businesses;  

 Financing program of small and medium-sized businesses for the purpose of replenishment of 
working capital through "Development Bank of Kazakhstan" JSC; 

 Annual support program of entities of agro-industrial complex for carrying out spring-field, 
harvesting works according to the budget program Crediting of National Management Holding 
"KazAgro" JSC for carrying out actions to support the entities of agro-industrial complex"; 

 Refinancing program of housing mortgage borrowings/mortgage borrowings. 

https://www.bankastana.kz/en/
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The mechanisms and procedures for the provision of existing products for corporate, small and 

medium-sized businesses have been improved: 

 credit operations; 

 documentary transactions; 

 granting of loans; 

 overdraft services; 

 provision of conditional liabilities. 

The mechanisms and procedures for the provision of existing products for lending to individuals for the 

purchase of goods and/or services of the Bank's partners in installments have been improved. 

The product line presented in the Bank, in fact, covers the necessary needs of customers, but in the 

case of the introduction of new products in the world practice, they will be implemented in the Bank 

after appropriate adaptation and binding to local conditions. 

A concept for the development of a partner network within the loyalty Program of the Bank of Astana 

has been developed.  

 Active measures were taken to attract companies providing services for the Premium segment. 
During 2017, a partnership agreement was concluded with 2,200 companies providing services 
in various industries in all regions where the Bank's regional network is present; 

 The period of promotional events has been extended with major international companies Uber, 
foodpanda, Lamoda. 

Social projects with "state-owned corporation "government for citizens" NJSC 

"Bank of Astana" JSC continues to actively cooperate with State-owned Corporation "Government for 

citizens" NJSC on a number of important projects. The partnership of the financial organization and the 

state enterprise was begun in the middle of last year and has already resulted in a whole program of 

long-term cooperation and system assistance to citizens of Kazakhstan. 

Thus, one of the most important projects launched in cooperation with "State-owned Corporation 

"Government for citizens" NJSC is the payment co-branded cards project, including for the accrual of 

social benefits, which include pension payments and benefits in connection with the birth of a child. 

By the way, the co-branded cards project is timely and relevant, as the card products of the Bank of 

Astana in the market are one of the most profitable and have a number of advantages. One of them is 

multi-currency, as the cards can store up to five currencies: tenge (main currency), US dollar, Euro, 

Russian ruble and British pound. 

Co-branded cards can be ordered on the territory of all PSC (Public Service Center) in Almaty and 

Astana, after the release the card will be delivered free of charge to the client's hands at home or in 

the office. The withdrawal of cash from the social cards in any ATMs of all banks in the territory of the 

Republic of Kazakhstan is free of charge. Astana Bank cards are universal; they can be used all over the 

world. 
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The opening of counters in the public service centers of Almaty and Astana 

One of the first results of cooperation between financial institution and government agencies was the 

opening of Bank of Astana mobile counter and cash desk in the territory of PSC in Medeu district of 

Almaty, where you can pay all types of payments to the budget (tax, state duty), services of PSC, 

utilities, fines, etc. In addition, here, anyone, both physical and legal entity can obtain information on 

banking products and apply for SME lending, and issue debit, credit payment card with free delivery. 

The Bank of Astana understands how important to help entrepreneurs, especially at the beginning of 

their way, so it was decided to open such a mobile counter in the PSC. Over the past months, the 

visitors of Medeu PSC have already appreciated all the benefits of banking services from the Bank of 

Astana. 

In December, a branch was opened in a specialized PSC in Maylin street in Almaty, where the cash 

desks of the Bank of Astana operate, where you can pay the fines, medical examination, make 

payments to the budget (tax, state duty), for registration and VIP-numbers, make a recalculation of 

cash, also check the banknotes for authenticity and get other services. In the near future, it is planned 

to place here in a job the specialists who will carry out all types of transfers, opening and maintaining 

deposits and Bank accounts, and will also accept applications for the issue of payment cards. 

In November and December, the branches of "PSC" were opened in Saryarka and Yessil districts of 

Astana, where the customers can pay all payments to the budget, center services, fines and utilities. 

The joint projects with public service centers is important for the Bank in the first place due to the fact 

that the services are available to all. 

Public service in the PSCs in Almaty and Astana is a pilot project. After its successful implementation in 

these cities, it is planned to open such offices in other regions of Kazakhstan. 

Digital student service center (DSSC) in KazNPU named after Abai 

In November last year the Digital student service center (DSSC) is opened at the University of Kazakh 

National Pedagogical University (former ASU) named after Abay where the students and their parents 

can get the full range of services, from registration for academic disciplines, obtaining academic 

certificates, duplicate diplomas and to military registration. There are also such structural units as: 

student's office, career center, sector of international academic mobility, passport office, accounting 

and reporting department, military mobilization department. 

In the Center, an employee of the Bank of Astana is engaged in the provision of credit payment cards 

that can be used to pay for studies. They are convenient, especially in cases when there is a delay in 

payment of funds, and it is necessary to pay for studies urgently. The loan is issued for a period of up 

to 72 months, with a grace period for the accrual of interest for the use of the loan is 55 days, the 

maximum loan amount reaches 3 million tenge. The parents of students with the help of credit card, 

convenient mobile application and available Internet banking have the opportunity to pay for their 

studies from remote regions of Kazakhstan. 

As the Bank of Astana is an innovative financial institution, it considers its duty to cooperate on such 

projects as the opening of the Student Center (DSSC) aimed at improving the conditions for Kazakh 

youth. 

https://www.bankastana.kz/en/
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ADVERTISING AND PR POLICY 

 

As part of the overall business strategy of the Bank, a marketing strategy for 2017 was developed, in 

which the previously identified lines of development were continued:  

1. The development of two flagship products of the Bank was continued: 
2. payment cards,  
3. mobile banking; 

4. The work with the main target audience of the Bank was continued: adepts and progressives 
(young people, urban residents aged 25-35 years, with an income of 150,000 tenge, users of 
mobile applications, smartphones).  

During 2017, through marketing campaigns, the positions of the Bank of Astana as a card Bank were 

fixed. The two-year contract with Warner Bros. Studio was extended on the release of a limited edition 

card series Wonder Woman, which was a continuation of the successful release of cards with original 

images of the Batman, the Superman, the Joker. 

In 2017, even more attention was paid to the formation and strengthening of the positive image and 

reputation of the Bank. On a regular basis, such publications as Forbes, Kursiv and Capital publish 

information materials, interviews with the top management of the Bank of Astana. In addition, the 

Bank participates in independent reviews and ratings, and actively works with the mass media 

organizations.         

Positioning of the Bank of Astana as a digital and innovative Bank of Kazakhstan was continued in 

accordance with the Bank's business strategy for 2014-2018. 

Thanks to the Bank's marketing strategy for 2017, the card projects were implemented, the 

international agreements were signed, sports and cultural initiatives related to the social responsibility 

of the Bank of Astana were supported. In addition, the Bank of Astana took part in the programme 

presentation of the Leader of the nation N. A. Nazarbayev "Rouhani Zhangyru" (spiritual renewal) in 

the headquarters of UNESCO in Paris, where the Bank has sponsored the children's exhibit. 

At the heart of the marketing strategy is a creative approach to solving many business problems. 

The correctness of the strategy of the Bank of Astana has been confirmed by the international 

recognition of the authoritative publication Global Finance. The Bank was awarded the "Best digital 

Bank of Kazakhstan". The acts of charity include: the opening of street sports grounds in Almaty, 

holding women's conferences in six cities of Kazakhstan, support of Kazakhstan journalism through the 

Kazakhstan Media Alliance. 
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IT ARCHITECTURE AND STRATEGY OF THE BANK 

 
During 2017, the following works were carried out: 

1. ABS BIScuit (automated bank system) 
a. The development of integration services, on the basis of SOAP – BIScuit technology- it 

is integrated with mini repository (to ensure data uploading to the regulatory reporting, 
First Loan Office /State Loan Office, Kazakhstan Deposit Insurance Fund), GCentre 
system (data uploading to create marketing campaigns and Soft Collection), the 
terminal network (acceptance of payments, replenishment of accounts, repayment of 
loans), the system of business process management (starting the operational 
processes), Internet banking for legal entities and individuals, card system. 

b. New products on deposits and loans have been introduced. 
2. Upgrading the current infrastructure  

a. The infrastructure are improved for the new systems of the Bank: 
I. QP terminal processing; 
II. Corporate data warehouse. 

3. SpringDoc business processes management system is modernized.   
4. The process of lending without collateral loans of individuals is modernized.  

a. versions of Internet banking for legal entities. 
b. Realization of an opportunity to register the sole proprietorship in IB for legal entities in 

SpringDoc.   
5. Development of the Bank's card system-WAY4: 
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OPERATING ACTIVITY 

 Market analysis 

In 2017, in the framework of improving the stability of the banking system, the national Bank 
launched a Program to improve the financial stability of the banking sector. The banks ' participation 
in the recovery program is based on the principles of joint participation of shareholders in the 
recapitalization and state aid recovery. After the successful implementation of anti-crisis measures, we 
move to strengthen the supervision by the National Bank. The goal of risk-based supervision is to 
stimulate banks' highly prudent policies. Corresponding amendments to the legislation have already 
been developed by the National Bank.  

The banking sector is represented by 32 second-tier banks, of which 14 banks with foreign 
participation, including 12 subsidiary banks, the share of assets in five Banks is 56.1%.  The life cycle of 
banking products is quite large, because products do not "die", but are modified and "wrapped" in a 
new shell. The outlook for the banking industry as a whole is optimistic.  

Three key factors will influence on the sales opportunities causing the changes of the 
macroeconomic scale and requiring from the market participants to develop the appropriate strategy: 
regulatory requirements, information technology and demographic changes. 

There is a decrease in the deposit rate by reducing the annual effective rate through the 
Kazakhstan Deposit Insurance Fund; this decrease will stimulate lending in the market. 

Competitor analysis 

The banking system as a whole can be divided into 4 categories of banks: large banks (Kazkom, 

Halyk Bank, Tsesna Bank, Center Credit Bank), medium banks (Kaspi Bank, ATF Bank, Forte Bank, 

Eurasian Bank, Bank RBK, Zhilstroysberbank of Kazakhstan, Delta Bank, Nurbank, Qazaq Banki), 

subsidiaries of large foreign banks (bank subsidiary of  "Sberbank of Russia" JSC, Alfa-Bank, VTB, 

HomeCredit Bank), small and rapidly growing private banks (AsiaCredit Bank, Bank RBK, Kazinvestbank, 

Capital Bank Kazakhstan).  

In the short term, the Bank's competitors are the fourth category banks. Banks of this category 

have a short history (from 5 to 7 years), demonstrate rapid and aggressive growth of assets (about 50-

70%), have a popular product line. This category of banks is mainly focused on corporate and SME 

sector and has a small share of retail business. Bank funding is mainly carried out by deposits of legal 

entities (about 80%). The strengths of banks in this category are an individual approach to customers, 

rapid growth due to a small base, new positioning as innovative banks, obtaining credit ratings. At the 

same time, there are significant drawbacks: balance sheet restrictions on lending to large customers, 

short and expensive funding, a small range of products. The Bank can be differentiated from this 

category of banks by developing a retail Bank and offering a high level and quality of service. 

In the long term (10 years), the Bank sees competitors among medium-sized banks. This 

category of banks is focused on servicing the retail segment. Funding is carried out from retail deposits 

(42%). The strengths of this category of banks are high efficiency of processes, customer experience, a 

wide range of simple and understandable products, focus on card products, high level of cross-sales, a 

good level of risk management, active investments in marketing, development of innovative sales 

https://www.bankastana.kz/en/
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channels. Weak points are lack of focus on corporate and SME segments, high costs for maintaining a 

wide network of branches and departments, low quality and speed of service. The Bank can be 

differentiated within this category from its competitors by offering a range of innovative products with 

developed sales channels, as well as offering a high and fast level of service. 

 
The Bank Products  

 
 Legal entities deposits 
 
 The range of term deposits for business clients is represented by the following deposits: 

 “Urgent”; 

 “Corporate”; 

 “Labor force”; 

 “Subsoil use”; 

 “Safe deposit box”. 

 
 The main advantages of legal entities deposits are: 

 favorable interest rates; 

 attractive terms of placing; 

 possibility of deposit replenishment; 

 possibility of partial withdrawal of the deposit amount with the preservation of the 
remuneration; 

 flexible conditions for early termination of the Deposit agreement. 

 In 2017, the Bank Updated Tariff packages for comprehensive banking services.  
 In order to increase the economic attractiveness of the Bank for foreign banks that provide 
services for settlement and transfer operations of the Bank in foreign currencies, by increasing the 
turnover of SWIFT transfers, the Bank launched a special Offer (promotion) for SWIFT transfers. 
 
 The preferential tariffs are established in the promotion period on SWIFT transfers: 

 Transfer in the amount up to US $ 10,000 - US $ 25 per transfer; 

 Transfer in the amount from US $ 10,001 to US $200,000 - US $ 30 per transfer;  

 Transfer in the amount of more than US $ 200,000 - US $ 60 per transfer.   

 
 Deposits of individual. VIP service. Exchange rate difference compensation. Safe Deposit box 
rental. 
 
  In 2017, the Bank provided the following types of deposits and conditional deposit: 

 "Astana" deposit; 

 "Children" deposit;  

 "Safe deposit boxes" 

https://www.bankastana.kz/en/
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 These deposits are calculated and provide for different conditions of savings. The advantages 

of being with the Bank of Astana: 

 High yield: the maximum rates; 

 Super multicurrency: 1 Deposit - 4 currencies, with addition to the deposit in any currency; 

 Opening an account with a zero balance. 

 In order to increase the Deposit portfolio for individuals, the Bank launched the Offers to 

encourage depositors. The deposits opened in the period of the Offer through the system of Internet 

banking for individuals provide: 

 promotional cashback increased to 10% to the Bank’s card;  

 5 MCI as a gift to the account opened with the Bank (with the retention of the personal 
income tax); 

 the provision of service "Safe Deposit box rental" as a gift for a period of 3 months.   

 

 In addition, the work on the organization of comfortable conditions for servicing VIP-clients of 

the VIP-center in Almaty continues. The separate units of managers for VIP-clients service have been 

introduced. 

 To improve the quality of service to customers on settlement and cash transactions, the Bank 

launched the Light-office project.  

 The new format of Light-office service is aimed at improving the quality of service to customers 

on settlement and cash transactions. At the moment, this project is unique in the market of Kazakhstan, 

that is, such remote services are not available from other second-tier banks. The Bank of Astana is not 

the first time becoming a pioneer of services and products in the local market, so many customers have 

taken the idea of Light-office remote offices with delight, because few people like to spend expensive 

time in queues at the Bank's branch. 

 The Light-office project implies a front-office application for servicing individuals and legal 

entities on the Internet banking platform. All customer service is carried out on the tablet. With the 

help of the tablet, the Bank of Astana specialist conducts cash transactions, transfer operations, 

opening accounts, depending on the needs of the customer. This new format allows to save the 

customer's time due to component and quality service, the time of work with each customer is reduced 

by almost two and a half times, also for the convenience of customers in the Bank, the number of 

managers working on settlement and cash operations has been increased twice. Respectively, and 

loyalty is increased. At the same time, the Bank's employee improves the performance by means of 

one-time and operational solution of all issues with the customer.  

The new format also involves maintenance not at the operating desk (counter), but on comfortable 

chairs located in the coffee areas of the Bank, which will allow customers to communicate with 

employees at the same level, create an atmosphere of trust and comfort. In addition, within Light-

office, the employees will train customers to work with self-service devices. 

Light-office Mobile offices are scaled in all branches of the Bank of Astana in Kazakhstan from 01-

January 2018.   
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 In order to increase the economic attractiveness of the Bank for foreign banks that provide 

services for settlement and transfer operations of the Bank in foreign currencies, by increasing the 

turnover of SWIFT transfers, the Bank launched a special Offer for SWIFT transfers. 

 

 The preferential tariffs are established in the promotion period on SWIFT transfers: 

 Transfer in the amount up to US $ 10,000 - US $ 25 per transfer; 

 Transfer in the amount from US $ 10,001 to US $200,000 - US $ 30 per transfer;  

 Transfer in the amount of more than US $ 200,000 - US $ 60 per transfer.    

 
 The automated Safe depository has been launched in branches in Ust-Kamenogorsk and 
Pavlodar. The location of the automated Safe depository in the 24-hour self-service zone (24/7) allows 
customers to use the safe storage service at any time of the day. 
 
 Advantages of automated Safe depository: 

 24-hour access with the possibility to place and withdraw the values at a convenient time 
for you, 24 hours a day, seven days a week 

 self-service system - working with Safe Deposit boxes without Bank employees 

 secure access with plastic magnetic card, PIN-code, fingerprint (if available) and box lock 

 additional identification by scanning a fingerprint of the client 

 a wide variety of boxes of different size 

 possibility to store objects weighing up to 20 kg 

 ease of use 

 convenient location of Safe depository in the Central part of the city 

 
Corporate lending 

 
Corporate lending in the Bank of Astana can attract any effective legal entity. 

The loans are provided for a period of up to 84 months in accordance with the Bank's internal 

requirements in tenge and foreign currency in cash and in the form of contingent liabilities for types of 

collateral defined by the Bank. In general, the issue of the need to provide collateral (security), its 

structure and volume is decided on an individual basis depending on the client's compliance with the 

parameters established by the internal regulations of the Bank. The interest rate is determined on the 

basis of the financial market conditions, as well as individual credit conditions and the client's solvency. 

The amount and composition of the Commission payments are established taking into account the 

lending regime, the characteristics of the credited transaction and other factors. The source of 

repayment of the loan is the cash flow from the current production and financial activities of the 

Customer. 

The Bank of Astana follows the global trends of business financing, adapting the best of them 

for the market of Kazakhstan.  

In 2017, the Bank actively participated in support of state financing programs through the 

"Damu Entrepreneurship Development Fund", "National Managing Holding "KazAgro", "Agrarian 

Credit Corporation". 
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The Bank offers the blank tender guarantees to the entrepreneurs participating in tenders for 

procurement the most frequently. The potential supplier has the right to provide a Bank guarantee as 

a security for the bid to participate in the tender in accordance with the Law of the Republic of 

Kazakhstan "On public procurement", and then to the customer as a guarantee of performance of 

obligations under the contract. The convenience of the process is that the entrepreneur cannot block 

their money, which is necessary in order to participate in the tender, and not to distract them from the 

turnover. It should be noted that in particular, in accordance with the current product conditions, the 

blank tender guarantees are issued for the purpose of participation in the tender for public 

procurement, for the procurement of national holdings, its subsidiaries. 

In addition, I would like to inform you that in early 2017 the Bank summed up the results of the 

launch of the pilot project "Tender guarantees with delivery to the client's office", given the positive 

effect of the pilot project in April 2017, the Bank successfully replicated the project to all regional 

branches. 

Also, special attention will be paid to "cross-sales", which involves increasing customer loyalty 

through the implementation of the comprehensive service in the form of meeting all financial needs 

of customers. 

             

Lending to small and medium-sized businesses 
 

Bank loans for small businesses are one of the effective tools for the development of 

entrepreneurship. Prompt receipt of funds allows the owners of companies to respond quickly to 

changes in the situation. Small business loans is an opportunity to expand the industrial or commercial 

base, introduce innovative technologies, equip new work places, etc. The individual entrepreneur loan 

programs are designed for different needs. 

The Bank launched a unique product "Microbusiness", specially designed for individual 

entrepreneurs, who have long been outside the interests of commercial banks. 

Lending to small businesses, or rather micro businesses, was incorporated into the development 

strategy of the Bank of Astana. Almost the entire 2017 year was spent on automation of processes, 

writing a scoring model, the integration of our systems with different platforms, the implementation 

of tablet solutions from receiving an application to issuing a loan and servicing after receiving a loan. 

The program in pilot mode worked in several regions, meanwhile we observed the quality of the 

portfolio to get the full picture. Only after that we came prepared for the industrial launch of our 

service for the Kazakhstan market.  

Following the chosen strategy for digitalization of processes, the Bank first of all developed a 

system of verification of potential customers, where it is possible to make a preliminary decision within 

two minutes. Then it integrated with the relevant software so that the client could open a current 

account automatically, without going from the credit expert to the operator and back. Also, it 

integrated with the platform for lead generation (generation of potential customers' applications), on 

the basis of which it can manage traffic and purposefully direct it to those regions where there is a 

need for volumes. All processes have been adapted to the tablet solution. In addition, with the online 

credit Committee the Bank built a tracking - monitoring system in real time, which allowed to get the 

first results. 

The advantage of the digital approach is that it is possible to send in a goal-directed manner the 

online traffic of several thousand customers to the regions on demand in the product. That is, now you 

do not need to go to the market and distribute brochures, do not let the "radio room", the Bank 
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manages traffic on the Internet in real time. Many processes have taken place thanks to the Bank's 

strong IT team, which allows to build and integrate these solutions. In the age of digitalization, it is 

really important. 

The individual entrepreneurs (IE) are the customers who have come to the gray zone. The Banks 

develop products for individuals (Express loans, mortgages, car loans, credit cards) and for legal entities 

(lending to small and medium-sized businesses (SMBs) and the corporate sector), but almost no one 

works with IE, and even if they work, then consider small entrepreneurs as individuals, calculating their 

income on wages in the Declaration, or as a legal entity – LLP, where the format and volume of business 

do not fit the product conditions. 

Although in fact, the potential of the market is more than 1 million IE, which remain without 

proper attention of banks, at the mercy of microcredit organizations. In many developed countries, the 

individual entrepreneurs are the basis for the economic well-being of many families and communities. 

When implementing scoring, the Bank made it possible to provide a preliminary solution to the 

customer online to save his/her time and Manager's time. An individual entrepreneur can find out 

whether the loan is approved or not by entering his/her data online (IIN and phone number) without 

visiting the Bank. And if approved, then how much. In other commercial banks, the customers to 

receive a response collect a full package of documents and receive a refusal in the best case after a 

week of waiting.  

In case of a positive decision, the customer can send documents remotely, after which the Bank's 

employees go to his/her address to confirm the business. The lending process is completed by the 

decision of the online Committee, which allows you to get a loan in just 1-2 days. 

At the same time, the Bank of Astana in the medium and long term carries out the 

implementation of state financing programs of SMBs at the expense of funds allocated from 

"Entrepreneurship Development Fund "Damu" JSC, within the allocated funds the development of 

Zhibek-Zholy, Damu-regions III programs are actively underway. The repayments from customers will 

be re-allocated to support the domestic economy, and support will be provided by subsidizing part of 

the interest rates by the state in order to reduce the level of the customer's debt burden. 

 

Retail lending 
 
The development of retail business in the Bank in 2017 is due to the license of the national Bank 

of Kazakhstan to carry out operations related to retail products and services. In 2017, there is a stable 
growth in the portfolio of both deposits for individuals and retail lending.   

Within the framework of retail lending development in the past year, the Bank has carried out 
the following activities: 

 Automation of the stages of credit application - elimination of the human factor - reduction 
of operational risks; 

 procedures on optimization of product lines has been begun 

 making the decisions on standard projects; 

 implementation of measures to optimize processes of postcredit debt service. 
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Payment cards 
  
The Bank began to implement the issue of payment cards, beginning in the fall of 2014. The Bank 

of Astana was the first among Kazakhstan STB in 2015 to offer a service for remote order of payment 

cards and their free express delivery by couriers to the addresses specified by customers in the 

applications. Provision of the most popular banking services with payment cards and via remote 

channels – mobile banking and Internet banking - around the clock and regardless of the location of 

customers is currently the main focus in the retail segment of the Bank of Astana activity. Expanding 

the geography of the Bank's presence through the service provision of remote order and payment cards 

delivery is one of the successive stages in the development of the Bank. 

 

Results for 2017 (year-end)  
 
1. It is issued: 610,468 pcs, including: 

 debit cards: 475,859 pcs.; 
 salaries + employees: 1,109,812 pcs.;  
 credit cards: 24,797 pcs.; 

 
2. Growth for the period (2016): +454,649 pcs. (+292%), including: 

 debit cards: + 376,957pcs. (+381%); 
 salaries + employees: + 641,68 pcs. (+141%);  
 credit cards: +13,524 pcs. (+120%); 

 
3. CIF*: 587,325 pcs.; 
 
4. Closed cards: 23,143 pcs. (4% of all issued cards). 
 
* Cards in Force - the number of all issued and not closed cards 

Issued cards 

Issued cards (cumulatively), thousand pieces 
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The Bank of Astana focuses on increasing loyalty from existing and potential customers and for 
this purpose makes its services more profitable, introduces new bonus programs. In 2017, several 
customer-friendly tools were introduced:  

 Holders of the Bank's payment cards are able to generate their own PIN code using the e-pin 
function. 

TARGET REGIONS 

Operations area Target regions Non-target regions 

Product line improving 

Individual product line offers developing. Launch of 
a unique service for courier delivery of cards 

Launch of the advanced mobile Bank for retail customers. Launch of 
mass scale trendy campaign, according to the results of which the 

Bank is consistently associated with high technologies and mobility 

Launch of processing and card business. Launch of Internet 
banking for retail and corporate clients. The first one for services 

on delivery cards in hand.  

First card 

610,000 cards 

155,415 cards 

29,706 cards 

1,263 cards 

(Fact) 

(Fact) 

(Fact) 

(Fact) 

Staff 

Staff 

Staff 

Staff 

August 2014 
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 Service in the Bank's own POS terminals is implemented. 

During the year, a number of projects have been implemented that will significantly improve 
the level of service and expand the range of services offered: 

 Wargaming co-branded card is launched, allowing the holders receiving in-game currency in 
the game World of Tanks, carrying out non-cash transactions on the cards. 

 The card with a unique Wonder Women design is launched. 

 The first in Kazakhstan "Al Saqr Finance co-branded card" is launched. This is a debit payment 
multi-currency card that complies with the rules and principles of the Sharia. 

 "Social card" project - a product designed to enroll pensions and benefits from the National 
budget with preferential terms of service is launched. 

 "Forbes Card" is launched. This is a debit payment multi-currency card created for successful 
people. The Bank sends part of the money spent by customers to the Journalism Fund. 

 Completion of all certification works and obtaining approval from the IPS to bring their own 
acquiring (POS/ATM) into commercial operation. 

 
The purpose of the Bank is also to provide profitable banking products in combination with 

quality and affordable service to customers.  
According to the new strategy, in the medium term, the Bank of Astana should become a leading 

Kazakhstan Bank offering its customers the expanded remote service opportunities, making maximum 
use of innovative technologies and IT solutions. 
 

Remote service channels. Internet and mobile banking for individuals. 

 

Retail banking is already becoming a digital business thanks to the rapid spread of unlimited 

access and availability of mobile devices. Globally, on average, more than half of customer transactions 

go through online or mobile phone. Most of these operations are conducted in advanced Northern 

markets and in Australia.  

According to the Bain&Company study made last year (the study involved 78 of the largest banks 

in the world), if we add also the use of ATM machines, which are increasingly connected to the Internet, 

now the share of digital transactions has reached 85% in the most advanced countries and this figure 

will reach 95% in the near future. 

But there are still a lot of banks that are only at the beginning of this path. Less than half of 

consumers do not use their smartphones for Internet banking in developing countries, and 30% in 

developed countries.  

In the new strategy, in the medium term, the Bank of Astana should become the first Kazakhstan 

Bank to operate in the 24/7 format, offering its customers the expanded remote service opportunities, 

making maximum use of innovative technological and IT solutions. Based on this positioning, the 

priority target audience - small and medium-sized businesses, individuals with average and above 

average income is the future basis of the Bank's business.  

When creating a mobile application, the Bank's team carefully studied the existing applications 

in Kazakhstan, Russia, got acquainted with analogues in the US and Europe. When the project was 

launched, a fairly wide range of functionality was provided in the web and mobile version, designed 
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for the customers of the Bank of Astana and the customers with accounts in other Banks. The Internet 

banking system with a mobile application for individuals has been launched into combat operation 

since 2015, for six months of development there are already more than 5,000 active users, most of 

them are not holders of salary cards of the Bank of Astana, but successfully use the application. 

Now the Bank of Astana application is available for users of devices on IPhone and Android 

platforms. There is a simple and quick way to register (all you need is an email address and a mobile 

phone number). As part of the execution of the Bank's strategy, the users were asked to make any 

payments in mobile banking 24/7.  

In the mobile application for the user all kinds of intra-Bank transfers are offered, including in 

foreign currency. The foreign currency translation and conversion are made without commissions 

around the clock, including the conversion inside the Deposit. An important addition is that all types of 

payments without commissions and it is 0 tenge. The user using the mobile application can also make 

the purchase of compulsory legal liability insurance with free delivery.  

An integral part of the development strategy is the provision of banking products with delivery 

to the client, eliminating the need to contact the Bank. With the help of our application, the user will 

be able to make an order for the issue of a payment card with delivery "in hand". In the near future, 

services of remote opening of deposits and obtaining retail loans, revolving cards will be available. 

During the year, the following features are planned to be implemented which are currently being 

tested: 

 Interbank transfers in favor of legal entities and individuals, 

 Fast international transfers, 

 Purchase of all types of insurance with delivery to the customer, 

 Complex banking services: remote issuance of payment cards with delivery to the customer, 
opening of deposits and obtaining unsecured loans.  

EDS NVC (electronic digital signature of the National Verification Center) will be used in complex 

services. The emphasis in 2015 will also be on the security of the system, in connection with which a 

project will be launched to introduce the special software used in European banks, without analogues 

in the CIS. 

Internet banking for legal entities 

As part of the mobile development strategy of the Bank of Astana, since mid-2014, the work has 

been actively carried out to develop a new system of remote service for legal entities, which was 

launched in January 2015. The basic principles of building a new system is a wide functionality to meet 

the needs of SMB customers and ease of use. In a relatively short time it was possible to create a 

competitive product. The main differences from similar systems in the market of banking services 

include: 

 On-line system operation; 
o Working with universal EDS NVC, which many customers already use in the work with 

the tax committee of the RK and egov, it eliminates the need to obtain separate 
special keys/devices;  

 Minimum market rates for services in remote channels; 
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 All types of payments, including currency payments; special approach to rates for currency 
transfers; 

 Foreign currency translation /currency conversion; 

 Bids for Bank products from the application; 

 Ease of use due to the "easy" interface; 

 Integration with accounting systems; 

 Control over subsidiaries (holding structure). The owner of several companies has the 
opportunity to work with the accounts of each of them in the same system, also it is 
implemented different levels of accesses, from just "observer" to the first and second 
signature of documents. 

 The system provides all kinds of services for IP owners, it is a fairly large segment in our 
market. 

Currently, work is under way to create Kazakhstan's first mobile app for legal entities with 

opportunities of viewing the accounts and the signing of the documents. Taking into account that it 

will allow company managers supporting their business anywhere in the world, we think this service 

will be in demand in the market. Also, by the end of the year, it is planned to develop in the direction 

of unification of channels. The system for individuals and legal entities should have general principles 

of work. When a customer comes into one mobile application and has access to their personal accounts 

and accounts of the company, carrying out all kinds of banking operations. Thus, the goal of mobile 

banking creating is fully achieved without the need to visit the Bank’s branches. 

 

FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC INDICATORS 

 

34 102 608
51 996 783

139 080 652

65 632 908

81 204 263

131 824 973

181 668 650

169 889 325

127 439 395

223 670 469

361 004 637

339 682 133

2014 2015 2016 2017

BANK ASSETS
Other assets

Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

Loans to customers

Loans and advances to banks and other
financial institutions

Financial assets available for sale

Financial instruments at fair value

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

thousand tenge 
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 The Bank's assets for 2017 in fact amounted to 339.7 billion tenge, an outflow over a year of 21.3 
billion tenge or 6%. Cash and cash equivalents in 2017 decreased by 73.4 billion tenge and amounted to 65.6 
billion tenge, which was reflected in the outflow of 53%. Fixed assets and other assets for 2017 amounted to 
95 billion tenge, thereby increasing compared to the previous year by 64.3 billion tenge. 

 

 Dynamics of the loan portfolio 

 

 

 01.01.2017 01.07.2017 01.10.2017 01.01.2018 

Retail 44 751 32 907 25 403 24 684 

 cards 960 1 285 1 419 1824 

Corporate/SME 132 472 141 979 148 399 134 039 

Total 177 223 176 172 175 220 160 548 

 

 

 
 Loan portfolio for 2017 year. Decreased by 9.5% to 170.4 billion tenge. The growth of the loan 
portfolio is mainly due to an increase in the loan portfolio for CB / SME and RB;  

As of 01/01/2018, the loan portfolio ranked 16th among Kazakhstan Banks, having dropped from 15th 

position in comparison with 01/01/2017, the market share for this period was 1.32%; 

44 751
32 907 25 403 24 684

132 472 141 979 148 399 134 039

0

40 000

80 000

120 000

01.01.2017 01.07.2017 01.10.2017 01.01.2018

Retail Corporate/SME

7 477 346 13 340 011 6 611 745 527 738

81 204 263

131 824 973

181 668 650

169 889 325

88 681 609

145 164 984

188 280 395

170 417 063

2014 2015 2016 2017

Dynamics of the loan portfolio

Loans to customers

Loans and advances to banks and other
financial institutions
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The Bank's total liabilities for 2017 amounted to 291.3 billion tenge, the outflow for the year by 38 billion 

tenge or 12%. The prevailing share of the funding base is formed at the expense of current accounts and 

customer deposits, amounting to 90.9% of the total liabilities of the Bank as of 01.01.2018. Other liabilities of 

the Bank are represented by the accounts and deposits of Banks and other financial institutions, as well as other 

liabilities. 

 
   

The Bank's funding base shows a natural increase in parallel with the growth rates of the Bank's assets. 
In 2017, the Bank's deposit portfolio in the form of current accounts and deposits of legal entities and individuals 
generated an outflow of 10.4%, which in total is 30.8 billion tenge. A large share of the Bank's liabilities to 
customers consists of current accounts and deposits of legal entities with a share of 73.1% of the total aggregate 
amount of the deposit portfolio. 

 

13 844 448
45 844 884 31 099 930 20 097 849

94 973 470

145 182 100

295 582 457

264 810 845
109 844 887

200 181 275

329 278 632

291 265 680

2014 2015 2016 2017

STRUCTURE OF LIABILITIES
Other liabilities

Deferred tax liability

Subordinated bonds

Accounts Payable on Repo Transactions

Current accounts and deposits of
customers

Accounts and deposits of banks and other
financial institutions

Total, liabilities

6 760 893
27 285 666

44 013 370
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88 212 577
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251 569 087 193 682 359
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145 182 100

295 582 457

264 810 845

2014 2015 2016 2017

Deposit portfolio (liabilities to customers)

Current accounts and deposits of legal
entities

Current accounts and deposits of
individuals

Total, liabilities to customers

thousand tenge 

thousand tenge 
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Equity capital was 48.4 billion tenge as of 01.01.2018. The increase for 2017 amounted to 16.7 billion 
tenge due to the increase of the authorized capital by additional issue of common shares, including through 
profit growth. Net profit as of 01.01.2018 amounted to 1,315.3 million tenge. Growth of equity capital from 
2014 to 2017. Amounted to 30.8 billion tenge, including the annual capitalization of the Bank.   

 

 
 
 Prudential regulations for capital adequacy (k1, k1-2 and k2) are maintained in accordance with the 
requirements set by the National Bank of Kazakhstan without violations. 
 

2014 2015 2016 2017

17 594 508
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31 726 005
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Equity capital (in million tenge)

45%
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17,00%

18,00%
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Coefficients of capital adequacy

k1 k1-2 k2
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1) Net interest income 2) Net fee and commission income 3) Operating income 4) Total income 

 In 2017, compared to 2016, interest income increased by 7,323 million tenge, or by 
103.73%; 

 Net commission income of the Bank for 2017 amounted to 1,889 million tenge, thereby 
increasing compared to 2015 by 281 million tenge; 

 

 

 The profitability of the Bank's assets for 2017 reflects a decrease from 0.6% to 0.4% 

 Return on equity for the year 2017 decreased from 6% to 3.9% 
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RISK MANAGEMENT 

Risk management is at the core of banking activities and is an essential element of the Bank's 
operations. The main objective of the Bank in the field of risk management is to improve the risk 
management system appropriate to the nature, scope of activities and long-term objectives of the 
Bank, the profile of risks accepted by the Bank, as well as meeting the needs of further business 
development and regulatory requirements. The risk management system is a system of organization, 
policies, procedures and methods adopted by the Bank in order to identify, measure, control and 
monitor the risks of the Bank in a timely manner to ensure its financial stability and stable operation. 

Risk management policies and procedures 

The Bank's risk management policy is aimed at identifying, analyzing and managing the risks to 
which the Bank is exposed, establishing risk limits and related controls, as well as continuously 
assessing the level of risks and their compliance with the established limits. Risk management policies 
and procedures are reviewed on a regular basis to reflect changes in the market situation, proposed 
banking products and services, and emerging best practices.  

The Board of Directors is responsible for the proper functioning of the risk management system, 
for managing key risks and approving policies and procedures for risk management, and for approving 
major transactions. 

The Management Board is responsible for monitoring and implementing risk mitigation 
measures, and also ensures that the Bank operates within the established risk limits. The duties of the 
Head of the Risk Department include general risk management and monitoring of compliance with the 
requirements of the current legislation, as well as monitoring the application of common principles and 
methods for the detection, evaluation, management and reporting of both financial and non-financial 
risks. 

Provision of «three-lines-of-defense». 

In the process of risk management activities, all structural units of the Bank are involved in the 
assessment, acceptance and control of risks: 

Acceptance of risks (1st line of defense): the Bank's structural units directly preparing and 
carrying out the transaction are involved in the process of identification, assessment and monitoring 
of risks, and comply with the requirements of internal regulatory documents in terms of risk 
management, and take into account the level of risk in the preparation of the operation; 

Risk management (2nd line of defense): the Bank's structural units and collegial bodies 
responsible for risk management develop risk management mechanisms, methodology, assess and 
monitor the level of risks, prepare consolidated risk reporting, perform risk aggregation, calculate the 
amount of claims for risks to total capital; 

Internal audit (3rd line of defense): conducts an independent assessment of the quality of 
existing risk management processes, identifies violations and offers suggestions for improving the risk 
management system. 

 Risks to which the Bank is exposed. 

 
 In the course of its operations, the Bank manages the following types of risk: credit, market, 
operational risks, liquidity risk and other risks. 

 Credit risk 
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Credit risk is the risk of financial losses arising as a result of non-performance of obligations by 
the borrower or counterparty of the Bank. The Bank manages credit risk through the application of 
approved policies and procedures, including requirements for establishing and maintaining credit risk 
concentration limits, and through the establishment of Credit Committees, whose functions include 
active monitoring of credit risk. To increase the effectiveness of the decision-making process, the Bank 
has established a hierarchical structure of credit committees, depending on the type and magnitude of 
the exposure to risk. The credit policy is reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors. 

 When managing credit risk, the Bank takes into account the limits set for one borrower / group 
of interrelated borrowers, controls the level of concentration of risks by sectors of activity of 
borrowers, regions. 
 
 When analyzing loan projects, a comprehensive risk assessment is carried out, including 
financial and legal risks; the assessment of collateral is conducted, the qualitative and quantitative 
indicators of the project are analyzed. 
 
 In order to minimize possible losses related to the financing of client projects, the Bank 
continuously monitors the loan portfolio for the presence of alarm signals and, if necessary, applies 
preventive measures to reduce risks. 
 
 As of 01.01.2018 a significant proportion in the structure of the loan portfolio of the Bank is 
held by corporate business and SME (86%). 

 

 

                    

154 857
86%

25 838
14%

Segmentation of the loan portfolio for 01.01.18, million 
tenge

Corporate business and SME Loans to retail customers

https://www.bankastana.kz/en/


 
BANK OF ASTANA 

 

 

 

 Market risk 

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
change due to changes in market prices. Market risk consists of currency risk, interest rate risk, and 
price risk. 

 The task of managing market risk is to manage and control that the exposure to market risk 
does not go beyond acceptable parameters, while ensuring the optimization of the profit received for 
the accepted risk.  

 Market risk is managed and controlled by the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), both at the 
Bank's level as a whole and at the level of individual transactions.  

 The Bank is guided by the requirements established by regulatory enactments and 
recommendations of the regulatory body in the process of managing market risk. 

 Analyzing various quantitative and qualitative indicators, using special models and methods the 
Bank identifies market risks. Applicable models and methods for measuring market risks are reviewed 
on a periodic basis to ensure the adequacy and acceptability of the instruments used. 

 The Bank manages market risk by setting limits on the open position with respect to the size of 
the portfolio for individual financial instruments, the timing of changes in interest rates, currency 
position, loss limits and regular monitoring of compliance, the results of which are reviewed and 
approved by the Board. 

 Liquidity risk 

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may face difficulties in attracting funds to fulfill its 
obligations. Liquidity risk arises when there is a mismatch in the maturity of assets and liabilities. The 

Loans to retail customers
14%

Trade
23%

Agriculture, timber and 
woodworking industry

11%

Production
15%

Lease
5%

Financial services
3%

Services related to 
construction and 
installation works

6%

Construction
5%

Research and developement
5%

Mining industry / metallurgical industry
3%

Logistic complexes and transport services
1% Mass media

1%

Other services
8%

Segmentation of the loan portfolio by sectors of the 
economy for 01.01.18, million tenge
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coincidence and / or controlled mismatch in terms of maturity and interest rates of assets and liabilities 
is fundamental to the management of liquidity risk. 
 
 To assess and analyze liquidity risk, the Bank uses various systems and instruments to 
objectively determine the extent and extent of the impact of liquidity risk on the Bank's operations. 
For example, an effective method of strategic analysis of liquidity is the gap analysis, which allows you 
to see the gaps between the assets and liabilities of the Bank in terms of terms. GAP analysis also makes 
it possible to identify problem areas that impede the development of the Bank. The Bank conducts a 
GAP analysis of interest, tenge, dollar assets and liabilities on a monthly basis. A general GAP analysis 
allows you to see the full picture of the liquidity of the Bank and, if necessary, regulate it. 

 The Bank maintains the necessary level of liquidity in order to ensure the continued availability 
of funds necessary to meet all obligations as they mature. The liquidity management policy is reviewed 
and approved by the Board of Directors. 

 The Bank seeks to actively support a diversified and stable structure of financing sources, as 
well as a diversified portfolio of highly liquid assets, so that the Bank is able to react quickly and without 
sudden fluctuations to unforeseen liquidity requirements.  

 Liquidity Cushion for 01.01.2018y.  

The liquidity reserve of the Bank is 
represented directly by liquid funds 
ensuring instant liquidity of the Bank 
(cash, correspondent accounts, 
uninvested balances), as well as liquid 
assets that can be transformed into cash 
up to 7 days (reverse repurchase 
agreements, CB available for sales, 
"currency swap" operations with an 
overnight term), and short-term 
interbank deposits.  

The total volume of liquid assets as of 
January 1, 2018 is 66 606 million tenge. 

The set volume of short-term liquidity 
allows the Bank to maintain its solvency, 
timely fulfill its obligations and invest in 
short-term liquidity placement 
instruments. 

 01.01.2018  In million tenge. 

 7 810  Cash 

 

24 357  

Correspondent account in the 
national bank of the republic of 
kazakhstan and contributions to 
the national bank of the republic of 
Kazakhstan (one night). 

 
13 045  

Correspondent accounts in other 
banks 

 722  Government securities 

 
19 222  

Operations "reverse repurchase 
agreements", swap 

 1 450  Deposits located in other banks 

 66 606  Total, liquidity 
 

  The Bank ensures compliance with regulatory requirements in terms of liquidity, including the 
coefficients of urgent and currency liquidity. 

 The Treasury monitors the liquidity position on a daily basis. Also on a regular basis, the Risk 
Department and the Treasury conduct "stress tests" taking into account a variety of possible scenarios 
of market conditions in both normal and unfavorable conditions.  
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 Liquidity risk is managed and controlled by ALCO, both at the level of the Bank as a whole and 
at the level of individual transactions. Decisions on the liquidity management policy are made by the 
ALCO and executed by the Treasury. 

 Operational risk 

 Operational risk management in the Bank is carried out on a permanent basis with the help of 
the following operational risk management tools: 

 development, implementation and continuous development of the operational risk 
management system; 

 monitoring and evaluation of the level of the bank's operational risk, including on the basis 
of information received from other lines of defense; 

 formation and provision of reports or other information to the Board of Directors of the 
bank, Authorized Collective Entity and (or) the Management Board of the Bank on IT and IS 
risk management; 

 interaction and consultation of structural units on the management of operational risk 
issues; 

 implementation of the formation of consolidated reporting on the events of operational 
risk and monitoring the implementation of the plan of measures to eliminate them; 

 control over the timely entry of information on operational risk events into the operational 
risk database by risk coordinators; 

 planning, coordination and analysis of the results of self-assessment of operational risks; 

 development of key operational risk indicators and threshold values together with 
structural subdivisions; 

 planning and coordination of work on scenario analysis; 

 development and formation of a risk map; 

 implementation on a periodic basis (at least once a year) of a comparative analysis of 
operational risk assessment tools. 

 The Bank has introduced a system of risk-coordinators to manage operational risks. In each 
structural subdivision of the Bank and in the branches, risk coordinators are appointed. They provide 
work on identifying and communicating information on operational risk incidents to the Risk 
Department. 

 All operational risk incidents are recorded in the Database, which details the causes of the risks, 
the damage caused to the Bank, as well as the measures taken or planned to minimize / eliminate 
operational risks. Also, the Risk Department carries out proper control over the implementation of all 
risk reduction measures. 

 All incidents of operational risk are reported to the Management Board of the Bank within the 
framework of monthly reports and to the attention of the Board of Directors through quarterly 
information. 

 Risk of information technology 

 Risk management of information technology and information security in the Bank is carried out 
on an ongoing basis with the help of the following risk management tools: 

 development, implementation and continuous development of the IT and IS risk 
management system; 

https://www.bankastana.kz/en/


 
BANK OF ASTANA 

 

 monitoring and evaluation of the level of the Bank IT and IS risks, including on the basis of 
information received from other lines of defense; 

 formation and provision of reports or other information to the Board of Directors of the 
bank, Authorized Collective Entity and (or) the Management Board of the Bank on IT and IS 
risk management; 

 Participation in the Bank's projects, identification of possible IT and IS risks, interaction and 
consultation of structural units on IT and IS risk management issues; 

 development and formation of a risk map; 

 implementation on a periodic basis (at least once a year) of a comparative analysis of IT and 
IS risks. 

 Risk management of information technology and information security in the Bank is carried out 
through the implemented risk management system of information technology and information 
security, including the identification, assessment, minimization and monitoring of infrastructure risks, 
risks of vulnerable IT processes and IT systems. Identification of threats and vulnerabilities of IT and IS 
is carried out in close cooperation with the IT department and the Information Security Service. 

 
 The Bank implements measures to equip with necessary software, automate internal 

accounting processes and automate the formation of key risk indicators of the Bank in order to improve 
the internal models and information systems for IT and IS risk management 

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 Charity and sponsorship 

The Bank of Astana is a socially responsible institution, so for several years the Bank provided 
charitable assistance to children with disabilities, as well as veterans of the Great Patriotic War. And in 
2014, the Bank made a contribution to the development of business in Kazakhstan by sponsoring the 
Astana Business Chamber in launching a business portal for entrepreneurs www.astana-2050.kz. This 
portal was launched on the Day of the Capital. The portal facilitated the access of business information 
about the capital to Kazakh entrepreneurs, as well as foreign investors. The business portal contains 
analytical information on all sectors of the capital's economy, on tools for public financial support, as 
well as a catalog of city enterprises with contact details and a lot of interesting information for 
entrepreneurs. This is actually a unique event and innovation. Since it is often difficult to start or 
develop your business because there is not enough information, you need to ask for it, it then comes 
not quite right. And here there is a powerful information resource. That is, anyone who wants and does 
not understand anything in business, but who wants to start his business will see there a lot of 
information and niches that could be developed. Thus, the Bank contributes to the development of 
business in Kazakhstan. 

In addition to developing the business, the Bank also responsibly approaches the promotion of 

healthy lifestyles and the development of sports culture in the country, as the Bank acted as one of the 

sponsors of the International Golf Tournament "President's Cup". 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 Corporate Governance System 

The system of corporate governance of Bank of Astana JSC determines the main standards and 

principles used in the management of the Bank, including relations between the Board of Directors and 

the Management Board, shareholders and officers of the Bank, the procedure for the functioning and 

decision-making of the Bank's bodies. The principles of corporate governance are the initial principles 

that guide the Bank in the process of forming, functioning and improving its corporate governance 

system. 

 The Bank's corporate governance is primarily based on respect for the rights and legitimate 

interests of all its shareholders and the status of the Bank itself and is aimed at achieving the growth 

of Bank's performance, including the growth of the Bank's assets, job creation and maintenance of the 

Bank's financial stability and profitability. 

 The Bank adheres to the following principles of corporate governance aimed at creating trust 

in relations arising due the management of the Bank: 

 providing shareholders with a real opportunity to exercise their right to participate in the 
management of the Bank; 

 creation of a real opportunity for the Bank's shareholders to participate in the distribution 
of the Bank's net income (receipt of dividends); 

 ensuring timely and complete submission to the Bank's shareholders of reliable information 
related to the Bank's financial position, economic indicators, performance results, 
management structure of the Bank, in order to ensure that the Bank's shareholders and 
investors make informed decisions; 

 ensuring equal treatment of all categories of the Bank's shareholders; 

 ensuring maximum transparency of the activities of Bank officials; 

 Ensuring the Board of Directors of the Bank provides strategic management of its activities 
and effective control over its activities for the activities of the company's executive body, as 
well as the accountability of directors to its shareholders; 

 Ensuring the Bank's Management is able to conscientiously implement effective 
management of the Bank's day-to-day operations, as well as to establish the accountability 
of the Bank's Board to the Board of Directors of the Bank and its shareholders; 

 ethical standards for the Bank's shareholders; 

 ensuring the functioning of an effective internal control system of the Bank and its objective 
evaluation. 

 Share capital 

 As of December 29, 2017, the authorized share capital of the Bank consisted of 100,000,000 
shares (in 2016: 32,000,000 ordinary shares), and the authorized, issued and fully paid-up capital 
consisted of 36,081,627 ordinary shares (in 2016: 26,882,601 ordinary shares shares). 
Throughout 2017, the Bank increased the number of authorized shares to 100,000,000 shares, on June 
7, 2017, Mr. Tokhtarov O.T. acquired in addition 1,739,131 ordinary shares of the Bank for 
compensation in the amount of 2,000,001 thousand tenge, the calculation of which was effected in 
cash. 
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 On June 30, 2017, the Bank increased its authorized capital by KZT 5,300,000 thousand by 
placing common shares of the Bank on an IPO to an unlimited number of investors at Kazakhstan Stock 
Exchange JSC. 
 On December 14, 2017, the Bank secondarily placed its shares on the SPO to an unlimited 

number of investors at Moscow Interbank Currency Exchange (Moscow Stock Exchange) in the amount 

of 2,881,835 at a price of 215 rubles per share. 

 Organizational Structure 

 The organizational structure of the Bank is built on a linear-functional type and provides the 
following:  

 prompt performing of actions on orders and instructions given by superior managers to 
inferiors; 

 rational combination of linear and functional relationships; 

 stability of authority and responsibility for staff; 

 unity and clarity of management; 

 the efficiency of decision-making and executing is higher than in the linear structure; 

 personal responsibility of each manager for the results of the activity; 

 professional solution of problems by functional services specialists. 

 
 Main divisions involved in operating activities: 

 Business Development and Support Division (small and medium business, retail business);  

 Corporate Lending Division; 

 Sales Channels Division; 

 Payment Cards Division; 

 Operations Division. 

 
 The Board of Directors of the Bank  

The Board of Directors is the managerial body of Bank of Astana JSC that carries out the general 

management of the activities of Bank of Astana JSC, except for the issues related to the exclusive 

competence of the General meeting of shareholders. 

 Members of the Board of Directors 

Surname, name, if any-patronymic, year of 
birth of the membersof the Board of Directors 

and date of taking office 

positions held by each member of the Board of Directors for the 
last three years and currently, in chronological order, including 

part-time 
Tokhtarov Olzhas Tanirbergenovich 

Year of birth: July 24, 1980 

Chairman of the Board of Directors of Bank of 

Astana JSC (date of taking office since 

23.07.2014) 

Since April 2015 – up to present - Independent Director, Member 
of the Board of Directors of the National Management Holding 
KazAgro, JSC  
23.07.14 - up to present – Member of the Board of Directors, 
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Bank of Astana, JSC. 
28.01.14 - up to present - Member of the Board of Directors of Bank 
of Astana, JSC; 
10.07.13 - 08.11.13 - Member of the Board of Directors of Bank of 
Astana JSC; 
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12.03.12 - August 19, 2014 - Member of the Board of Directors of 
SAT & Company JSC; 
07.11.08 - 18.07.2014 - Chairman of the Board of SAT & Company 
JSC; 

Mamytbekov Asylzhan Sarybayevich  

Year of birth:  September 17, 1968 

Member of the Board of Directors of Bank of 

Astana JSC (date of taking office – 06.06.2016). 

06.06.2016 – 20.12.2017 - Member of the Board of Directors, 
Independent Director of Bank of Astana JSC; 
11.04.11 - 06.05.2016 – Minister of the Ministry of Agriculture of 
the Republic of Kazakhstan in Astana; 

Dauletbayev Marat Turekhanovich 

Year of birth: August 16, 1975 

Member of the Board of Directors of  Bank of 

Astana JSC, Independent Director (date of taking 

office – 19.05.2011) 

19.05.11 – up to present - Member of the Board of Directors, 
Independent Director of Bank of Astana JSC. 

Lavrentyev Andrey 

Year of birth: June 29, 1979 

Member of the Board of Directors of Bank of 

Astana JSC (date of taking office – 29.11.2016). 

21.08.2017 – 17.10.2017 - Member of the Board of Directors, 
Independent Director of Bank of Astana JSC 
 29.11.2016 - 22.02.2017 - Member of the Board of Directors, 
Independent Director of Bank of Astana JSC 
10.03.15 - up to present - Chairman of the Board of Directors of 
Allur Group of Companies JSC 
23.06.15 - up to present - Member of the Board of the Union of 
machine Builders of Kazakhstan 
27.11.14-09.03.15 - Member of the Board of Directors of Allur 
Group of Companies JSC 
25.07.13 – up to the present time- President of the “Association of 
Kazakhstan’s Automotive Business” Union of legal entities 
19.02.13 – up to the present - Member of the Board of Directors of 
Agromashholding JSC 

Shagubatov Alexander Vyacheslavovich 

Member of the Board of Directors, Independent 

Director 

Year of birth: October 13, 1980  (date of taking 

office - March 20, 2015) 

18.12.2015 - up to the present- Independent Director, Member of 
the Board of Directors of Standard Life Insurance Company JSC 
20.03.15 - up to the present- Independent Director, Member of the 
Board of Directors of Bank of Astana JSC;  
29.07.13 - up to the present - Member of the Board of Directors, 
Independent Director of “Standard Insurance” Insurance company 
JSC 
01.01.13 - up to the present - General Director of “Regens” 

Bekturganov Daniyar Bazarbekovich 

Member of the Board of Directors 

Year of birth: June 5, 1981 (the date of taking 

office - January 25, 2016). 

25.01.2016 – 06.09.2017 - Member of the Board of Directors of 
Bank of Astana JSC»  
23.11.2015 – up to the present - President of 
Republican Public Association "Kazakhstan Federation of Grappling 
 25.08.2014 – 27.10.2015 - Chairman of the Board of Astana 
Finance JSC  
16.11.2011-24.08.2014 - Managing Director of Astana Finance JSC 

 

 Management Board of the Bank 

The executive body of Bank of Astana JSC that manages the current activities of the Bank, is the 

Management Board (collegial body) headed by the Chairman. 

 

Name, surname, date of birth of a 
Member the Board 

Positions held by a Member of the Board for the last three years and 
currently, including part-time 
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Chairman of the Board – Mailybaev 
Iskender Yedygeyevich 
 Year of birth: May 25, 1979 

20.03.2015 – up to present - Chairman of the Management Board of Bank of 

Astana JSC 
The authority as follows: 
- providing the overall management of the activities of Bank of Astana JSC; 
- holding of meetings of the Board of Bank of Astana JSC; 
- accepting of operative and administrative decisions on the activities of Bank of 
Astana JSC; 
- interacting with the Board of Directors and shareholders of Bank of Astana JSC; 
-control and coordination of the activities of the members of the Board and 
directors of the branches. 
- representing of the Bank's interests in relations with the shareholders of the 
Bank, subsidiaries and affiliates and other third parties. 
- representing of the Bank's interests in relations with second-tier banks; 
- performing of operational interaction with third parties on issues of business 
development; 
- signing of contracts (agreements), reports, payment and information 
documents initiated by the Bank's structural divisions. 
02.04.2014. - 20.03.2015. Deputy Chairman of the Management Board- Financial 
Director, Member of the Management Board of Bank Astana-finance JSC. 
01.10.2010. – 10.15.2013. Financial Director, Member of the Management Board 
of Alliance Bank JSC 

Managing Director, Member of the 
Management Board - 
Zhangabylov Mukhtar Serikovich 
Year of birth: October 05, 1981   

27.03.2015. - up to the present - Managing Director, Member of the 
Management Board of Bank of Astana JSC 
The authority as follows: 
Representing the interests of the Bank in relations with government authorities, 
legal entities, enterprises, institutions, organizations, irrespective of the form of 
ownership of, with individuals / individual entrepreneurs, including courts with 
all the rights granted to participants of the process. 
Subject to compliance with internal regulations signing transaction agreements, 
orders for transactions and other relevant documents of the Bank aimed to 
provide of Treasury operations. 
Subject to compliance with internal regulatory documents signing general 
agreements on the terms of operations in the interbank market with 
counterparty banks, or other agreements and contracts that define and regulate 
the relationship between the Bank and counterparty banks in the interbank 
market. 
Signing orders and other administrative documents on behalf of the Bank in 
cooperation with organizations engaged in brokerage services and registration 
of transactions with securities. 
Subject to compliance with internal regulatory documents governing the Bank's 
procedures of procurement making transactions and signing property lease 
agreements, administrative  agreements (contracts), agreements of Bank on  
receiving legal and consultancy services,  marketing, consulting, advertising 
services and other agreements (contracts), concluded by a decision of the 
authorized body on forms approved by the Bank or agreed with the legal 
department, with legal entities and individuals / individual entrepreneurs related 
with the activity of Bank, for the amount within the approved budget and / or 
the approved estimate as well as sign the relevant invoices under concluded 
agreements (contracts),the acts of acceptance / transfer of goods / work 
performed / services provided, media plans and other necessary documentation. 
Signing the pledge agreements concluded to secure the fulfillment of debtors' 
obligations to the Bank under agreements on assignment of rights of claims 
(cession) as well as the agreements on assignment rights of claims (cession) and 
supplementary agreements thereto. 
Subject to compliance with internal regulatory documents signing the 
memorandums, contracts, cooperation agreements on behalf of the Bank and as 
well as insurance agreements, settlement contracts / agreements, 
supplementary agreements and appendixes upon the availability of decisions of 
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authorized bodies (persons) of the Bank, including acts of work performed / 
rendered services, acts of acceptance and delivery and other documents arising 
from this. 
Subject to compliance with internal regulatory documents issuing and signing 
orders related to the economic activities of the Bank, including regulating 
procedures of procurement. 
Signing inquiries, notices, petitions, letters, claims, demands and other 
documents of a business nature addressed to state bodies, legal entities, 
enterprises, institutions, organizations, irrespective of the form of ownership, to 
individuals / individual entrepreneurs. 
03.12.2013 - 27.03.2015. Managing Director of Bank of Astana JSC; 
04.01.2012 - 01.02.2014 Managing Director of SAT & Company JSC 

Managing Director, Member of the 
Management Board –  
Zhumagulov Aidos Bolatovich Year 
of birth: November 02, 1982  

01.09.2016 – up to the present - Managing Director, Member of the 
Management Board of Bank of Astana JSC 
The authority as follows:  
Representing the interests of the Bank in relations with government authorities, 
enterprises, institutions, legal entities, organizations, irrespective of ownership, 
individual entrepreneurs, individuals on issues related to the activities of the 
Bank's supervised structural divisions. 
Signing reports, correspondence, inquiries, answers to inquiries, letters, 
information documents, notices, petitions, claims, demands and other 
documents of a business nature addressed to state bodies, enterprises, 
institutions, organizations, irrespective of ownership, to individual 
entrepreneurs, individuals initiated by supervised structural divisions of the Bank 
and within its competence. 
Subject to compliance with internal regulatory documents concluding and 
signing (amend, terminate) contracts, agreements, memorandums with legal 
entities, individuals, individual entrepreneurs on behalf of the Bank related to 
the operation of the supervised structural divisions of the Bank (with the 
exception of financing agreements) as well as the supplementary agreements 
thereto, including acts of acceptance and delivery, work performed / services 
rendered and other documents arisind from this. 
07.12.2015-01.09.2016 Managing Director of Bank of Astana JSC  
01.04.2013 – 04.12.2015 Vice President of Kazakhyuvelir JSC;  
22.08.2011 - 29.03.2013 Director of Directorate Production Management of  ZAO 
Russian Slavic Bank  

Managing Director, Member of the 

Board –  
Laushev Madi Sayasatovich  
Year of birth:  December 18,  1984 

April 2017 – up to the present - Managing Director, Member of the Management 
Board of Bank of Astana JSC 
The authority as follows: 
Representing the interests of the Bank in relations with government authorities, 
enterprises, institutions, legal entities and organizations, irrespective of 
ownership, individual entrepreneurs and individuals. 
Signing the agreements on mutual cooperation, framework / loan agreements, 
subsidy and / or indemnity agreements as well as supplementary agreements 
thereto with KazAgro National Holding Company JSC and its subsidiaries 
(including Kazagromarketing JSC), with Baiterek National Holding Company JSC 
and its subsidiaries (including DAMU Entrepreneurship Development Fund JSC) 
and other government agencies and legal entities within the framework of 
approved government programs.  Performing all necessary actions to realize the 
rights and obligations of the Bank arising on the basis of these agreements and 
contracts. 
Representing the interests of the Bank in the Agrarian Credit Corporation JSC 
(hereinafter - the Corporation) on all issues of financing, including the right to 
conclude (amend, terminate) and sign the framework agreements / loan 
agreements as well as other types of agreements, supplementary agreements 
thereto and other documents required for processing loan transactions with the 
Corporation. 
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Concluding and signing (amending, terminating) with legal entities / individuals / 
individual entrepreneurs on behalf of the Bank the following: 
- bank loan agreement, agreement about the opening of a credit line, ancillary 
agreements and supplementary agreements thereto on the basis of a decision of 
the authorized body of the Bank in accordance with established internal 
procedures; 
- pledge and other security agreements, re-pledge agreements, mortgage 
agreements and supplementary agreements thereto on the basis of a resolution 
of the authorized body of the Bank in accordance with established internal 
procedures; 
- indemnity agreements, guarantees and supplementary agreements thereto on 
the basis of the decision of the authorized body of the Bank in accordance with 
the established internal procedures. 
- bank deposit agreements and supplementary agreements thereto. 
Upon the availability of decisions of authorized bodies (persons) the Bank has the 
right to conclude insurance agreements and settlement contracts / agreements 
as well as supplementary agreements thereto. 
Signing (issuing) payment orders and instructions on withdrawal for obligations 
based on agreements with the Bank's customers to all second-tier banks of the 
Republic of Kazakhstan. 
Signing letters and necessary documents on the imposition and / or removal of 
encumbrances on the pledged property in the state registration authorities in 
accordance with the established internal procedures of the Bank. 
Carrying out the state registration of the right of pledge in the authorized 
registering body and as well as cancelling the right of pledge in the register of 
record on the availability of encumbrances of the Bank in the presence of a 
positive decision of the authorized body of the Bank in accordance with the 
established internal procedures of the Bank. 
Signing the agreements on assignment of rights of claims (cession) and 
supplementary agreements thereto as well as carrying out state registration of it 
in an authorized state body. 
Signing the consent of the subject of the credit history to provide information 
about it to credit bureaus and to issue a credit report to the recipient of 
information from the credit bureau that has accepted the consent. 
Certifying copies of the financing agreements and securities on the Bank's loan 
projects for submission to the second-tier bank. 
Signing the following letters / references / notifications on behalf of the Bank: 
on the Bank's intention to provide borrowed funds to borrowers based on the 
decision of the Credit Committee of the Bank; 
on finding originals of title documents on property acting as security for loans in 
custody of the Bank; 
on consent of the pledge holder (of the Bank) for the registration of third parties 
at the address of the real estate serving as security; 
on the presence / absence of debt, both current and overdue debts for all types 
of obligations. 
Signing inquiries, notices, petitions, letters, claims, demands and other 
documents of a business nature addressed to state bodies, legal entities, 
enterprises, institutions, organizations, irrespective of ownership, to individuals 
/ individual entrepreneurs initiated by the supervised structural divisions of the 
Bank. 
June 2015 - April 2017 - Director of the Corporate Lending Department of Bank 
of Astana JSC 
March 2015 - May 2015- Head of Management of Bank of Astana JSC 
March 2013 - March 2015 - Head of the Department of Bank CenterCredit JSC | 
August 2012 - January 2013 - Financial Director at Victoria Standard Company LLP 
April 2011 - August 2012 - Senior RM of Bank CenterCredit JSC AGF 
March 2010 - March 2011 - Head of the Bank CenterCredit JSC AGF  
October 2007 - February 2010 - Credit Officer of Bank CenterCredit JSC AGF 
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Managing Director, Member of the 
Management Board - 
Zholdasov Yelnar Rasilkhanovich 
Year of birth: February 25, 1979  

Since 10.04.2017 – 09.02.2018 - Managing Director, Member of the 
Management Board of Bank of Astana JSC 
The authority as follows: 
Representing the interests of the Bank in relations with government authorities, 
enterprises, institutions, legal entities, organizations, irrespective of ownership, 
on issues related to the activities of the Bank's supervised structural divisions. 
Subject to compliance with internal regulations signing contracts and 
agreements (with the exception of contracts and agreements on banking 
operations and security) as well as supplementary agreements and attachments 
thereto on behalf of the Bank in forms approved by the Bank or agreed with the 
legal department of the Bank, with legal entities, individuals / individual 
entrepreneurs, including State Credit Bureau JSC,  First Credit Bureau LLP ,  the 
Directorate" Interdepartmental Settlement Center for Social Payments " a 
branch of «State-owned corporation «Government for citizens» NJSC initiated by 
the supervised divisions of the Bank and within its competence. 
Signing acts of work performed / services rendered as well as invoices and other 
documents arising from this within the framework of concluded agreements. 
Signing reports, inquiries, letters, information documents, notices, petitions, 
claims, demands and other documents of a business nature addressed to state 
bodies, enterprises, institutions, organizations irrespective of ownership, 
initiated by the supervised structural divisions of the Bank and within its 
competence. 
Since August 2013 to April 2017 - Managing Director of Bank of Astana JSC 
Since April 2011 to December 2012 - Head of the Department for Work with 
Problem Loans of Retail Business, VTB Bank JSC (Kazakhstan) 
Since 23.10.2009 to 23.04.2010 - Chief Expert of Judicial and Legal Work 
Management of the Legal Department of ATF Bank, SPU, Team 3, Almaty Head 
Office 
Since 24.11.2008 to19.10.2009 - Director of the branch of Kaspi Bank JSC in 
Zhezkazgan 
Since 10.09.2008 to 01.11.2008 - Relationship Manager / Acting Director of the 
branch of Bank Astana-Finance JSC in Karaganda 
Since 28.04.2008 to 01.09.2008 - Director of Kontrakstroy-A LLP in Astana 
Since 01.02.2008 to 04.04.2008 - Director of the branch of Nurbank JSC in Almaty 
Since 2004 to 01.02.2008. - Director of the branch of Nurbank JSC in Karaganda 
Since 01.04.2003 to 13.12.2004- Nurbank JSC, Head Office, Senior Specialist at 
Troubled Loans Department of Evaluation and Troubled Loans Management.  
Since 16.06.2001 to 01.04.2003- Almaty Branch of Nurbank JSC,  Leading 
Specialist of the Legal Sector of the Branch 

 

 Committees of the Board of Directors of the Bank 
 

 Asset and Liability Management Committee of Bank of Astana JSC is a collegiate working body 
of Bank of Astana JSC that manages the financial resources of the Bank effectively to increase revenue 
and minimize the risk in the performing of banking operations; making operative decisions related to 
changes in the structure of assets and liabilities, attraction and allocation of resources based on the 
analysis of the Bank's activities and taking into account the short-term and medium-term forecast of 
the financial market; making decisions that ensure management of risks associated with the Bank's 
asset and liability management activities; approval of limits (except for credit risk limits) and ensuring 
control over its compliance; analysis and monitoring of the Bank's performance (profitability of 
operations) both for the Bank as a whole and for individual banking products; organizing of control 
over the compliance of the Bank's activities with indicators set by short-term and long-term plans. 
 In 2017, the Committee held 90 meetings under the chairmanship of M.T. Dauletbayev, the 
Member of the Board of Directors, the Independent Director, on consideration of issues initiated by 
branches and structural divisions of the Bank's Head Office. 
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 In aggregate for 2017, the Committee considered 558 issues for the determining of individual 
terms for attracted deposits other than standard terms, for the setting minimum interest rates 
(minimum rates of placement) for loans and deposits attracted and other issues within the competence 
of the Committee. The meetings of the Committee were held in compliance with the quorum. 
 
 Credit Committee of the Head Office of Bank of Astana JSC is a permanent collegial working 

body of the Head Office of Bank of Astana JSC that carries out the internal Credit Policy of Bank of 

Astana JSC and has the authority to consider issues related to the provision of loan products 

(instruments). 

 In 2017, the Committee held 95 meetings under the chairmanship of M. Dauletbayev, the 

Member of the Board of Directors, Independent Director. 

During the mentioned period 305 issues were considered on project financing, amendments in 

financing terms, the reports of the credit administration division as well as issues related to the 

functioning of the Credit Committees and other issues within the competence of the Committee. 

Positive decisions were made on all the issues considered. 

 The Committee of the Board of Directors of Astana Bank JSC on strategic planning, personnel 

and remuneration, audit, social affairs, risk management and internal control is a collegial body that 

assists the activities of the Board of Directors of the Bank on strategic planning, personnel and 

motivation policy, social issues, risk management and internal control. 

 In 2017, the Committee held 35 meetings in person to review issues initiated by the structural 

divisions of the Bank's Head Office. In the context of the Committee's functional authority the following 

issues were considered: 

 On the periodic reporting in accordance with the List of Internal Control Reports; 

 On the approval of internal regulatory documents that fall within the competence of the 
Committee; 

 On the reports of the Internal Audit Service; 

 On the amendments in the organizational structure of the Bank; 

 On the amendments in the budget of the Bank; 

 Other issues within the competence of the Committee. 

 In total for 2017, the Committee considered 118 issues and the quorum of the meeting was 

available at each meeting of the Committee. 

Internal Control and Audit 
 
The Internal Control Systems of Bank of Astana JSC (hereinafter - ICS) is regulated as a set of 

policies, procedures and business processes, standards of conduct and actions of Bank employees that 
promote efficient and rational activity allowing the Bank to react relevantly to the significant risks in 
pursuit of the objectives. The ICS consists of procedures for timely informing the authorized bodies of 
the Bank of any significant deficiencies and weak points of control, detailing the activities that have 
been or shall be undertaken. 

Internal Control in Bank of Astana JSC is a process carried out by the Board of Directors 
(hereinafter - the BD) and the Bank's collegial bodies of the BD, the Internal Audit Division, the 
Compliance Division, Risk Management Divisions and other structural divisions, employees of the Bank. 
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Internal Control Systems are defined on the basis of three lines of defense: 
• The first line of defense is provided by the structural divisions of the bank itself. Heads of 

structural divisions are internal controllers and, in accordance with official (functional) duties are 
responsible for the organization and carrying out of internal control in the structural division 
(development, documentation, introduction, monitoring and improvement of internal control 
procedures in the Bank's areas of activity entrusted to them). These standards are to be reflected in 
the provisions on structural divisions and job descriptions of managers; 

• The second line of defense is provided by the risk management divisions, compliance control, 
legal department, human resources department, financial control department and other structural 
divisions of the bank performing control functions; 

• The third line of defense is provided by the internal audit division through an independent 
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control system. 

In accordance with the norms of the legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan, the Charter, the 
Code of Corporate Governance, the Internal Control Policy and the internal regulatory documents of 
Bank of Astana JSC the competence of the bodies included in the ICS is delineated depending on its 
role in the development, approval, application and evaluation of principles of ICS. 

The Board is responsible for development and introduction of Internal Control Policy as well as 
improving of procedures and business process of internal control, proper operation and monitoring of 
ICS. 

Heads of the divisions of Bank Astana JSC are responsible for the development, documentation, 
implementation, monitoring and improvement of internal control procedures in the Bank's areas of 
business within the scope of their official duties. 

One of the components of the ICS is the Bank's Compliance Control Service that bases its activity 
on establishing control mechanisms aimed at minimizing / eliminating the risk of losses due to non-
compliance by the Bank and its employees with the requirements of the legislation of the Republic of 
Kazakhstan, internal documents of the Bank regulating the provision of services and operations by the 
Bank on the financial market, as well as the legislation of foreign countries, which has an impact on the 
Bank's activities. 

The main objective of the compliance risk management system is the organization of measures 
and the introduction of procedures that ensure the effective functioning of the mechanism for 
preventing, eliminating and / or minimizing compliance risks in the activities of the Bank. 

The Bank has established the Internal Audit Service (hereinafter – the IAS) in order to provide 
an independent and objective assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management 
system, internal control and corporate governance. 

The IAS provides an independent, reasonable evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal 
control system, risk management system, corporate governance to the Board of Directors and the 
Management Board at ensuring the protection the Bank and its reputation. 

The purpose of the IAS is to solve the problems arising when carrying out functions by the BD 
on ensuring the availability and functioning of risk management systems and internal control by 
providing an objective assessment of the status and recommendations for their improvement. The 
Internal Audit Division, irrespective of the influence of any persons, in the performance of the tasks 
and functions assigned to it is for the purpose of proper implementation and the provision of objective 
and impartial judgments. Criteria for independence of the IAS are the accountability of the BD of the 
Bank as well as the authority to independently provision of the annual audit plan, the selection of 
internal audit principles and procedures, the scope of work to achieve the approved plans. 

The IAS contributes to the Bank's goals by providing recommendations on process 
improvement, risk management and internal control. The audit evaluates the effectiveness of internal 
control and risk management systems in all aspects of the Bank's activities, ensuring timely and reliable 
information on the performance of the functions and tasks assigned to the Bank's divisions and 
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providing effective recommendations for improving of their performance. The IAS has the authority to 
audit all divisions of the Bank, including the activities of the branches and also carry out its activities 
with the involvement of other structural divisions of the Bank. The Audit carries out continuous 
interaction with the Compliance Department, Risk Management Departments, other structures and 
collegial bodies of the Bank with regard to updating the mandatory elements of the audit. The results 
of the audit and the implementation of the Action Plan for the elimination of violations are provided 
on a quarterly basis to the Committee and the Board of Directors of the Bank. 

 

INFORMATION ABOUT DIVIDENDS 

 
The Principles of the Dividend Policy of Bank of Astana JSC are based on the Dividend Policy of 

Bank of Astana JSC  approved on July 09, 2008 by the decision of the Board of Directors of the Bank 

and expressed by the establishment of a transparent and understandable mechanism for determining 

the size of dividends and payment as well as defining the strategy of the Board of Directors of the 

Bank in developing recommendations on the amount of dividends on shares, conditions and 

procedure for payment. 

The objectives of the Bank's Dividend Policy are the optimal combination of the interests of all 

shareholders and the Bank with mutual respect for the rights of all stakeholders as well as the need 

to improve the liquidity, capitalization and investment attractiveness of the Bank. 

According to the results of 2017, 2016, 2015, 2014, 2013, 2012 the Annual General Meetings 

of shareholders of Bank of Astana JSC made decisions on non-payment of dividends. 

 
 
Calculation of the book value of a  share as of 01.01.2018 

 

  thousand in KZT 

BVcs Book value of a common stock 1,296.84 

NAV Net assets value for common stock at the calculation date 46,792,071 

TA 

Tangible assets in the statement of financial position of the 
Issuer of shares as of the calculation date 339,682,133 

IA 

Intangible assets in the statement of financial position of the 
Issuer of shares as of the calculation date 

1,624,382 

TL 
Total liabilities in the statement of financial position of the 
Issuer of shares at the calculation date 291,265,680 

PS 

"authorized capital, preferred shares" in the Issuer's share 
report as of the calculation date 

- 

NOcs 
Number of outstanding common shares at calculation date 

36,081,627 
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 Information on remuneration of the Members of the Board of Directors and the Board of 

the Bank 

The amount of remuneration paid to the Members of the Board of Directors of the Bank for 2017 contained 

KZT 113 252 904,05 , the Members of the Board contained KZT 88 487 110,91. The total amount of payment is 

KZT 201 740 014,96. 

MAIN GOALS AND OBJECTIVES FOR THE NEXT YEAR  

 

 By 2018, the Bank aims to enter the 5 top banks of the Republic of Kazakhstan in terms of the 

level and quality of customer service and for this purpose the Bank as a whole plans the following: 

 creating a platform for the development of the Bank's technological ability in the form of a 
well-designed target operating model of the Bank; 

 expanding the Bank's presence in the regions to create and develop a universal retail bank 
and a corporate bank; 

 expanding the network of physical sales channels and customer service (increase the 
number of branches, units, cash desks, ATMs) to ensure accessibility to its customers; 

 expanding the staff and preparing a team of trained managers for quality customer 
service; 

 modernizing the IT infrastructure of the Bank taking into account the Bank's vision; 

 expanding the list and organize the work of the Bank's agents through direct sales 
channels. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Card business 

MB/IB 

Processes and objectives implemented 
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CONTACT INFORMATION 

Head office of Bank of Astana JSC:  22 Koktem-2 micro-district, Almaty, Republic of Kazakhstan, 050040 
Phone: 8 (727) 259-60-60 
Fax: 8 (727) 395-01-54 
E-mail: info@bankastana.kz 
https://www.bankastana.kz 
 
Auditor of Bank of Astana JSC: 

BDO Kazakhstan LLP 
6 Gabdullina Street, Almaty, Republic of Kazakhstan, 050013 
Tel .: +7 727 331 31 34 
Fax: +7 727 331 31 35 
E-mail: info@bdokz.com 
 
 
Registrar of Bank of Astana JSC 
Uniform registrar of securities JSC 
30A/3 Satpayev Street, Bostandyk district, Almaty, 050040 
Phone: 8 (727) 272-47-60 
Fax: 8 (727) 272-47-60, ext 230 
E-mail: info@tisr.kz 
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Statement of the management of responsibility for preparation and approval of the financial
statements for the year ended on 31 December 20'17.

The following statement, which must be considered together with description of obligations of the
auditors contained in the submitted report of independent auditors, is made for the purpose of
division of responsibilities of auditors regarding the financial stalements of "Bank of Astana,, JSC
(hereinafter - the "Bank").

The management of the Bank shatt be [iabte for preparation of the financiaI statements retiabty
representing in atI materiaI aspects financiaI position of the Ban[i as at 31 December 2017, as wetl
as the results of its activity, cash ftow and changes in the capital for the period then ended, in
accordance with the lnternationaI FinanciaI Reporting Standards (hereinafter - the IFRS).

when preparing the financial statements, the management sha[[ be liabte for:

. setection of proper accounting principtes and their consecutive apptication;

. use of reasonabte estimations and calcutations;

. compliance with the requirements of the IFRS or disclosure of a[[ materia[ deviations from the
IFRS jn the notes to the financiaI statements; and

r preparation of the financiaI statements based on assumptiorr that
activities in the foreseeable future, except cases, when such
acceptable.

The management sha[[ atso be liable for:

. development, imptementation and
control system in the Bank;

ensuring functioning of effective and reliabte internal

o maintenance of the accounting system allowing preparing at any time the information about
financial position with sufficient degree of accuracy and ensuring conformance of the financial
statements with the requirements of the IFRS;

. keeping accounting records in accordance with the legistation of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan;

. taking actions withjn timits of its competence for the purprose of protection of the Bank's
i nterests;

. detecting and preventing fraud and other abuses.

On 1 March 2018, these financial statements for the period endecl on 31 December 2017 have been
approved by the Bank's Management and signed on its behatf by:

On behalf of the Bank's management

Chief Accountant

Seal

Sh.K. Kurmanbayeva

the Bank wit[ continue its
assumption is not tegatty
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of "Bank of Astana" Joint-Stock Company.

Qualified opinion

We have audited the financial statements of "Bank of Astana" JSC (hereinafter referred to as the
Bank) consisting of the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the statements of
profit or [oss and other comprehensive income, changes in capital and cash ftow for the period
then ended, as wetl as the notes inctuding basic provisions of the accounting poticy and the other
exptanatory information.

ln our opinion, with the exception of possibte inftuence of the circumstances described in section
"Basis for expressing quatified opinion" of our report, the apptied financial statements reliabty
present in atl material aspects financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2017, as we[[ as its
financial resutts and cash ftow for the period then ended, in accordance with the lnternational
Financia[ Reporting Standards ("lFRS").

Basis for expressing qualified opinion

We coutd not get sufficient evidences to confirm assumptions used by the management, when
determining provision for impairment and, accordingty, with respect to amount of impairment
[osses for granted credits and other assets.

We coutd not get sufficient audit evidences retating to the agreement of assignment of receivabtes
on credits to the total amount of 9,568,185 thousand tenge with respect to influence of the
transaction on the statement of profit and loss for 2017 and cost of assets obtained against
repayment of that debt after the reporting date as stated in Note 19.

lnftuence of those deviations from the requirements of the lnternationa[ Financia[ Reporting
Standards on the financiaI statements was not determined.

We have carried out audit in accordance with the lnternational Standards on Audit ("15A"). ln
accordance with those standards, our responsibitities are described hereinafter in the section
"Responsibitity of the auditor for audit of the financial statements" of our report. We are
independent in retation to the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics of the Professional
Accountants of the lnternational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (the Code of the IESBA)

and we have comptied with the other ethic obtigations in accordance with the Code of the
IESBA. We betieve that audit evidences obtained by us are sufficient and proper to be a basis
for expressing our opinion.

Paragraph attracting attention

Without any reservations in our opinion, we draw attention to the [ega[ proceeding with
"Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP described in Note 31 to the financiaI statements. Our opinion was
not modified with respect to that circumstance.

As it is further stated in Note 1 (d), the current corporate accounts and on-demand deposits inctude
the amount of 88,658,705 thousand tenge as at 31 December 2017, which are payabte on demand
to one counterparty. Based on exchange of the information with the mentioned counterparty, as

we[[ as taking into consideration the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the Bank does not
expect that batance to be futty withdrawn within at teast next two years. However, in case that
amount is withdrawn by that counterparty through lump-sum payment, beyond the terms and
conditions of concluded Agreement, this may affect abitity of the Bank to observe the fixed
externaI tiquidity ratios. ln addition, as disctosed in this note, to ensure tiquidity the Bank is abte

ToBaphqecrBo c orpaxrrerroi orBercrBeHHocrbrc "BDO Kazakhstan", JaperhcrprpoBaHHoe B cooTBercrBhI c 3axoHoAarenbcrBoM Pecny6rtrKh Ka3axcraH,
ff8rfielcH yqacrHhxoM MexAyHapoAHoro o6beA[HeHtra B0O lnternational L]mrLed, 6pxraHcKoTo o6uecrBa c orBercrBeHHocTbrc, orpaxrrexxoi rapaxrtei ero
ycacrHXxog, h nBnflercn gacrbp MexAyHapoAnoi cerr HerBrcrMbtx xoMnaHxi BDO

BDO Kazakhstan, a timited liabitity partnershtp, registered under the Laws ol the Repubtic oF Kazakhstan, is a member of BDO lnternational Limited, a UX
(:ompany timited by guarantee, and forms part of the InternatronaI BDO network of lndependent member firms



to attract atternative sources of funding, which may inctude deposits of naturat persons and [ega[
entities, funds raising in the inter-bank market, setttement of the credit portfolio securitization
transactions or security of credit portfotio repayment. Our opinion was not modified with respect
to this circumstance.

Key audit issues

Key audit issues shat[ mean issues, which, according to our professionaI opinion, were the most
important for our audit of the financial statements for the current period. These issues were
considered in the context of our audit of the financial statement:; in general and at the time of
preparation of our opinion on these statements, and we do not express separate opinion on these
issues. With the exception of the circumstances described in sections "Basis for expressing
quatified opinion", we have ascertained that there are no other key audit issues requiring
disctosure in our report.

Other information

The management shatI be tiabte for the other information. The other information sha[[ inctude
information contained in the annual account for "Kazakhstan Stock Exchange" JSC, but it does not
inctude the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The annual account supposedty
witt be submitted to us after the date of this auditors' report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not extend to the ol-her information and we do not
make conctusion ensuring in any way assurance in relation to this information.

ln connection with audit of the financiaI statements carried out by us, our obtigation consists in
review of the other information as far as it is obtained and consi,Ceration in this regard whether
there are materiaI discrepancies between the other information and the financiaI statements or
our knowtedge obtained in the course of the audit, and whether the other information contains
other evidences of materiaI misrepresentations.

Responsibility of the management of the Bank and persons in clrarge of corporate governance
for the financial statements

The management shatl be responsibte for preparation and retiabte presentation of the mentioned
financial statements in accordance with the IFRS, as wetl as for the internal contro[ system, which
the management considers necessary for preparing the financiaI statements not containing
material misrepresentations due to unfair acts or errors.

When preparing the financial statements, the management shatl be tiabte for evatuating abitity of
the Bank to constantty continue its activities, disctosing, where appropriate, the information
retating to a going concern and preparing the statements on the basis of an assumption on a going

concern, with the exception of cases, where the management intends to liquidate the Bank, to
terminate its activities or where it has not any other reaI alternative, except for tiquidation or
termination of activities.

The persons in charge of corporate governance shatI be tiabte for supervising preparation of the
financiaI statements of the Bank.

Responsibility of the auditor for audit of the financial statements

Our goal is to get reasonable assurance that the financial statements do not contain materjal
misstatements due to unfair acts or errors and to issue the auditor's conclusion containing our
opinion. Reasonable assurance represents a high degree of assurance, but it does not mean a

guarantee that the audit carried out in accordance with the lnternational Standards on Audit
atways reveats materia[ misrepresentations, if any. Misrepresentations may resutt from unfair acts
or errors and shatl be deemed materiat, if it is possibte to reasonabrly assume that they may affect,
separatety or in the aggregate, the users'economic decisions made on the basis of these financial
statements.



ln the context of the audit carried out in accordance with the lnternational Standards on Audit, we
have used the professional judgement and kept professional scepticism throughout the period of
audit. Moreover, we take the fottowing actions:

- to detect and assess risks of material misrepresentations in the financial statements due to
unfair acts or errors; to devetop and perform audit procedures in response to those risks; to get
audit evidences sufficient and appropriate to be basis to exprerss our opinion. A risk of faiture
to detect material misrepresentation as a result of unfair acts is; higher than a risk of failure to
detect materiaI misrepresentation as a result of error, as unfilir acts may include coltusion,
fatsification, detiberate omission, misrepresentation of information or actions in circumvention
of the internaI control system;

- to understand the internal control system being important for the audit in order to develop
audit procedures relevant under the circumstances, but not to express an opinion on efficiency
of the internal control system of the Bank;

- to evatuate appropriateness of the apptied accounting poticy and reasonableness of accounting
estjmates and respective disctosure of the information prepared by the management;

- to make a conclusion on lawfutness of apptication by the manergement of an assumption on a
going concern, and on the basis of obtained audit evidences - a conctusion on existence of
substantiaI uncertainty in connection with events or con<Jitions, which may resu[t in
considerabte doubts about abitity of the Bank to constantly continue its activities. lf we
conctude on existence of substantiaI uncertainty, we must attract attention in our auditor's
conctusion to respective disclosure of information in the financiaI statements or modify our
opinion, in case such disctosure of information is undue. Our ,conctusions are based on audit
evidences obtained before the date of our auditor's conctusion. However, the future events or
conditions may resutt in inabitity of the Bank to constantty continue its activities;

- to evaluate representation of the financia[ statements in generat, structure and contents
thereof, inctuding disctosure of information, as wetI as wherther the financiaI statements
represent the undertying operations and events so as to ensure retiabte representation thereof.

We exchange information with the persons in charge of corporate governance by providing them,
inter atia, with the information about planned scope and tenms of the audit, as wetl as

considerabte observations based on the resutts of the audit, inctuding significant deficiencies in
the interna[ controtsystem, which we have found out in the course of the audit.

We also make statement for the persons in charge of corporate go\/ernance that we have complied
with att respective ethic requirements with respect to independence and informed those persons

about att retations and other issues, which may be reasonabty considered as affecting
independence of the auditor, and where necessary - respective pre,caution measures.

Out of issues, which we have informed to the persons in chargr: of corporate governance, we
determine the issues, which are the most important for the audit of the financiaI statements for
the current period and, accordingty, are the key issues of the aurjit. We describe those issues jn

our auditor's conctusion, except for the cases, where pubtic discl,osure of the information about
those issues is prohibited by the law or regutatory act, or where in rare instances we conctude that
the information about any issue must not be disclosed in our conctusion, as one can reasonably
assume that negative consequences of disclosure of such inforrnation witt go beyond pubticty
significant benefit from disctosure thereof.



Orazgatiyeva Assem is the leader of the audit engagement based on the results of which this

independent auditors' report has been issued.

BDO Kazakhstan LLP

State [icense of the Committee of financial
control of the Ministry of Finance of the
Repubtic of Kazakhstan No.1 5003448 dated 1 9

February 201 5 to carry out audit activity

"01 " March 201 8

No.MO-0000178

Commission f or
of RK on 21.01.2014

Buitding 6, Gabduttin Street,

Atmaty City, Repubtic of Kazakhstan



"Bank of Astana" JSC

Statement of profit o: loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended on 31 December

2017, thousand tenge

Note For the'year ended For the year ended
on 31 December on 31 December

2017 2016

lnterest incomes

lnterest expenses

Net interest income

Fee incomes

Fee expenses

Net fee income

Net profit on foreign exchange transactions

Net profit on transactions with trading securities

Other operating incomes

Other operating exPenses

Operating incomes

lmpairment losses

Expenses for personneI

Other generaI administrative expenses

Profit before taxes
Expense on income tax

Profit for the period

Other comprehensive income, less income tax

Items, which are or may be subsequentty
rectassified as parts of profit or loss:

Provision for revatuation of financiaI assets

avaitabte for sate
- net change of fair vatue

Items, which may not be subsequently rectassified

as parts of profit or loss:

Provision for revatuation of land and buitdings

- net change of fair vatue

Other comprehensive income (loss) for the
period, less income tax

Total comprehensive income for the period

4

4

5

6

34,131,032
(19,749,101)

26,980,845
(19,921 ,595)

14,381,931 7,O59,25O

3,821,554
(1,932,071)

2,082,616
(474,419)

'1,889,483 1,608,197
509,277

(8'15,628)

6,936,1 53

(3,346,937)

194,878
(1 96,588)

279,048
(993,274)

8

8

9

10

11

12

19,554,279 7,951,561
(6,872,627)
(2,317 ,590)
(8,949,126\

(474,927)
(1,857,848)
(4,279,396)

1,414,941
(99,689)

1,339,390
(474,375)

1,315,252 865,015

80'l 129,925

4,902,803
4,903,604 129,925

6,218,856 994,940

25 43.6 43.2

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income must be considered together with the notes'

which shaLt be integraI parts of these financiaI statements'

Earnings per share
Basic and dituted



"Bank of Astana" JSC

lStatement of financial position for the year ended on 31 December Z0l7, thousand tenge

Note

'13

14

15

16

17

17

17

18

19

31.12.2017 31.12.2016

Cash and cash equivatents

Financial instruments at fair vatue the changes in
which are booked as parts of profit or loss for the
period

Financia[ assets avaitable for sate

Credits and advances granted/paid to the banks and
other financiaI institutions
Credits granted to customers
-Credits granted to corporate customers
-Credits granted to small and medium-scale
companies
-Credits granted to retaiI customers

Fixed and intangible assets

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILlTIES

Accounts and deposits of banks and other financiaI
institutions
Current accounts and deposits of customers
- Current accounts and deposits of corporate
customers
- Current accounts and deposits of retaiI customers

Accounts payabte on REPO transactions

Deferred tax tiabitity
Other tiabitities
Total liabilities
CAPITAL

Share capitaI
Treasury shares purchased from sharehotders

Additionat paid capitaI

Provision for covering general banking risks

Provision for revatuation of financial assets
avaitabte for sale

Provision for revatuation of land and buitdings

339,682,1 33 361,0O4,637

65,632,908

7,945,284

626,790

527,738

16,290,532

130,973,221

22,625,572
27,471,595

67,588,493

1 39,080,652

2,974,744

6,611,745

30,245,467

107,744,066

43,679,127

4,347,900
26,420,946

20 20,097,849

193,682,359

71,128,486

641,658

1,447 ,133
4,768,195

31,099,930

751 ,569,087

44,013,370

121,743

2,474,502

71

21

22

17

23

291,265,680 329,278,632

24

24

42,085,468

(112,895)

957,976

1 00,800

5,201 ,251
1 93,853

34,785,467

(6,758,130)

(1 1 2,895)

957,976

99,999

298,448

2,455,140

48,416,453 31,726,OO5

339,682,1 33 361,O04,637

Shynar Kabduatiy'e Kurmanbayeva

Chief Accountant

Statement of cash flow for the year must be considered together with the notes, which shatl be

integral parts of these financial statements 
g

Retained profit
Total capital
Totat liabilities

Acting Chairman of



"Bank of Astana" JSC

lJtatement of cash ftow for the year ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

For the year ended For the year ended
on 31 December on 31 December

2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITY
Received fee
Paid fee
Received commission fee
Paid commission fee
Net revenue from operations with financiaI instruments
at fair vatue the changes in which are booked as parts
cf profit or loss for the period
Net revenue on foreign exchange transactions
Cther payments and other revenue, net amount
Payments to personnel
Cther generaI administrative payments

(lncrease)/decrease in operating assets
Credits and advances granted/paid to banks and other
financiaI institutions
Credits granted to customers
Other assets
lncrease/(decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts and deposits of banks and other financial
i nsti tuti ons
Current accounts and deposits of customers
Accounts payabte on REPO transactions
Other [iabitities
Net cash from operating activity before income tax
Paid income tax
Cash from operating activity

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITY
Sate (Purchase) of financial assets avaitabte for sale
Purchase of fixed and intangible assets
CapitaI expenditure
Fixed asset revatuation
Sate of fixed and intangible assets
Use of cash in investment activity

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITY
Revenue from share issue
Revenue from attocation of purchase shares
Purchased ordinary shares
Purchase of subordinated bonds
Cash from financial activity
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of changes of foreign exchange rates on amount of
cash and cash equiva
Cash and cash
Cash and cash
(Note 13)

ing of the period

(68,095,325) 94,239,532

(68,325,253) 93,673,862

25,340,466
(19,299,725)

3,570,122
\i.1,867 ,726)
l|8,760,912)

469,695
3,589 ,216

1i,,2,293,661)

1i,.7,278,234\

5,725,741

19,670,733
(47 ,142,797)

(11 ,141 ,099)

(3i1,081,970)
641,658

71,019,770
(19,220,900)

2,079,099
(494,502)

99,332

418,257
(714,176\

(1,880,221 )

(3,718,970)

6,972,666

(43,583,692)
(2,064,012)

(14,961,119)

149,852,498

435,5021,814,178

2,197,699
(1 8,004,833)

172,469

(1,040,620)
(2,635,030)
(3,027 ,879)

289
(15,634,676) (6,703,240)

7,3oo, oo1

3,575,190
(403,589)

'14,000,001

(6,758,130)

10,471,592
(73,488,338)

40,593

1 39,080,652

87,188,495
(104,626)

51,996,783
the period 65,632,908 139,080,652

Mukhtar Seri

Acting Chairman Chief Accountant

Statement of cash ftow for the year must be considered together with the notes, which shatt be
integraI parts of these financiaI statements

10
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1

(a)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decenrber 2017, thousand tenge

Basic provisions

Primary activity

"Bank of Astana" JSC (hereinafter - the "Bank") was estabtished in the Repubtic of Kazakhstan as a
joint stock company under the name "Bank "Astana-Finance" JSC in 2008. The primary activities are
deposit taking, customer accounts opening and maintenance, lending, issuing guarantees, cash and
setttement operations and transactions with securities and foreigrr currency. The activities of the
Bank are regutated by the National Bank of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan (hereinafter - the "RK NB").
The Bank has general license No.'1.1.257 dated 6 November 2009, which was re-registered on 24
August 201 1 .

ln accordance with Regulation of the National Bank of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan No.79 dated 1 Juty
2011 the Bank's license on deposit taking, individuats' bank account opening and maintenance was
revoked. As the resutt of this, during the year ended on 31 December 201 1 the Bank closed a[[
current accounts and deposits of individuats. On 31 March 2014 ther Bank received [icense No.1.1.10
from the NationaI Bank of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan on deposit taking and individuats' accounts
maintenance and resumed these activities. On 10 March 2015 the B,ank was re-registered as "Bank of
Astana" JSC.

The Bank's legaI address is: at 22, Koktem-2, Atmaty, 050040, the Flepubtic of Kazakhstan.

The Bank has eight branches from which it conducts its business throughout the Repubtic of
Kazakhstan. The majority of the assets and tiabitities of the Bank are in the Repubtic of Kazakhstan.
The bonds and ordinary shares issued by the Bank are listed on Kazarkhstan Stock Exchange.

Shareholders

Asat31 December2017 and 31 December2016, thefollowingsharerhotdersownedissuedshares:

31 Decembe:r 2017 31 December 2016
%%

(b)

Shareholders
O. Tokhtarov
D. Kumpeissov
T. Kashkinbayev
R. Shadiyev
Other

52.39

0.04

,17.57

61.07
6.58
5.52
5.07

21.76
100.00 100.00

On 19 March 2010, the Agency for regulation and supervision of financial market and financia[
organizations signed a muttilateraI agreement with the Bank, "Astana-Finance" J5C and other
subsidiaries prohibiting certain intergroup transactions.

On 19 May 2010 the Company transferred 100% of its sharehotding into the trust management of
Sovereign Weatth Fund "Samruk Kazyna" JSC (hereinafter - the "Fund"). The Fund undertook to
perform the Bank's sharehotder functions on a temporary basis for the shortest of 12 months and the
period up to the date on which the Company's restructuring ptarr is approved by the Kazakhstan
court and att the actions agreed in the restructuring plan are implernented.

On 71 January 2013 "Astana Finance" JSC and two individuals, Mr. K.Kh. Rakishev and
Mr. O.T. Tokhtarov, signed an agreement on sate of 100% shares of the Bank. On 3 May 2013, Astana
Finance disposed 49% of its sharehotding in the Bank, when the share sale deal was approved by the
Committee for controI and supervision of financiaI market and financiaI organizations, and new
sharehotders were granted the status of major sharehotders. The disposal of remaining 5'l% issued
shares was subject to satisfaction of the conditions precedent the Company compteting the
restructuring. The Bank's management determined that atthough "Astana Finance" JSC owned 51%

shares of the Bank as at 31 December 2013, it lost contro[ over tthe Bank when new shareholders
acquired 49% shares in the Bank on 3 May 2013. This is because the Company's status of a bank
hotding company has been previousty revoked by the Committee and, as a result, the Company's
rights to vote at the General Meeting of Sharehotders are suspended.

On 31 December 2014, the new shareholders purchased additional 100,000 shares in the Bank.

Taking into account the satisfaction of the conditions prescribed in the Restructuring Ptan of
"Astana Finance" JSC approved by the RK NB and the Speciatized lnter-district Economic Court of
Atmaty (hereinafter - the "Court") on 24 Aprit 2015 and 27 Aprit 2015, respectively, the Court
decided to complete restructuring on 2 June 2015. The restructuring process was compteted on 23
June 2015. As a result, "Astana Finance" JSC sotd remaining 51%lo individuats.

13



(c)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decenrber 2017, thousand tenge

On 29 Juty 20'15, Mr. K.Kh. Rakishev also futty disposed of his share of ownership by setting 2,362,792
ordinary shares to minority shareholders of the Bank.

On 16 November 2015, Mr. O.T. Tokhtarov purchased 7,200,000 ordinary shares in the Bank. On 4
December 2015, Mr. O.T. Tokhtarov sotd 1,485,047 ordinary :;hares in the Bank to Mr. T.l.
Kashkinbaev.

On 28 June 2016, the Bank issued 6,400,000 ordinary shares of the Bank, and 4,699,515 of these
shares were purchased by Mr. O.T. Tokhtarov.

On 30 September 2016, Mr. O.T. Tokhtarov purchased 8,333,334 or<Jinary shares in the Bank.

During 2016, the Bank made repurchases of its own shares in the to[a[ quantily of 2,851,199.

|n2017 the Bank increased the number of authorised shares up to 100,000,000 shares.

On 7 June 2017, Mr. O.T. Tokhtarov purchased additional.1,739,13'l ordinary shares in the Bank, for
consideration amounting to KZT 2,000,001 thousand, which was settted in cash.

On 30 June 2017, the Bank increased the share capitat by the amount of 5,300,000 thousand tenge
by attocating the Bank's ordinary shares among pubtic investors in '"Kazakhstan Stock Exchange" JSC,
there were 4,606,696 aItocated shares.

For the year 2017 6,347,827 shares were issued to the totaI amount of 7,300,001 thousand tenge.
Likewise, 30,636 shares to the total amount of 403,589 thousand tenge were purchased over the
stated period.

On 15 December 2017, the Bank increased the share capitat by the amount of 7,161,719 thousand
tenge by offering 2,88'1,835 ordinary shares of the Bank to pubtic investors on the Moscow Stock
Exchange, which were previously purchased by the Bank.

Conditions for carrying out financial and business activity in the Republic of Kazakhstan

The Bank carries out its activity primarily in Kazakhstan. Therefore, the Bank is exposed to
economic and financiaI risks in the markets of Kazakhstan, which demonstrate specific features
inherent in devetoping markets. Lega[, tax and statutory acts a,re being improved, but may be
differentty interpreted and is subject to often changes, which, in combination with the other
deficiencies of the legaI and fiscaI systems, make additionaI diffir:utties for the banks carrying out
their activities in Kazakhstan. Moreover, recent considerabte impairment of the Kazakhstan tenge
and reduction of price for oi[ in the wortd markets increased the extent of uncertainty of the
conditions for carrying out business activity.

The apptied financiaI statements present the management's estimation of possibte influence of
existing conditions for carrying out financia[ and business activil-y on the results of activity and
financiaI position of the Bank. Further devetopment of the conditions for carrying out financial and
business activity may differ from the management's estimation.

Kazakhstan banking sector risk and going concern assumption

After devatuation of the tenge in 201 5, the Kazakhstan banking sector experienced significant
problems, and during the years 2016 and 2017 two commercial tranks, as it happened, faced the
difficutty when futfitting their obtigations to the creditors. These events increased the overall extent
of uncertainty in the banking sector, which reveated themsetves in contraction of the tiquidity
markets and considerabte outftow of deposits for some banks. The Nationa[ Bank of Kazakhstan atso
recentty announced of its plans concerning the rehabititation program in order to render support
those banks, which experience deterioration in their asset quatity.

During the years 2014-2016 the prices for energy resources considerably reduced with the result of
significant decrease in export revenues. On 20 August 201 5, the Government and the RK NB
announced of transition to a new monetary poticy based on freely floating tenge rate and abotished
the exchange rate band. As a resutt, the tenge considerabty devatued towards basic foreign
currencies. High tevet of dottarization in Kazakhstan economy was stit[ evidenced during September-
December 2015 and January-February 2016 that resutted in considerable deficit of tiquidity in tenge
in the banking system, the record-breaking levets of the fee rates in the money market and
suspension of credit activities. ln February 2016, the RK NB introduced the base rate equaI to 17% t
2% and transited to the poticy of inflation targeting. The actions tarken by the RK NB aItowed solving
the probtem of insufficient tiquidity of tenge in the system and reducing the average inftation rate.

ln the middte of January 2016, the international rating agency Standard & Poor's considerabty cut its
forecasts with respect to the prices for oil during 2016-2019. Since economy of Kazakhstan

(d)
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 3'1 Decentber 2017, thousand tenge

substantia[[y depends on oiI and gas sector, Standard &. Poor's expects stagnation or very
insignificant GDP increase.

As at 31 December 2017,Lhe basic rate of the RK NB was equal I'c 9.25% t 1% (as at 31 December
2016: 12% t 1%). Notwithstanding sudden high growth of Kazakhsl:an GDP f or 2017, the assets and
deposits of the banking system for that period reduced, and the credit activities continued
stagnating. From beginning of 2017, the banking sector of Kazakhstan began the period of rather
scaled transformation, which already began to significantty afferct the showings of the banking
system. Since 2017 the equity capitaI adequacy criteria were raised, supervision and response
measures on the part of a regutator got stringent, and from beginning of 201 8 the banks must transit
to the new system of accounting for formation of provisions for credit toss (IFRS 9). Such changes in
many respects forced the bank to consolidate.

The Bank's management monitors current changes in economic situation and takes actions, which it
deems necessary to keep stabitity and devetopment of business of the Bank in the foreseeabte
future. However, at the moment it is difficutt to determine the effect of changes in economic
situation on the future resutts of activity and financial position of the Bank.

As at 3'1 December 2017, according to the management estimatiorr there is the capitaI sufficient to
absorb credit losses to the amount of 15,000,000 thousand tenge (11016: 10,000,000 thousand tenge)
before the fixed regutatory capital ratio (k'l ) is distorted.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the management reveated the evidences of impairment equal to
approximatety 56.91% of credits composing the portfolio of corporate credits of the Bank (2016:
35%). The most of those impaired credits was secured by pledges, inctuding cash deposit, property,
land ptots or other [ess liquid assets. The Bank catcutated potentiall future revenues from disposal of
such security with the hetp of independent appraisats, and this was the key assumption, which
affected measurement of impaired credits and required considerable professionaI judgment.

Actions taken by the Bank to minimize the credit risk during 2017 are disctosed in note 26(c). They
inctude support of sufficient [eve[ of security of corporate credits and continuous monitoring of the
credit portfotio. The management atso tries to increase the [evel of the regutatory capitaI of the
Bank in order to mitigate sufficient buffer to absorb possibte future, additionaI credit losses, if any.

Liquidity risk

As exptained in Note 26(d), as at 3'l December 2017 the current corporate accounts and on-demand
deposits inctude the amount of 88,658,705 thousand tenge (as at 31 December 2016:85,855,496
thousand tenge), which is payable on demand to one counterparty. On the basis of exchange of the
information specifying the counterparty the Bank does not e.xpect that batance to be fulty
withdrawn during at least next two years, neverthetess, the tiquidity risk is significantly
concentrated.

These financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Bank wi[[ continue to keep its
base of customer deposits. However, the Bank, together with the other banks carrying out activities
in this sector, remains exposed to the risk that in case of ma:;sive and unexpected outflow of
customer deposits, such outftow wit[ adversety affect activities of the Bank.

Actions taken by the Bank to manage tiquidity risk inctude support of substantiat tiquid assets in the
form of cash and cash equivatents and continuous monitoring of those customer deposits, which
represent considerabte concentrations of tiquidity risk as stated in note 26(d). Moreover, the major
sharehotder of the Bank informed that it si ready to grant additional financing, if necessary, in order
to assist in case tiquidity is insufficient, if such assistance becomes required.

The management took the following additionat actions to eliminate the credit risk and tiquidity risk
during the period after 31 December 2017:

o the management continues to raise the [eve[ of ptedges hetd as security of the portfolio of
corporate credits;

o the management reviewed its credit facitity agreements made with the other counterparties
whereby the funds may be used in case of tiquidity deficit;

o keeping the highty liquid assets such as "Reverse REPO" transactions, interbank deposits and
loans.
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(a)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decentber 2017 , thousand tenge

Basic principles for preparing the financial statements

Statement of conformance to the IFRS

The apptied financia[ statements have been prepared in accordance with the lnternational Financial
Reporting Standards (hereinafter - the IFRS).

Basis for value measurement

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting principte at actual
costs, with the exception of the financial instruments measured at fair vatue the changes in which
are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period, financial assets avaitabte for sate, land and
buitdings booked at fair value.

FunctionaI currency and representation currency of details of the financial statements

The functional currency of the Bank is the Kazakhstan tenge, which, being the national currency of
the Repubtic of Kazakhstan, demonstrates the best the economic substance of the most of
operations settted by the Bank and retated circumstances influencing on its activities.

The Kazakhstan tenge is the currency of representation of details of these financia[ statements, as
wett.

At[ detaits in the financial statements are rounded off to the proximate thousand tenge.

Use of professional judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions

Preparation of the financiaI statements in accordance with the IFRS requirements obtiges the
management to make judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions affecting apptication of
the accounting poticy and the amount of assets and tiabitities, inr:omes and expenses presented in
the financial statements. The actual results may differ from the merntioned estimations.

Estimations and undertying assumptions are reviewed on a regutar basis. Adjustments in estimations
are recognized in that reporting period in which respective estirnations are reviewed and in any
subsequent periods, which they retate to.

The information with respect to material uncertain estimations and critical reasonabte judgements
when applying the principtes of the accounting poticy is given in Note'lT "Credits granted to
customers" and Note 19 "Other assets".

Change of the accounting policy and procedure for data presentation

The Bank adopted the "Project on review of the requirements for disctosure of information"
(amendments to IAS 1 ) with the date of the initiaI apptication on 1 January 2016. These
amendments clarify the materiatity principte. ln particular, it is expticitty stated that the entities
must detaiI presentation of items of the statement of financia[ position and the of the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, if such presentation give the users of the financial
statements more useful information; and may combine the items in the statement of financial
position and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, if the items
determjned in IAS 1 are insignificant.

Basic provisions of the accounting policy

The Bank consistently apptied the provisions of the accountinr3 poticy described betow in a[[
reporting periods presented in these financiaI statements.

Foreign currency

The foreign exchange transactions are transtated into respective 1'unctional currencies of the Bank
at the foreign exchange rates prevaiting as at the date of transactions. The monetary assets and
tiabitities denominated in the foreign currency as at the reporting date are transtated into the
functiona[ currency at the exchange rate prevaiting as at that reporting date. Foreign exchange gain
or loss on monetary items represents a difference between the amortized cost of respective item in
functional currency at the beginning of the reporting period adjusted for interest charged at
effective interest rate and payments for the reporting period and the amortized cost of that item in
foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of that reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and tiabitities denominated in foreign currency and measured at fair vatue are
transtated into functionaI currency at the foreign exchange rates prevaiting as at the dates of the
fair vatue measurement. Non-monetary assets and tiabitities denom'inated in foreign currency and

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)
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booked at actuaI costs are translated into functionaI currency at the foreign exchange rate
prevaiting as at the date of transaction.

The foreign exchange differences resutting from transtation into foreign currency are booked as
parts of profit or loss (with the exception of differences arising at transtation of equity financial
instruments avaitabte for sate, with the exception of cases, whr=re the difference arises due to
impairment, in which case the foreign exchange differences booked as parts of the other
comprehensive income are rectassified as parts of profit or loss), the financiaI tiabitity booked as
hedging of net investments in foreign transactions (if hedging is effective), or respective cash flows
meeting the requirements for hedging operations (if hedging is erffective) booked as parts of the
other comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash bank notes and coins, cash at ATMs, ctear balances (accounts
[ike "Nostro") with the RK NB and other banks, as welI as highty [iquid financiaI assets with not less
than 3-month maturity, which are not exposed to significant risk of change of the fair value and are
used by the Bank to settte short-term liabilities. The statutory provision with the RK NB is not
considered as cash equivatent in connection with restrictions in use thereof. Cash and cash
equivatents are booked at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.

Financial instruments

Classification of financial instruments

The financial instruments measured at fair vatue the changes in which are booked as parts of profit
or loss for the period represent the financialassets or liabilities, wlrich:

- are purchased or arise mainty for the purpose of sate or purchas,e in the near future;
- are parts of the portfolio of the jointty controtled identifiabte financial instruments with respect

to which there is an evidence in the recent past of derivation of profit in the short term;
- are derivative (with the exception of derivative financiaI instruments, which are financiaI

guarantee agreements or created and actually used hedging instruments, which are effective); or

- at initiaI recognition are ctassified as measured at fair vatue the change in which are booked as
parts of profit or loss for the period.

The Bank may ctassify financiaI assets and tiabitities as measure at fair value the changes in which
are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period, if one of the fottowing conditions is met:
- the assets or [iabilities are managed, measured and booked in internaI accounts on the basis of a

fair vatue;

- such an approach futly or substantiatty etiminates the mismatch effect in the accounting records,
which woutd exist otherwise; or

- an asset or a tiabitity has embedded derivative financial instrurrent, which significantty changes
cash ftows, which woutd be expected under an agreement in ther absence thereof.

At[ derivative financiaI instruments held for trade with positive fair vatue, as wetl as purchased
option contracts, are booked in the financiaI statements as assets. A[[ derivative financiaI
instruments hetd for trade with negative fair vatue, as wetl as issued option contracts, are booked in
the financiat statements as liabitities.

The management determines a category in which a financial instrument shoutd be ctassified at
initial recognition thereof. Derivative financia[ instruments and financial instruments ctassified at
initiaI recognition as measured at fair vatue the changes in whicl-r are booked as parts of profit or
loss for the period are not rectassified from the financiaI instrunnents measured at fair vatue the
changes in which are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period. lf the financial assets match
the definition of credits and accounts receivabte, they may be rectassified from the financial
instruments measured at fair value the changes in which are bookerd as parts of profit or [oss for the
period or from the assets avaitabte for sale, if an entity intends and is abte to hold those assets in
the foreseeabte future or to maturity. The other financiaI instruments onty rarety may be
rectassified from the financial instruments measured at fair value the changes in which are booked
as parts of profit or loss for the period. The rare instances are unordinary one-time events, which
wit[ not [ikety repeat in the nearest future.

(c)

(i)
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The credits and accounts receivabte represent non-derivative financiaI assets with fixed or definabte
payments, which are not quoted in actively functioning market, with the exception of those ones,

which the Bank:

- intends to setl immediately or in the very near future;

- ctassifies at initia[ recognition as measured at fair value the changes in which are booked as parts

of profit or loss for the period;

- ctassifies at initiaI recognition as avaitabte for sate; or

- f or which the Bank may not compensate att initiatty made investments due to the reasons other
than credit impairment.

The investments hetd to maturity represent non-derivative financial assets with fixed or definable
payments and fixed maturity date, which the Bank intends and is ;rbte to hotd to maturity, with the
exception of those ones, which:

- the Bank classifies at initiat recognition as measured at fair vatue the changes in which are
booked as parts of profit or loss for the period;

- the Bank ctassifies as avaitabte for sale; or

- match the definition of the credits and accounts receivabte.

The financiaI assets avaitabte for sate represent those non-derivative financiaI assets, which are
ctassified as availabte for sate or do not match the definition of th,e credits and accounts receivable,
investment hetd to maturity or financiaI instruments measured at fair vatue the changes in which
are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period.

(ii) Recognition of financial instruments in the financial statements

The financial assets and tiabitities are booked in the statement of financial position, if the Bank

enters into contractuaI retations the subject matter of which impties the mentioned financial
instruments. A[[ events of standard purchase of the financiaI assets are booked as at the date of
setttements.

(iii) Measurement of value of the financiaI instruments

A financiaI asset or tiabitity is initiatty measured at fair value ptu:;, in the event of a financial asset

or tiabitity not measured at fair vatue the changes in which are booked as parts of profit or loss for
the period, the costs for transaction directty attributed to purchase or issue of a financiaI asset or

tiabitity.

After initial recognition the financiaI assets, inctuding derivative financia[ instruments being the
assets, are measured at their fair vatue without deducting any costs for transactions, which coutd be

incurred as the resutt of sate or other retirement, with the exception of:

- the credits and accounts receivabte, which are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method;

- the investments hetd to maturity, which are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method;

- the investments in equity instruments without market quotations in activety functioning market
the fair value of which may not assessed with a sufficient degree of assurance. such instruments
are booked in the financial statements at actual costs.

At[ financiat tiabitities, with the exception of the financial tiabitities measured at fair vatue the
changes in which are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period and the financia[ tiabitities
arising in case transfer of a financial asset booked at fair value does not meet the criteria of
derecognition, are measured at amortized cost.

(iv) Amortized cost

The amortized cost of a financiaI asset or tiabitity represents a cost at which a financiaI asset or

tiabitity were measured at initiat recognition, less payments rcf a principal amount of a debt
adjusted for an amount of accumutated depreciation of a difference between initiatty recognized

cost and cost at redemption assessed using the effective interest rate method, as wetl as less

impairment loss. Amount of bonuses and discounts, as wetI as costs for transactions are inctuded

into book vatue of a respective instrument and are depreciated brased on effective interest rate for
that instrument.
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(v) Principte of measurement at fair value

l=air vatue represents a price, which woutd resutt at sate of an asset or paid at transfer of a tiabitity

lnder conditions of a transaction settted in organized market between the market participants as at

[he date of measurement at primary-markeior, in the absence therreof, in the most favourabte

market to which the Bank has access'as at the stated date. Fair vatue of tiabitities represents a risk

of defautt therein.

As far as practicable, the Bank assesses a fair value of an instrument using quotations of that

instrument in active market. The market is recognized active, if ,asset or tiabitity transactions are

settted frequentty enough and in u ,otrr" sufficient to determine quotations on a regutar basis'

ln the absence of current quotations in the active market the Bank uses the vatuation methods'

which use to the maximum our"*uuil inprt autu and minimatty use non-obseryabte input data' The

setected vatuation methods inctuJe alt'factors, which the marl'iet participants woutd take into

consideration under these circumstances'

The best evidence of a fair vatue of a financial instrument at irritiat recognition is usua.tty a

tion. lf the Bank ascertains that a

fair vatue is not confirmed bY the
tY and is not based on vatuation
ii initialty measured at fair vatue

itiat recognition and a transaction
rs a Part of Profit or loss during an

moment when measurement 'is

ion is atreadY ctosed'

(vi) Profits and losses arising at subsequent measurement

profits or losses arising at change of a fair vatue of a financial asset or tiabitity are booked as

fottows:

- profit or loss on a financial instrument ctassified as measured at fair vatue the changes in which

are booked as parts of profit or. ioriior the period shatt be bool<ed as a part of profit or loss;

using the effective interest rate method'

profit or loss on financiaI assets and tiabitities booked at amortiz:ed cost shatt be booked as part of

profit or loss in case of derecognition-oiimpairment of a financiaI asset or tiabitity, as wetl as in the

course of accruaI of respective depreciation'

(vii) Derecognition

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset at th
cash ftows on that financia[ asset or when it t
a transaction in which substantiatty atl risks

financiat asset are transferred to another pa

reserve substantia[ part of atl risks and ben

asset and does not reserye control of a fina

with respect to which the requirements for

Bank or is reserved to it, is recognized as a

position. The Bank derecognizes a financiaI

respective contract are discharges or cancetted or expire'

The Bank s and conditions of which it transfers the assets

recognizebutitreservelsa[[orapartofrisksandbenefits
resutting assets. provid'ing reservation a atl or substantiatty

att risks a ognize transferred assets'

When settting transactions under the terms and conditions of which the Bank does not reserve' but

does not transfer substantiatty att risks and benefits resutting from a right of ownership in a financial

asset, that utt"t ii Jerecognized, in case the Bank loses contro[ of an asset'
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lf, upon transfer of an asset, the Bank reseryes control of it, it continues to recognize an asset to

the extent it reserves an interest in an asset to be determined as a de'gree of exposure of the Bank

[o changes in its vatue'

lf the Bank acquires own debt tiabitity, then it is exctuded from the statement of financial position,

and a difference between a book vatue of a tiabitity and paid consideration is inctuded as a part of

profit or loss from earty discharge of a tiabitity.

The Bank writes off the assets, which are recognized non-recoverabte.

(viii) REPO and reverse REPO transactions

The securities sotd under the agreements of sate subject to obtigation to buy back (REPO

transactions) are booked as an operation for fund raising secured with pledge of securities, and the

securities continue to be booked in the statement of financial position, and the tiabitities to

counterparties are inctuded as parts of the accounts payabte on REPO transactions. A difference

between selting price and buy-back price represents interest expense and is booked as part of profit

or loss for the vatidity period of REPO transaction using the effective interest rate method.

Securities purchased under the agreements of purchase subject trr obtigation to setI back (reverse

REpO transactions) are booked as amounts of the accounts receivarbte on reverse REPO transactions

using the effective interest rate method.

lf the assets purchased under the agreements of purchase subject to obligation to sell back are sotd

to third parties, an obtigation to return securities are booked as a tiabitity hetd for trade and

measured at fair vatue.

(ix) Assets and tiabilities offset

The financiaI assets and tiabitities of the Bank are set off and booked in the statement of financiaI

position in reduced form, if there are [ega[ basis for this and the parties intend to settle a debt

througn offset or to dispose of an asset and to discharge a tiabitity simuttaneousty.

(d) Fixed assets

(i) Fixed assets

The items of fixed assets are booked at cost less accumutated depreciation amounts and impairment

losses, with the exception of tand and bujtdings, which are booked at revatued amount as it is

described herei nafter.

ln the event an item of fixed assets consist of several components with different useful [ife, such

components are booked as separate items of fixed assets'

(ii) Revaluation

[and and buitdings are subject to revaluation on a regutar basis. lntervats of revatuation depend on

changes in fair value of buitdings, which are subject to revatuation. lncrease as a resutt of

revatuation in value of land and buitdings ctassified as "Land and buitdings", which increase is

booked as part of the other comprehensive income, with the exception of cases, where previous

decrease as a resutt of revatuation in vatue of the mentioned items booked as part of profit or loss is

compensated. ln this event the resutt of revaluation is booked as part of profit or loss. Decrease as a

resutt of revatuation in vatue of tand and buitdings ctassified as "Land and buitdings", which

decrease is booked as part of profit or loss, with the exception of cases, where previous increase as

a resutt of revatuation in vatue of the mentioned items, which increase is booked as part of the

other comprehensive income, is written off. ln this event the result of revatuation is booked as part

of the other comprehensive income'
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(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is accrued in the straight-tine method during their expected useful life
and is booked as part of profit or loss. Depreciation is accrued from a date of purchase of an item,
and for the items of fixed assets erected using own resources - frclm comptetion of construction of
an item and its readiness for operation. The land ptots are not depreciated. The useful [ives of
different items of fixed assets may be stated as fotlows:

Buitdings

Furniture and equipment
Transport vehictes

Computer equipment

lmprovement of [eased property

(e) lntangible assets

10-100 years;

7-10 years;

7 years;

3-5 years;

3-5 years.

Purchased intangibte assets are booked in the financial statements at actual costs less accumutated
amortization and impairment losses.

Costs to acquire licenses for special software and imptementation thereof are capitatized in a vatue
of a respective intangibte asset.

Amortization on intangibte assets is accrued in the straight-line method during their expected useful
tife and is booked as part of profit or [oss. The useful lives of intarngible assets varies from 3 to 20

years.

(f) Seized assets

Seized assets are accounted for at less of two vatues: actua[ cost or net reatizable value.

Net reatizabte vatue represents supposed (estimated) setling price' of an item of inventories in the
course of ordinary business activity of the Bank, less estimated costs for comptetion of work
performance retating to that item and sate thereof.

(g) Asset impairment

At the end of each reporting period the Bank evatuates whether there are objective evidences of
impairment of a financiaI asset or a group of financiaI assets. ln case there are such evidences, the
Bank measures an amount of any impairment [oss.

A financiaI asset or a group of financiaI assets is impaired, and impairment losses occur provided

onty existence of objective evidences of impairment as a resutt of one or more events occurred afer
initiat recognition of a financial asset ([oss event) and provided that the mentioned event (or events)

had inftuence on expected future cash ftows on a financial asset or a group of financial assets, which

may be evatuated with sufficient degree of retiabitity.

Objective evidences of impairment of the financial assets may inctude defautt in tiabitities (defautt)
or detays in payments by a borrower, borrower's viotation of obtigations under a contract or the
terms and conditions of a contract, restructuring of a financial asset or a group of financial assets on

conditions, which in any other case the Bank woutd not consider, evidences of possibte bankruptcy
of a borrower or issuer, disappearance of active market for a :;ecurity, reduction of vatue of a

cotlateraI or other observabte data retating to a group of assets, s;uch as aggravation of sotvency of
borrowers composing a group or change of economic conditions, which correlate with defautt in
tiabitities (defautt) of the borrowers composing the mentioned group.

Significant or continuous decrease in fair value of an investment irr equity security available for sate

down to vatue betow actual costs for that security is an objective e'vidence of impairment.

(i) Financial assets booked at amortized cost

The financiaI assets booked at amortized cost mainty consist otl the credits and other accounts

receivabte (hereinafter - the credits and accounts receivabte). The Bank regularty tests the credits
and accounts receivabte in order to determine possible impairment. At first the Bank evatuates

existence of objective evidences of impairment separately for credits and accounts receivabte,

which are materiaI on a stand-alone basis, and separatety or jointty for the credits and accounts

receivabte, which are not material on a stand-atone basis. lf the Bank determines that there are not

objective evidences of impairment on a credit or accounts receivabte tested separatety, whether
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they are material or not, the credit or accounts receivabte shatl be inctuded into a group of the

credits and accounts receivable with simitar characteristics of credit risk and tested for impairment

as part of a group of assets on a joint basis. The credits and accounts receivable separatety tested

for impairment, with respect to which impairment loss appears or continues to exist, shatI not be

included into join test for impairment.

ln case there are objective evidences of impairment loss on the credit or accounts receivable, an

amount of loss is measured as a difference between a book value of the credit or accounts

receivabte and current present vatue of expected future cash ftows, inctuding recoverabte amount of
guarantees and co[lateral discounted using initiat effective intere:st rate on the credit or accounts

receivabte. ln accordance with the terms and conditions of conctudecl contracts the cash ftows and

historical experience of losses, which are adjusted on the basis of respective avaitabte information

representing current economic conditions, are basis for determininq expected cash ftows'

ln some cases avaitabte information required to assess an amount of inrpairment loss on the credit or

accounts receivabte may be timited or not meet anymore the current conditions and circumstances.

Something simjtar may occur, in case a borrower experiences finztnciaI difficulties, and a scope of
avaitabte information with respect to simitar borrowers is [imited. ln such events the Bank uses its

experience and judgements in order to assess an amount of impairrnent [oss.

At[ impairment losses from the credits and accounts receivabte are booked as parts of profit or loss

and are subject to recovery onty if subsequent increase in recoverable amount may be objectivety
retated with an event occurred after recognition of impairment [os:;es'

ln case a debt on a credit may not be recovered, a credit shatl be written off at the expense of

respective provision for credit impairment. Such credits (and an'y respective provisions for credit
impairment) are written off after the management determines that clebt on the credits may not be

recovered and atl necessary procedures for recovering a debt on the credits are completed'

(ii) Financial assets booked at actual costs

The financial assets booked at actual costs inctude non-quoted equity instruments composing the

financial assets avaitabte for sate, which are not booked at fair vallue, since their fair value may not

be assessed with sufficient degree of retiabitity. ln case there are objective evidences that such

investments are impaired, impairment loss is catculated as a difference between book vatue of

investments and current present vatue of expected future caslr ftows discounted using current

market rate of return on simitar financial assets.

Att impairment losses on the mentioned investments are booked as parts of profit or loss and are not

subject to recoverY.

(iii) FinanciaI assets available for sale

lmpairment losses from the financial assets avaitabte for sate are recognized through carry-over of

accumutated loss recognized as part of the other comprehensive income, as the parts of profit or

loss as rectassified adjustment. Accumutated loss rectassified from the other comprehensive income

as part of profit or loss represents a difference between purr:hase cost less any payments of

principat amount and depreciation and current fair value less impairment loss previousty recognized

at pait of profit or loss. Changes in provision for impairment retating to time value of money are

booked as a component of interest income. ln case a fair vatue of impaired debt security avaitabte

for sate increases in subsequent period and increase may objectivety retate to an event occurred

after recognition of impairment loss as part of profit or [oss, the irnpairment loss shatl be recovered,

and recovered amount shatt be recognized as part of profit or [oss' However, any subsequent

recovery of fair vatue of impaired equity security ctassified as avajtable for sate is recognized as part

of the other comprehensive income.

(iv) Non-financialassets

The non-financial assets other than deferred taxes are tested for impairment as at each reporting

date. Recoverabte amount of non-financial assets is the larges;t vatue of fair vatue [ess setling

expenses and vatue in use. When calcutating a vatue in use, the cash ftows expected in the future

are discounted to their present vatue using pre-tax discounting rate representing the current market

measurement of time vatue of money and risks specific for that asset or CFGU. When assessing a

vatue jn use, the expected future cash ftows are discounted to their current present vatue using a

discounting rate before taxes, which represents the current market measurement of time vatue of

money anJ risks inherent in that asset. lmpairment loss is recognized if a book vatue of an asset or

its reipective cash ftow generating unit (CFGU) is higher than its e'stimated recoverabte amount.

Att impairment losses from non-financiaI assets are booked as parts of profit or loss and are subject
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[o recovery onty if estimates used at assessment of recoverabte amount have changed' Any

impairmeni toss tf an asset is subject to recovery to the extent a book vatue of an asset does not

exceed such book vatue (tess amortization and deterioration), which woutd exist, if impairment loss

was not booked in the financial statements'

(h) Provisions

of financial position, where the Bank has a [ega[ or constructive

nt and it is probabte that funds diversion witl be required to

of such a tiabitity is significant, then provisions are determined

ftows using a discounting rate before taxes, which represents

time vatue of money and, where appticable, the risks inherent

in that tiabititY.

(i) Liabilities of credit nature

ln the course of the current business activity the Bank assumes contingent credit tiabitities inctuding

unused credit facitities, letters of credil and guarantees and provides other forms of credjt

lnsurance.

Financial guarantees mean contracts obtiging the Bank to make particutar payments compensating a

hotder of a financial guarantee the losses incurred as the resutt of inabitity of an individua[ debtor to

pay on terms fixed by conditions of a debt instrument'

Liabitity on a financiatguarantee is initiatty recognized at fair vatu,e less retated costs for transaction

and is subsequently rieasured at the tirgest of two vatues: amounts recognized initiatty. less

accumutated Aepreciation or amount of provision for possibte [o:;ses on that guarantee. Provisions

for possibte losses on financiaI guarantees and other credit tiabilities are recognized, when losses

are highty probabte and amountiof such losses may be assessed with sufficient degree of retiabitity'

Liabitities on financia[ guarantees and provisions for other credit tiabitities are inctuded into the

other [iabitities.

Liabitities on granting credits are not recognized in the financiaI statements with the exception of

the fottowing:

- tiabitities on granting credits, which the Bank ctassifies as financial tiabitities measured at fair

vatue the changis in w6ich are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period;

- if the Bank has past experience in sates of assets purchased due to tiabitities on granting credits,

shortty after incurrence thereof, simitar tiabitities on grantingl credits attributed to the same

category of instruments are considered as derivative financiaI instruments;

- tiabitities on granting credits the setttement of payments on whrich are made under a contract in

net amount in Jash or through transfer or issue of another financiat instrument;

.tiabititiesongrantingcreditsataratebelowmarketone.

(j) Share caPital

(i) OrdinarY shares

The ordinary shares are ctassified as capitat. Costs directty retated wjth issue of ordinary shares and

options on ,hur", are recognized as decrease ir capita[ less any tax effects'

(ii) Dividends

The Bank,s abitity to dectare and pay dividends shatt be determined in accordance with the

requirements of the tegistation of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan.

Divjdends on ordinary shares are booked as use of retained profit as far as they are declared'

(k) Taxation

lncome tax incl :d tax' lncome tax is booked as part

ofprofitortosrrelatestotheitemsoftheother
comprehensive ers directty as part of capitat' in

which case it i nsive income or directty as part of

capitat.

Current income tax represents an amount of tax, which, as expr:cted, witt.be paid or compensated

with respect to taxabte profit or tax loss for the year, and whi,ch is catcutated on the basis of tax
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i-ates in effect or substantjatty in effect as at the reporting date, as wetl as-adjustments for income

tax of prior years. Deferred tix is recognized with respect to temporary differences arising between

book vatue of the assets and tiabitities- assessed in order to book them in the financiaI statements

and their tax base. Deferred tax is not recognized with respect to the fottowing temporary

differences: differences retating to goodwitt boo-klng in the financiaI statements and not reducing

the taxabte base; differ"n."r r6tutirig to assets unO tluUitities initiat presentation of which affects

neither accounting-nor taxabte profit-; as wetl as temporary differences retating to investments in

subsidiaries, where a parent company is abte to control i tlme of reatization of the mentioned

differences and there is certainty that those temporary differences witt not be reatized in the

foreseeabte future. An amount of deferred tax is assessed based on the tax rates, which witt be

apptied in the future, at recovery of temporary differences based on the laws in effect or

substantiatty in effect as at the reporting date'

Catcutation of deferred tax assets and deferred

a way in which the Bank is ptanning to recover o

end of the reporting period. Deferred tax asset

profit with respect to which respective temp
'be 

reatized is highty probabte. An amount of
respective tax benefits is not probabte anymore'

(l)Recognitionofincomesandexpensesinthefinancialstatement!;

lnterest incomes and expenses are booked as parts of profit or [os,s using the effective interest rate

method.

Credits arrangement fees, credits service fees and other fees considered as integraI parts of totaI

return on credits, as wetl as respective costs for transactions are booked as deferred incomes and

depreciated as inierest incomes during expected term of a financial instrument using the effective

interest rate method.

The other fees, as wetl as the other incomes and expenses are booked, when respective service is

atreadY Provided.
payments under the operating lease contracts are recognized as parts of profit or loss for the period

on a straight-tine basis throughout the lease term. An amount of received benefits reduces the total

amount oi e*penses for lease throughout the entire lease term.

(m) Segment statements

The banking operations are highty integrated

of conformance to the requirements of IFRS

concentrated in the Repubtic of Kazakhstan, a

generated as the resutt of activities carried

kazakhstan' A person responsibte for making o

Management Board) shatl receive and anatyse i

(n) changes in the accounting poticy and principles of information disclosure

The adopted accounting poticy corresponds to the accounting poticy apptied in the previous

reporting year, with the exception of inftuence of apptication of the. fottowing revised standards

dated 1 January 2017. lnftuence of each amendment apptied to operations of the Bank is described

betow:

Amendments to IAS T,,Statement of cash Flows: Disctosure lnltiative". The amendments require

from the Bank to disclose the information facititating evaluation of change of a tiabitity as the resutt

of financiat activities, inctuding .frunc"r condition6d by cash l'tows and changes not conditioned

thereby.

Amendments to lA5 l2,,Recognition of deferred tax assets for unreatized losses". The amendments

ctarify that an entity need to evatuate wh

which deductions maY be made aPart

amendments ctarify the manner in which a
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

resutts of activity of the Bank, as the Bank has not deductibte temporary differences or assets'

which are within scope of these amendments'

New standards and interpretations not effective yet

A number of new standards, amendments to the standards and int.erpretations are not effective as

at 31 December 2ol7 yet ana have not been apptied when preparing these financjal statements' out

of the mentioned new devetopments the fottowing standards, iamendments and interpretations

potentiatty may inftuence on activity of the Bank. The Bank is going to begin to appty the mentioned

stanOaras, amendments and interpretations starting from their effe'ctiveness'

IFRS 9 "Financia[ lnstruments"

IFRS 9 ,,FinanciaI lnstruments" pubtished in Juty 2014 reptaces existing IAS 39 "FinanciaI

lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement" and inctudes revlsed guidetines with respect to

ctassification and measurement of the financiaI assets, inctuding a new modeI of expected credit

losses to measure impairment and the new general requirements for hedging accounting'

Ctassification and measurement

IFRS 9 contains three basic measurement categories of the financial assets: measured at amortized

cost, measured at fair vatue through other c-omprehensive incorne (FVOCI) and measured at fair

vatue through profit or loss (FVTPL). Under IFRS 9, classificatiorr of the financial assets is mainty

determined based on a business model in the context of which a financial asset and characteristics

of contractual cash ftows are controtted. The standard abotishes tfre category of the financial assets

appticabte in IAS 39: financial assets hetd to m

financiaI assets avaitabte for sate' Under IFRS

principat contract representing a financial a

from a principaI contract. lnstead, the e
classifjcation'Theequityinstrumentsaremeasuredatfairvalue.

IFRS 9 considerabty retains existing requirements of IAS 39 as reglards ctassification of the financial

tiabitities. Furthermore, in accordance with IAS 39 atl changes in fair vatue of financia[ tiabitities

ctassified as measured ut rul1. vatue through profit or loss are rer:ognized as parts of profit or [oss,

while in accordance with IFRS g those changes are recognized in g'eneral as fottows:

an amount representing a change of fair value of a financiaI tiabitity conditioned by changes in

credit risk on such a tiaUitity is iecognized as part of the other comprehensive income;

remaining amount of change of fair vatue of a tiabitity is recognized as part of profit or [oss'

lmpairment

IFRS 9 reptaces the "incurred losses" modeI

The new impairment model is apptied to the

the accounts receivabte on lease, some [i
contracts. The new i

of profit or loss on
Under IFRS 9, an am

defautt events on a e within 12 months after the reporting
sutt of atl possibte defautt events on a

L over the entire term")' An amount of

tty i:; equat to amount of 12-month ECL

counts receivabte on lease, assets under a contract
ncial assets (POCI assets)). ln case of significant

nt after initiat recognition the loss atlowance is

recognized in the amount of ECL over the entire term'

The financiaI assets on which 12-month ECL are recognized retate to stage 1; the financiaI assets on

which significant increase of credit riskifter initiat lecognition is evidenced, but on which there is

no defautt event retate to stage 2; and the financial assets orr which there is a defautt event or

which anyvvay are credit-impaired retate to stage 3'

Measurement of expected credit losses

must represent time vatue of money an

be obtained without excess expenditur
and forecasts of future economic conditions'

under IAS 39 and resutts in increase in votati

25
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decenrber 2017, thousand tenge

loss attowance, since expected impairment losses on atl financial assets witt be measured at [east in

the amount of 12-month ECL and an aggregate of the financial assets on which ECL over the entire
term witl be measured witt be, with high probabitity, in excess of an aggregate of the financial

assets with reveated objective evidences of impairment under IAS 39.

The expected credit losses with high probabitity witt be catcutated orr the basis of an approach (at

least with respect to some portfotios) depending on a type of an itent exposed to credit risk, stage

to which an item retates under IFRS 9, measurement on a case-by-case or group basis, etc.

(iii) Hedgingaccounting

Requirements for general procedure for hedging accounting are aimed at simptification of hedging

accounting, bettei harmonization of hedging accounting and strategies of risk management. The

standard does not contain direct instructions with respect to macro-hedging accounting, which is

considered in the context of a separate project. IFRS 9 provide:; for setection of the accounting

poticy with respect to the Bank's abitity to continue to account for hedging in accordance with IAS

39.

(iv) Transition to IFRS 9

Requirements for ctassification and measurement, as wetI as impairment in generaI are apptied

retrospectivety (subject to specific exemptions) by adjusting an opening batance of retained profit

and provisions as of a date of initiat apptication. The standard doe:; not contain the requirements for

recatcutation of comparabte data for the prior periods'

IFRS 9 becomes effective for the annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

Earty apptication of the standard is attowed.

The Bank has transited to IFRS 9 within fixed terms, at the moment the Bank is compteting technica[

imptementation of the business requirements for making changes irr the methods and accounting.

IFRS't6 "Lease"

IFRS 16 reptaces appticabte guidelines with respect to lease, inctuding IAS 17 "Lease", IFRIC

lnterpretation 4 ,,Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease", SIC lnterpretation 15

,,Operating Leases - lncentivei", and SIC lnterpretation 27 "Evatuating the Substance of Transactions

in tfre Legat Form of a Lease". The new standard abotishes double accounting model appticabte at

the present time in the lessee accounting. This modet requires ctassifying a lease as financial lease

booked jn the batance sheet and operating lease accounted for off batance sheet. lnstead of it, a

unified accounting model assuming lease booking in the batance sheet and simitar to accounting for

financia[ lease efiective at the present time is introduced. For the lessors the accounting rutes in

effect at the present time generatty remain unchanged: the [essors witl continue to ctassify lease as

financiaI and operating. IFRS 16 becomes effective for the annuaI reporting periods beginning on or

after 1 January 2019.tarty apptication of the standard is attowed provided that IFRS l5 "Revenue

from Contracts with Customers" witt be apptied, as wett. The Barrk is not going to earty appty that

standard. The Bank js evatuating possibte inftuence of IFRS 16 on the financial statements.

The Bank did not appty the fottowing new and revised IFRS issued, but not effective yet:

ln May 20'17 the new standard - IFRS lT "lnsurance Contracts" has been issued, which standard

reptaies IFRS 4,,lnsurance Contracts" since 1 January 2021. IFRS 17 requires insurance liabitities to

be measured at a current futfitment value and provides a more uniform measurement and

presentation approach for atl insurance contracts. These requirements are designated to achieve the

purpose of consistent principte-based insurance contracts accounting. lt is not possible to evatuate

inftuence of apptication of IFRS 17 before detailed anatysis is madr: by the management.

Other changes

The fottowjng new standards or amendments to the standards wilt not have, as expected, significant

inftuence on the financial statements of the Bank:

- ,,project to review the requirements for disctosures" (amendments to IAS 7 "statement of Cash

Ftows");

- Recognition of deferred tax assets for unused tax loss carny-forwards (amendments to IAS 12

"lncome Taxes");

- IFRS 15
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decenrber 2017, thousand tenge

Net interest incomes

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

thggt1dlqgL thousand tenge

lnterest incomes
Credits granted to customers
Cash and cash equivatents
Credits and advances granted/paid to banks and other
financiaI institutions
FinanciaI assets avaitabte for sate

lnterest exPenses
Current accounts and deposits of customers
Accounts and deposits of banks and other financiaI institutions
Subordinated bonds and issued debt securities
Accounts payabte on REPO transactions

lssue of guarantees and opening letters of credit
Cash transactions
Settlement transactions
Foreign exchange transactions
Credit arrangement fee
Fee on MasterCard
Other

Fee expenses

Transfer oPerations
Trust operations
Expenses on MasterCard
Attribution amounts on transactions using payment

cards to exPenses
Expenses on custodiaI activitY
Other

141,002 173,85?l'+lrU\JZ ttJrvJL

---al.9{6s4i.

76,777,723
5,019,491
2,197,816

21,040,555
5,203,727

562,716

(17 ,597 ,707\
(2,136,863)

(15,297,663)
(4,011,340)

(614,209)

_ (14, s36) (3,]911

-_!1j$1g! (1 e,e4rs_e!)

Different items of interest incomes for the period ended on 31 December 2017 inctudes the total

amount equal to 4,774,011 thousand tenge (31 December 2016:4,187,764 thousand tenge) accrued

on impaired financia[ assets.

The interest expenses on current accounts and deposits for the period ended o111-December 2017

inctude expenses on-u!"n.y fees in the amount of 592,362 thousand tenge (31 December 2016:

Z,gO4,ZOl ihousand tenle), which directty retate to attraction of the mentioned deposits'

Fee incomes
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

thousand tenge thousand tenge

-1,6T9ffi

192,119
166,323
131,640

278
1,117,175

606,687 162,239

+

31 Decermber 2017
thouseFlenge

(142,837\
(22,000)

(759,672)

14,381,931 7.059,250latJgltTJt 
"vJ'rL'Y

257,901
218,790
132,846

168

31 December 2016
thousand tenge

(63,930)
(9,520)

Net profit from foreign exchange transactions

Net profit from sport transactions
Net ioss from revatuation of financial assets and

tiabitities

(636,642)
(323,435)(47,48s1 ,(109,?9?l@ (474,4191

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge____764_3ffi

(275,323) (723,379)
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l\otes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December2017, thousand tenge

Other operating incomes/expenses, net

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thou

Other operating incomes
Penatties and fines
Fee on MasterCard
Recovery of overpayment under return for 2015

Other

Other operating exPenses
Appraising services
Cottection agency services
Subscriptions and information services
lnventories, FA and lA write-off
Corporate events
Expenses on Cash back function
Rating agency seryices
Penatties and fines

Charity
Customer base maintenance
Legat services
Courier seryices
Air ticket Purchase
Other

lmpairment loss

Credits granted to customers
Other assets
Credits and advances granted/paid to banks and other
financiaI institutions

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

6,524,097
63,974
70,073

242,245

328,064 36,803

(779,640)

{37,367)
(55,3'15)

(363,467)
(3 3,932)

(686,632)
(7,349)

(167 ,551)
(2,000)

(201,487\
(178,432)
(116,174)
(105,777 )

(104,997)
(36,069)
(19,837)

(275)

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

-
(1 ,823,754) (361 ,290)

(1,611) 4,421

-
The information about changes in measurements and assumptions retating to-impairment of credits

granted to customers is disltosed in note 17 , as the mentionecl changes inftuenced on profit for

2017.

1O Expenses for Personnel

Emptoyees' benefits
Satary taxes

11 Other general administrative expenses

ProfessionaI seryices
Expenses on oPerating lease

Deterioration and dePreciation
Advertisement and marketi ng

Taxes other than income tax
Communication services and information services

Travetting exPenses
lnsurance
SecuritY

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

-
(936,738) (821,977)
(901,490) (562,954\

(1,226,341) (337 ,2091
(998 ,299\ (31 7, 1 59 )
(3'13,533)
(187 ,414)
(358,826)
(118,778\

(146,757)
(1 10,389)

(81,577)
(79,686)

28

(1 ,021 ,913)
(185,349)
(160,939)

(63,174)
(282,359 30,176

3,346,9 993,224

thousand
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lllotes to the financjalstatements forthe period ended on 31 December2017, thousand tenge

12

Transportation exPenses
Utitity and cteaning exPenses

Repair and technicaI maintenance
Cottection seryices
Representation exPenses
Trainings
Other

Expense on income tax

Expense on current income tax
Expense/(saving) on deferred income tax

lncome before taxes
Frxed rate
Estimated amount of tax at fixed rate
Non-deductibte expenses/ (tax expenses not taken into

account in the accounting records)

Total tax

At the beginning of the Period
Recognized in comprehensive income

Recognized in caPitaI
At the end of the Period

3'l December 2017 3l December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

-

(79,461).
(50,891 )
(39,056)
(10,4771
(6,474)

@W
_)9-8p4r,126\$,2r93ge)

31 Decermber 2017 31 December 2016
tnousana tenee ft'ousa?felel';;,

(78,376)
(63,067)
(14,77 6)

68e)

183,799 (206,497)

,689

Reconcitiation between accounting and tax profits for twetve months ended on 31 December 2017

and 31 December 20't6 is given betow:

31 Decrember 2017 31 December 2016
thorusand tenge thousand tenge

Z0% 20%

-

-(oq,o8g) 

$74,3751

-.
The temporary differences arising between book vatue of assets and tiabitities booked in the

financial statements ind amountl used to calcutate taxable base resutt in appearance of net

deferred tax tiabitities as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016' Deferred tax assets are

booked in these financiat statements. The future tax benefits nnay onty be received' if the Bank

earns profit against which unused tax loss may be set off and..un[ess the tegistation of the Repubtic

of Kazakhstan witt oe crrangeo with adverse inrtur nce on abitity of the Bank to use the mentioned

benefits in the future Periods.

change of amount of the temporary differences during the years ended on 31 December 2017 and 31

December 2016 may be presented as fottows'

31 December 2017 31 December 2016

__t!grr""a t""e" th"rt.
Fixed and intangibte assets 

- 
(,f944346) (318'751)

Accounts and deposits of banks and other financial 52'297 80''t00

institutions
Other
Tax loss carried forward to the future periods

1 16,908

Movements in deferred tax assets and tiabitities for twetve months ended on 31 December 2017 and

31 December 2016 are presented betow:

31 De,cember 201 7 31 December 201 6

thrrusand tenge thousand tenge

(99,689) (82,206)

(

138,202
306,714

1,447 ,133

29
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Notes to the financia[ statements for the period ended on 31 Decentber 2017, thousand tenge

Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

7,81O,O79 4,42O,1O4

12,356,847 1O0,479,649

9,164,23; 1 ,697 ,84;3'474'01' 
''ti3;331457,187 768,750

13,045,428 4,394,006
12,000,000 23,oo7,o28

'l ,198,188
2,094,933

1,1 98,1 88 2,084,833

,652

The credit ratings are presented in accordance with the standards; of the rating agency Standard &
Poor's or the simitar standards of the other international rating age'ncies.

None of items of cash and cash equivatents is impaired or overdue.

As at 3't December 2017, the Bank has had one bank the interest o1'which exceeds 10% of capitat (31

December 2016: 1 bank). As at 31 December 2017, the balance amounted to 5,400,814 thousand
tenge (31 December 2016: batance was equatto 123,486,677 thousand tenge).

For the period from22 August to 31 December 2017 the Bank concluded reverse REPO contracts with
"Kazakhstan Stock Exchange" JSC to the amount of 19,101,662 thousand tenge. The return accrued

on those transactions amounted to 120,704 thousand tenge'

a) Accepted collateral

As at 31 December 2017, the fair vatue of securities representing cottateral on reverse REPO

transactions was equal to: corporate bonds and bonds of the second tier banks to the amount of
5,266,799 thousand tenge, shares of legatentities to the amount of 13,955,567 thousand tenge.

As at 31 December 2016, the fair vatue of securities representing cotlateral on reverse REPO

transactions was equaI to: bonds of the Ministry of Finance of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan to the
amount of 296,467 thousand tenge, corporate bonds to the amount of 50,533 thousand tenge, as

wettas shares of tegat entities and second tier banks to the amount of 4,369,614 thousand tenge.

Requirements for minimaI provisions

MinimaI provisions are catcutated in accordance with the regutatory acts issued by the RK NB and

must be maintained equal to the average amount of cash on han,C and batance on current account
with the RK NB for four weeks to be catculated as a fixed minimal [eve[ of deposits and batances on

current accounts of customers being residents and non-residents of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan, as

wetI as the other tiabitities of the Bank. As at 3't December7017, the minimaI provision amounted to
4,760,281 thousand tenge (31 December 2016: 4,982,951 thousand tenge).

Cash on hand
Cash equivalents
Nostro accounts with RK NB

Nostro accounts with other banks
- having credit rating from A- to A+
- having credit rating from BB- to BB+
- having credit rating from B- to B+
- having credit rating betow B-
- without credit rating
Total Nostro accounts with other banks
Term deposits with RK NB

Term deposits with other banks
- having credit rating from A- to A+
- having credit rating from B- to B+

Total term deposits with other banks
Reverse REPO transactions
- without credit rating
TotaI cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents

19,222,366
57,822,829

30
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Financial instruments measured at fair value the changes in whir:h are booked as parts of profit

or [oss

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Debt and other financial instruments with fixed return
- Bonds of the Ministry of Finance of the Repubtic of

Kazakhstan
Equity instruments
- Shares in "standard" lnsurance Company" JSC

- Shares in "Kcett" JSC

Total financial instruments measured at fair value the
changes in which are booked as parts of profit or loss

15 FinanciaI assets available for sale

Debt and other financial instruments with fixed return
- Bonds of the Ministry of Finance of the Repubtic of

51 8,348

4,083,935
3,343,001

-

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousandlengs

16 Credits and advances granted/paid to banks and other financial institutions

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Deposits with banks
- having credit rating from B- to B+

Credits granted to other financial institutions
- without credit rating
Total credits granted to other financiaI institutions
Provision for imPairment
Credits granted to other financiaI institutions less

provision for imPairment

The fottowing tabte contains anatysis of change of

advances granted/paid to banks and other financial

December 2016 and2017:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Amountofprovisionforimpairmentatthebeginnigof-T9,079
the year
Net recovery of provision for impairment
Use

Amount of provision for impairment at the end of the
year

1,610

Kazakhstan
- Bonds of "Halyk Bank of Kazakhstan" JSC

- Bonds of "Freedom Finance" JSC

- Bonds of "SAT&ComPanY" JSC

Equity instruments
- Shares in "Qazaq Banki" JSC

Total financial assets available for sale

None financial assets avaitabte for sate are impaired or overdue.

277,842 !44,0=0!

- 

n7,842 344,006
(1,6671 (69)

276,175 343,937

-
the provision for impairment on credits and

institutiorrs for twetve months ended on 31

203,31 5

273,475

474,010

1,254,309
979,175

(4,421)
(12) (4,589)
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17 Credits granted to customers

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thou:;and tenge thousand tenge

rCredits granted to corporate customers

Credits granted to major corporate customers

Credits granted to smatl and medium business entities

Total credits granted to corporate customers

Credits granted to retail customers

Mortgage credits
Consumer credits
Credits to purchase cars

Other

Total credits granted to retaiI customers

Credits granted to customers before provision for
impairment
Provision for imPairment

Credits granted to customers less provision for
impairment

154,856,939 143,677,426

169,889,325 181,668,650

18,41 5,031

136,441,908

31,170,157
117,507,269

10,445,161

1 3,585,564
3,134

1 ,803 ,7 14

1810,694,512

( 1 0,805,1 87)

9,776,487

32,074,115
7,971

2,738,222

188,269,171

(6,600,521)

The tabte betow contains anatysis of change of the provision

credits granted to customers for twetve months ended on 31

for impairment broken down by types of
Decernber 2017:

Credits granted Credits granted Total
thousandto corporate

customers
to retail

thousand tenge thousarld lelg-e

-inu@8 
912,623 6,600,571

Amount of provision for impairment at the

beginning of the Year
Net (recovery) formation of provision for
impairment
Write-off
Effect of foreign exchange rates

Amount of provision for impairment at the
end of the Year

impairment
Write-off
Effect of foreign exchange rates

Amount of provision for impairment at the
end of the Year

customers tenge

2,718,17 4 2,329,083 5,047,257

Credits granted Credits granted Total
thousandto corporate

customers
to retail

customers tenge

(897,1 36) 12,961 (884,175 )

84,251 )42.,6_!!) ,= =!!,?g_!,-l,sgl;w 

- 
3,212,000 10,805,187

The tabte betow contains analysis of change of the provision for innpairment broken down by types of

credits granted to customers for the year ended on 31 December 11016:

thousand tenge thousand tenge

Amount of provision for impairment at the 
tffi

beginning of the Year
Net (recovery) formation of provision for (705,7851 873,843 ',1',18,058

(1 ,323,552) (149,544) (1,473,096)

(3e,382) \5,7=,e::) = \ef:-:3|!)

-5,6g7,g9d 

-- 912,623 6,600,521
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(a) Quality of credits granted to customers

The table betow presents the information about quatity of credi[s granted to customers as at 31
December 2017:

Credits before Credits less
provision for Provision for provision for
impairment impairment impairment

thousand tenge thousand tenge thousand tenge

Provision for
impairment against
amount of credits

before provision for
impairment

o/lo

Credits granted to corporate
customers
Credits granted to major
corporate customers
Credits without individuaI
evidences of impairment
lmpaired credits:
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for more than 360 days

TotaI impaired credits
TotaI credits granted to
major corporate customers
Credits granted to small and
medium business entities
Credits without individuaI
evidences of impairment
lmpaired credits:
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for 1 80-360 days
- due for more than 360 days

TotaI impaired credits
Total credits granted to
small and medium business
entities
TotaI credits granted to
corporate customers

16,755,219 (2,114,540\ 14,640,679

1 ,659,912

10,633,916
1 ,569,339
4,429,049

127,917

(9,9 59 )

(1,797 ,269)
(314)

(294,194)
(27,764)

1 ,649,853

9,936,649
1,569,024
4,134,954

'1 00,1 53

0.60

'16.90

0.02
6.64

1 8.52

12.62

18,415,O31 (2,124,499) 16,29O,532 11.54

64,907,825

51,437,643
9,632,194
5,964,566
1,481,962

932,745

3,094,973

(385,504)

(3,415,169)
(31,771)

(714,026)
(370,372)
(104,965)

(446,880 )

64,522,321

48,022,474

9,600,423
5,250,540
1,111,590

827,780
2,639,093

0.59

6.64
0.37

11.97

74.99

11.25

14.49
71,534,093 (5,083,1 g3) 66,450,900 7.11

136,441,9O8 (5,469,697\ 130,973,221 4.O1

154,856,939 (7,593,'186) 147,263,753 4.90
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Credits before
provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

Provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

Provision for
impairment against

Credits less amount of credits
provision for before provision
impairment for impairment
thousand

tenge %

Credits granted to retail
customers
Mortgage credits
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for 180-360 days
- due for more than 360 days
Total mortgage credits
Consumer credits
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for 180-360 days
- due for more than 360 days
Total consumer credits
Credits to purchase cars
- undue
Total credits to purchaser
cars
Other credits granted to
retaiI customers
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for 1 B0-360 days
- due for more than 360 days
Total other credits granted
to retail customers
TotaI credits granted to
retail customers
Total credits granted to
customers

1,803,714 (133,744') 1,669,97O

g,g76,ggg

1 ,510,190
371,533
240,423
547,164

1,039,265
1 3,585,

(51,'180)
('14,036)
( 5 5,886 )

(130,246)
(328,711)

307,208

(1,753,299)
(40,627)
(74,3661

('102,981 )
(170,319)

7,640,340
716,258
439,252
221,303
397,321

9,1 23,690
1 ,469,569

297,167
137,442
376,845
732,057

11,136,769

7,691,520
730,294
495,'138
351,549
726,032

0.67
1.97

11.29
37.05
45.28

17.75
2.69

20.02
42.83
31 .13
29.56
18.02

450,628 (49,403) 401,225 10.96
10,445,161 (629,4621 9,g15,699 6.03

134 3,134 0.00

134 3,134 0.00

929,869
670,234

3,992
4,913

176,019

(178,409)
(2e1)

(400)
(4,644)

801,460
669,943

3,992
4,413

171,375
18,797

13.81
0.04

8.32
2.64
0.0018,797

7.41

25,837,573 (3,212,0011 22,625,572 12.43

180,694,512 (10,805,187) 169 889 325 s.98
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The tabte below presents the information about quatity of credits granted to customers as at 31
December 201 6:

Credits before
provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

Provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

Credits less
provision for
impairment

tlhousand tenge

Provision for
impairment

against amount
of credits before

provision for
impairment

ulo
Credits granted to
corporate customers
Credits granted to major
corporate customers
Credits without individuat
evidences of impairment
lmpaired credits:
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 1 80-360 days
- due for more than 360
days
TotaI impaired credits
Total credits granted to
major corporate customers
Credits granted to small
and medium business
entities
Credits without individuaI
evidences of impairment
lmpaired credits:
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for 1 80-360 days
- due for more than 360
days
Total impaired credits
Total credits granted to
smalI and medium business
entities

0.92

10.08
8.68

13.54
33.96
23.91

0.02
11.78

12,481,360

15,114,666
1,441 ,091

274,367

(74,888)

(757,864)
(288)
(ss)

(591,600)

12,406,472

14,856,802
1,440,903
274,312

0.60

1.71
0.02
0.02

31.83
4.55

245 2.97

77,495,342

19,234,709
4,626,016
3,692,923

1gz,54g
2,466,717

55,917
34,289,498 248,724

112 507 269 107,744,066

137,989,529

4.23
Total credits granted to
corporate customers 143,677,426 3.96

(849,907) _ 17,838,990

31 170 157 (924,695)

78,217,771

21,390,015
5,065,563
4,259,609

276,440
3,741,949

55,923

(722,429)

(2,155,307)
(439,547\
(576,785)

(93,892 )

(775,232)

(4,763,203)

(5,687,899)

(4,040,774\
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Credits granted to retail
customers
Mortgage credits
- undue
- due for [ess than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for 1 80-360 days
- due for more than 360
days

TotaI mortgage credits
Consumer credits
- undue
- due for less than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 90-179 days
- due for '180-360 days
- due for more than 360
days

Total consumer credits
Credits to purchase cars
- undue
Total credits to purchase
cars
Other credits granted to
retail customers
- undue
- due for [ess than 30 days
- due for 30-89 days
- due for 1 80-360 days
- due for more than 360
days

Total other credits granted
to retail customers
Total credits granted to
retail customers
Total credits granted to
customers

Credits before
provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

Provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

7,622,901
683,623
436,947
474,921
427,949

130,147
9.776.487

24,933,095
5,006,765

605,723
383,042
571,991

573,499
32,074,115 (800,1 80)

2,921

Credits less
provision for
impairment

thousand tenge

Provision for
impairment

against amount
of credits before

provision for
impairment

o,
l\

(2,135)
(9,979)
(8,1 60)

(29,736)
(37,593 )

7,620,766
673,644
478,787
445,195
390,355

0.03
1.46
1.87
6.26
8.78

8.09
1.00

(256,024)
(36,709)

(106,422\
(100,082)
(164,768)

(136,175)

24,677,071
4,970,056

499,301
292,960
407,223

437,324
31,273,935

2,921

1.03
0.73

17.57
26.13
28.81

23.74
2.49

0.00

2.921 2,921 0.00

2,494,199
194,695

17 ,694
22,796

1 8,848

2,738,222

44,591 745

(5,501 )

(1,542)
(3,687)
(1,760)

(1,8't8)

( 1 4,308)

(912,6231

2,479,699
1 93,1 53

14,007
21,036

17,030

0.22
0.79

20.84
7.72

9.65

2.723.914 o.52

43,679,122 2.0s

188,269,171 (6,600,521) _ 181,668,650 3.51

During '12 months of the years 2017 and 2016 the Bank granted the consumer credits to natural
persons secured with cash in the form of deposits. As at 3'1 December 2017, those credits amounted
to 1,011,079 thousand tenge (31 December 7016: 16 665 305 thousand tenge). Those credits are
short-term credits maturing within 12 months.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the credit portfotio inctuded the credits granted to
corporate and retaiI customers the terms and conditions of which were changed, subject to retations
with the customers and maximization of an amount of debt repayabte. The credits the terms of
which have been changed are inctuded in the tabtes above into the category of assets without
individuaI evidences of impairment with the exception of cases, ,/r'here a borrower fails to comply
with the new conditions of contracts.

As at 31 December 2017, about 23% (31 December 2016: about 29iY") of the Bank's corporate credits
were designated to finance companies being at the initial stage or for such projects as construction
of assets, which are not put into operation yet. Before granting those credits, the Bank evatuates
viabitity of the projects and requires providing a ptedge. The Bank atso controts the progress of
implementation of such projects in accordance with initiat budge,ts thereof and it betieves that it
has reasonabty evatuated the future cash ftows, vrhich witl res;utt from those credits as at 31
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December 2017 and 3'1 December 2016. As at 31 December 2017,11% of att credits granted to the
above-mentioned companies are repaid.

As at 31 December 2017, 49% of atl projects being at injtiat stage of construction are put into
operation as at 31 December 2016 or are at the stage of constructi(on comptetion.

As at 3'1 December 2017, the management found out evidences of impairment in about 56.91% of the
portfotio of corporate credits of the Bank (31 December 2016:35%',1. Such indicators arise mainty due
to detays of the borrowers in their futfitment of contractua[ obligations to the Bank or due to
worsening of the financial status of the borrowers. The most of those impaired credits were secured
with ptedges, inctuding cash deposits, property, land or other lelss liquid assets. Potentiat future
revenue from disposal of such security was measured by the Bzrnk with the participation of the
independent appraising companies and this was the key assumption, which affects measurement of
impaired credits.

Key assumptions and judgements when evaluating impairment of credits

Credits granted to corporate customers

The Bank evatuates the provision for impairment of loans granted 1to the corporate customers on the
basis of the analysis of catcutated future cash flows on loans with individuaI evidences of
impairment. When assessing an amount of the provision for impairment on [oans without individual
evidences of impairment, the management based on the [eve[ of lo,sses actually incurred in the past.

When assessing an amount of the provision for impairment of credits granted to the corporate
customers, the management made the fottowing assumptions:

-theannua[ [evelof incurredlosseswasequatto0.59%- 0.60%(31 December20'16: 0.60%-0.92%\;
- delay in earning revenue from disposal of a security - 6-18 months.

Changes in the above evatuations may influence on amount of the provision for impairment of the
credits. For exampte, in case of change of an amount of net present vatue of expected cash flows by
ptus/minus one percent the amount of the provision for impairment of the credits granted to the
corporate customers as at 31 .12.2017 would be 1,479,638 thousand tenge more/tess (31 December
2016: 1 , 379,895 thousand tenge [ess/more).

Credits granted to retail customers

The Bank evatuates the provision for impairment of loans granted to retaiI customers on the basis of
the past experience of incurred actual losses on those types of the credits and measurement of
expected amount of compensation from disposaI of a collaterat.

Material assumptions used by the management when assessing an amount of the provision for
impairment of the credits granted to retaiI customers inctude the following:

- [eve[ of migration of losses is fixed and it may be determined on the basis of the model of
migration of incurred actual losses for the previous 12 months;

- with respect to mortgage and consumer credits detay in earning revenue from disposaI of security
with respect to mortgage and consumer credits is 18 months (property).

Changes in the above evaluations may inftuence on amount of the provision for impairment of the
credits. For exampte, in case of change of amount of the net pre:ient vatue of expected cash ftows
by ptusiminus one percent the amount of the provision for impairment of the credits granted to
corporate customers as at 31 .12.2017 woutd be 726,256 thousand tenge more/tess (31 December
2016: 436,79'1 thousand tenge [ess/more).

Analysis of security

Credits granted to corporate customers

The credits granted to corporate customers shat[ be evatuated on individuaI basis and tested for
impairment. The overatI creditworthiness of a corporate customer usuatly is the most important
indicator of quatity of a credit granted to it. Neverthetess, security represents additional guarantees
and, as a rute, the Bank requests the corporate borrowers to provide the same.

(c)

(i)
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The fottowing tabte contains anatysis of security of the
provision for impairment, broken down by types of
December 20'16:

31 December
2017

thousand

Mixed type
lmmovabte property
Cash deposits

credits granted to corporate customers less
security as at 31 December 2017 and 31

31 December
2016

% of credit thousand % of credit

38.88
23.56
6.84

Land plots and rights to temporary use 12,575,243 8,54
Equipment
Cash received in the future
Construction in process
Rights of ctaim against third persons
Guarantee
Grain
Securities
Goods for sate
Other types of security
No cottateraI

,92.
30,840,804 20.94
11,206,981 7.61

2,31 3,501
5,797,736
5,679,730
3,199,446

17,609
1,011,139
'1,785,360

53,651,669
32,511,410
9,444,796

1 .57 5,177 ,870
3.94 '13,925,593

3 . 86 6 ,971 ,451
2.17 1,739,957
0.58 5,413,293
0.69 2,924,265
1,21 1,118,277

3.72
't0.09

5.05
1.26
3.97
2.12
0.81

647,711 0,44 545,893 0.40
854,830 0,58 2,943,632 2.13
780,574 0,53 1,671,532 1.22

147 ,263,752 100.00 137 ,gg9 ,529 1 00.00

The amounts stated I n the tabte above represent book value of the credits and optionatly present
the fair vatue of coItaterat. Mixed security inctudes items of immovabte property, property
comptexes, equipment, transport vehictes, land ptots, grain, guara,ntees, cash deposits, and other.

The credits granted to corporate customers, which are past due or impaired.

lmpaired or past due credits granted to corporate customers have security with the fair vatue of
207 ,621,702 (31 December 2016: 48,087 ,714 lhousand tenge).

Credits granted to corporate customers without individual evidernces of impairment

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of cash batances, whiclr are security of loans granted to
corporate customers, amounted to 6,579,531 thousand tenge (31 December 20'16: 9,444,796
thousand tenge).

With respect to the other credits granted to customers with the net book vatue of 66,172,174
thousand tenge (31 December 2016:80,457,018 thousand tenge), which are not past due or
impaired, the fair vatue of security was measured at the moment of issue of the credits and was not
adjusted for subsequent changes as at the reporting date. An opportunity to recover those credits
depends to a greater extent on creditworthiness of the borrowers rather than vatue of security, and
the current vatue of security does not inftuence on evaluation of irnpairment.

As at 31 December 2017, with respect to the credits granted to corporate customers with the book
vatue of 79,579,060 thousand tenge (31 December 7016: 42,134,573 thousand tenge), the
management thinks that the fair vatue of security is at least equal to their book value.

Received security

During twetve months ended on 3'l December 2017 the Bank purchased a number of assets through
acquisition of control of security of the credits granted to customers with the net book value of
28,619,169 thousand tenge (31 December 2016: 5,822,820 thousand tenge).

(ii) Credits granted to retail customers

Mortgage credits

The mortgage credits are secured with ptedge of respective real e:;tate.

The mortgage credits inctude the credits with the net book value of 1,603,889 thousand tenge (31

December 2016:909,531 thousand tenge), which are secured with ptedge the fair vatue of which is
less than net book value of separate credits. Fair vatue of security on the mentioned credits
amounted to '155,91'l thousand tenge (3'l December 2016:905,671 thousand tenge).
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With respect to the mortgage credits with the net book vatue of 8,211,810 thousand tenge (31
December 2016:8,768,821 thousand tenge) the management betieves that the fair vatue of security
at least is equal to book vatue of separate credits as at the reporting date.

The Bank updates assessed value of security obtained at the moment of issue of a credit to the
current value taking into consideration approximate changes in value of items of immovabte
property. The Bank makes speciaI separate evatuation of security as at each reporting date, in case
there are evidences of impairment.

During twelve months ended on 31 December 2017, the Bank purchased three portfolio of mortgage
credits from "Astana lpoteka" JSC (previous name - "lnvestment Astana Group" JSC) with the book
vatue of 2,005,3 67 thousand tenge. The Bank also bought back l.wo portfotios of mortgage credits
from "Kazakhstan Mortgage Company" lO" JSC with the book vatuer of 227 ,570 thousand tenge.

Consumer credits

The consumer credits are secured with ptedge of respective residential immovabte property.
According to the poticy of the Bank, the consumer credits are granted at maximal loan-to-value
ratios (ratio of market vatue of a ptedge to a loan value) as at a date of issue of a credit equal to
143% for the borrowers with confirmed sources of income and 200% - on credits of the borrowers
with non-confirmed sources of income. Thus, such consumer credits are secured with ptedge of
immovabte property [ike the mortgage loans.

The portfotio of consumer credits inctudes the credits with the net book vatue of 5,804,8'10 thousand
tenge (31 December 2016:15,517,665 thousand tenge), which were secured with the ptedge the fair
vatue of which was less than net book value of separate credits. The fair vatue of security on the
mentioned credits amounted to 2,189,365 thousand tenge (31 December 7016 7,458,645 thousand
tenge).

With respect to the consumer credits with the net book vatue of 5,091,672 thousand tenge (31
December 2016: 15,756,270 thousand tenge) the management betieves that the fair vatue of
security at least is equal to book vatue of separate credits as at th,e reporting date.

The Bank updates assessed vatue of security obtained at the mrrment of issue of a credit to the
current vatue taking into consideration approximate changes in value of items of immovabte
property. The Bank makes speciaI separate evatuation of security as at each reporting date, in case
there are evidences of impairment.

Other credits

The portfotio of consumer credits inctuded the credits with the nr:t book vatue of 716,150 thousand
tenge (31 December 2016:2,078,170 thousand tenge), which werr: secured with the ptedge the fair
value of which is less than net book vatue of separate credits. The fair vatue of security on the
mentioned credits amounted to 624,532 thousand tenge (31 December 2016:773,983 thousand
tenge ).

With respect to the other credits with the net book vatue of 956,955 thousand tenge (31 December
7016:645,744 thousand tenge) the management believes that the fair vatue of security at least is
equa[ to book value of separate credits as at the reporting date.

The Bank updates assessed vatue of security obtained at the moment of issue of a credit to the
current vatue taking into consideration approximate changes in vatue of items of immovabte
property. The Bank makes speciaI separate evaluation of security as at each reporting date, in case
there are evidences of impairment.
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17 Credits granted to customers, continued

(d) Analysis of the credit portfolio broken down by branches of economy and geographic
regions

The credits were granted mainly to the customers carrying ou1[ activity in the Republic of
Kazakhstan in the fottowing branches of economy:

31 Decembr:r 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Credits granted to retaiI customers
Trade
Agricutture, timber and wood-working industry
Production
Lease
FinanciaI services
Services relating to construction and instattation
works
Construction
LegaI services
Mining industry / metatlurgicaI industry
Logistic comptexes and transportation services
Mass media
ReaI estate
Factoring companies
Tourism
Micro-credit organizations
Research and technicaI activity
Other services
lndividuatservices
Activity (various)

Provision for impairment
169,889,325 181,668,650

(e) Concentration of credits granted to customers

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank had nine borrowers (31 December 2016: sixteen borrowers)
with the total balances on credits exceeding 10% of capita[. As at 31 December 2017 the totat
batances on the mentioned credits amounted to 61,880,923 thouszrnd tenge (31 December 2016:
77,661,670 thousand tenge).

(f) Credit repayment periods

The repayment periods of the credits composing the credit portlfotio as at the reporting date
are presented in Note 27(d) and represent the periods of time frclm the reporting dated to the
repayment dates under credit agreements. Considering short term of the credits granted by the
Bank, it is probabte that many of the mentioned credits witt be protonged. Accordingly, reaI
dates of repayment of the credits may substantiatty differ from dates of repayment provided
for by the credit agreements.

25,837 ,573
41,098,989
20,769,474
26,866,971
8,374,752
5,24o,gog

9,941 ,972
9,917 ,554

5,749,431
2,497,506
1,620,369
7:10,209

75,595
5,14,126
9,924,05 1

11,870,842
7,12,861
5<.)2,540

44,591,745
35,009,651
23,256,860
20,678,612
17,686,980
1 4,635,588

10,032,430
5,562,171
4,990,339
4,190,707
2,963,933
1,469,932
964,775
604,459
473,364
70,170

1,288,460

180,694,512 188,269,171
(10,805,187) (6,600,521)
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017 , thousand tenge

1 9 Other assets

31 December2017 31 December2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

15',673,777 7,323,439Accounts receivabte on sotd loans
Other accounts receivabte
Accrued fee incomes
Total other financiaI assets
Disposed assets
Accounts receivabte on guarantees
CapitaI expenditures
Prepayments
Prepaid taxes, besides income tax
Materiats and setttement of payments with
supptiersi providers
Overpaid tax on profit
Advances paid to employees
Settlement of payment son Reverse REPO

transactions with "Freedom Finance" JSC

Other
Provision for impairment
Total other non-financial assets
Total other assets

1,606,613 1,414,007
791 ,014 1 2, BB9

17,570,849 8,750,335
33 ,371,780 7 ,506,152
13i,670,254

1 ,579,366
993,221
863,688
210,324

188,412

1,712,177
(2,571 ,578\

5,668,442
3,732,699

618,300
289,530
169,840

99,135
97,985

187,447
(698,919)

(a)

50,017 ,644 17 ,670,611
67,,588,493 26,420,946

During the year ended on 31 December 2017, the Bank sotd a number of granted credits to two
companies - "SFK Recovery" LLP (to the amount of 9,568,185 thousand tenge) and "First
cotlection" Cottection Agency" LLP (to the amount of 3,544,719) thousand tenge). The above-
mentioned loans were sotd under the market conditions with considering by the management as

transactions between independent parties. During the period frorn December 2017 to March 2018
the tiabitities to the bank were repaid to the amount exceeding 12 bittion tenge by transfer of
assets in the form of immovabte property in favour of the Bank.

During the year ended on 31 December 2016 the Bank sotd a number of granted credits to two
companies - "Nexum" Legal Company" LLP and "lspotnenie" LLP. The above-mentioned loans
were sold under the market conditions with considering by thr: management as transactions
between independent parties. The companies provided sufficient evidences of abitity to repay
the accounts receivable and they provided coltaterat. The acr:ounts receivable is repaid in
accordance with the prescribed schedutes that is a conctusive ervidence of abitity of "Nexum"
Legal Firm" LLP and "lspotnenie" LLP to repay outstanding accounts receivable to the Bank untiI
the end of 2018.

As at 31 December 2017,478 items are recorded in the balance shreet as parts of items "Disposed
assets". The management prepares a ptan for disposing of the mentioned property for the year
201 8.

Analysis of change of the provision for impairment

The tabte betow contains anatysis of change of the provision for impairment for twetve months
ended on 31 December 2017 and7016:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Amount of provision for impairment at the beginning
of the year
Net creation (recovery) of provision for impairment
Use

Amount of provision for impairment at the end of
the year 698,919

698,919
1,823,754

(1,095)

2,521,578

349,617
361,290
(11,988)
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

Accounts and deposits of banks and other financial institutions
31 Decemb er 2017 31 December 20'l 6

thousand tenge thousand tenge_

17,167,554 25,088,365

21

Credits
Term deposits
LORO accounts

2,930,295 6,011,565

20,097,849 31,099,930

The above-mentioned credits include amounts received from "'Damu" Business Devetopment

Fund" JSC under the Program of conventional ptacement of funds, with the second tier banks for

the purpose of subsequent credit granting to the sma[[ and medium business entities to the total
amount'of 3,151,g74 thousand tenge (31 December 2016: 3,328,806 thousand tenge); from
,,KazAgro" National Management Holding" JSC under the agro-industrial financing program to the

total imount of 5,882,30i thousand tenge (31 December 2016:6,754,465 thousand tenge); from
,,Agrarian Credit Corporation" JSC to the total amount of l],133,372 thousand tenge (31

December 2016: 9,443,232 thousand tenge)'

The term deposits inctude the deposits from "Zhitstroisberbank" JSC to the amount of 2,930,294

thousand tenge (31 December 2016: 4,218,029 thousand tenge), SB "Bank Home Credit" JSC to

the amount oi 0 thousand tenge (31 December 201 6: 1 ,000,939 thousand tenge).

Current accounts and deposits of customers
31 Decemher 2017 31 December 2016

thousand tenge thousand tenge

Current accounts and deposits on demand
- RetaiI customers
- Corporate customers
Term deposits
- RetaiI customers
- Corporate customers

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank has had eight customers (31 December 2016: fourteen

customers) the accounts and deposits of which have exceeded 1Ct% of capitat. As at 30 December

20'17 the total balances on the accounts and deposits of the nrentioned customers amount to
j46,096,242 thousand tenge (31 December 2016: 191,058,457 thousand tenge). The current

accounti and deposits on demand of the corporate customers inctude deposit from one

counterparty to the amount of 88,658,705 thousand tenge, which may be withdrawn on demand'

As at 31 December 2017, the deposits of the Bank's customers to the total amountof 6,194,724

thousand tenge (31 December 2016:26,165,197 thousand tenge) were the security of discharge

of tiabitities on credits and off-batance credit instruments issued by the Bank.

Accounts payable on REPO transactions

On 31 December 2017 the Bank conctuded REPO transactions with "Kazakhstan Stock Exchange"

JSC to the amount of 641,658 thousand tenge.

Other tiabilities

31,367 ,845
17!i,471 ,296

3l),760,641

11,294,929
130,142,781

32,718,441

22

23

),211,063 121,426,306

____297,=810,845 295,5n,457

31 December 2017 31 December 20'16

thousand tenge thousand tengg
7 ,400 1 ,409,651Letters of credit and financiat guarantees

Accounts payabte to emPtoYees
Charged operating exPenses
Other creditors on banking activity
TotaI other financial liabilities
Prepayments on banking operations
Provision for leaves
Accounts payabte on other taxes
Other non-financiaI tiabitities
Total other non-financial liabi lities
Total other tiabitities

34,258
381,771

177,877
116,009
342,290

3,137
306,232
265,676

177 ,094
88,943

144,377
3,208,595

44



24

(a)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017 , thousand tenge

Share capital

lssued capital

As at 3'l December 2017, the stated share capitaI consisted of 100,000,000 shares (31 December

ZOj6:32,000,000 shares), the issued and futty paid share capitat consisted of 36,081,627 shares

(31 December 20]6:76,887,601 shares). The shares have no par v;llue. For 17 months of the year

iOtZ tfr" Bank purchased 30,636 own ordinary shares. As at 31 December 2017, there were no

shares purchased by the Bank (31 December 2016:2,851,199 shares). The owners of ordinary

shares are entitted to obtain dividends as far as they are dectared, as wetI as they have the right

to one vote per a share at the annual and genera[ meetings of sharehotders of the Bank.

Provision for revaluation of financial assets available for sale

provision for revatuation of financial assets avaitabte for sate inctr.rdes accumutated net change of

fair vatue untiI derecognition of assets or impairment thereof .

Dividends

ln accordance with the tegistation of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan, amount of provisions of the

Bank avaitabte for distribution is timited to amount of retained profit booked in the financiaI

statements of the Bank prepared in accordance with the IFRS or the amount of net profit for the

current year, in case of'accumutated loss carried forward to the next period. Distribution is not

attowed, in case the amount of equity capitat becomes negativre or distribution of net income

results in insotvency or bankruptcy of the Bank.

During twetve months ended on 31 December 2017 the dividends were not dectared.

Trades in shares ofthe Bankon MoscowStock Exchange began on 14 December7017. Thus, the

Bank became the first Kazakhstan bank the shares of which were admitted to trades on Moscow

Stock Exchange and entered into the third tevet quotation [ist rcn 4 December 2017. The Bank

entered with the secondary pubtic offer of shares (SPO) on the MOEX in order to raise foreign

capitat. As a resutt, during the period from 5 to '12 December 7017 more than 750 proposats were

made by natural persons ind tegat entities to the amount exceerding 650 mittion roubtes' 2 881

835 shares of the new Bank's issue were offered, the offering price was fixed at the [eve[ of 215

roubtes for a share.

Earnings per share
31 Decernber 2017 31 December 2016

thousand tenge thousand tenge

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (tenge) 43.6 43.2

Basic earnings per share
lndicator of ine basic earnings per share as at 31 December 2017 is based on revenue due to

owners of ordinary shares in the amount of 1,315,252 thousand tenge (31 December 2016:

865,015 thousand lenge; and the average weighted number of 30,179,144 outstanding ordinary

shares (31 December 2016:20,026,199 shares), and it is determined as foItows:
31 Decenrber 2017 31 December 2016

(b)

(c)

25

thousilnd tenge thousand tenge

-13i2,rre

Net revenue
Net revenue due to owners of ordinary shares

lssued ordinary shares at the beginning of the year

Effect of share issue during 12 months
Effect of purchased own shares

Average weighted number of ordinary shares for the
period ended on

"26,882,6013,293,990
15,000,466
5,283,334
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decernber 2017, thousand tenge

Calcutation of book vatue of the Bank's shares as at 3'l December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is
given betow:

31 December 2017 31 December 2015
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Net assets 41i,792,071 30,571 ,555

Quantity of outstanding shares
Book vatue of one share (tenge)

3t5,081,627 76,882,601
1,297 1,137

Analysis by segments

The Bank has one reporting segment.

The most of revenue from transactions with foreign customers is, accounted for by transactions
with residents of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan. The most of non-current assets is concentrated in

the Republic of Kazakhstan.

lnformatjon about major customers

For the period ended on 3'1 December 2017 and for the year enrCed on 31 December 2016, the
Bank has had not customers the revenue on transactions with wlrich exceeded 10% of the total
revenue of the Bank.

Risk management

Risk management is fundamentat for the banking activity and is an essential etement of operating
activity of the Bank. The market risk, credit risk and tiquidity risl< are the basic risks with which

the Bank faces in the course of its activities.

Risk management policy and procedure

The Bank's risk management policy is aimed at detection, anal.ysis and management of risks,

which the Bank is exposed to, fixing timits of risks and respective controt, as welI as continuous

assessment of risk levets and conformance thereof to the fixerl [imits. The risk management
poticy and procedures are reviewed on a regutar basis for the purpose of representation of
changes in the market situation, offered banking products and services and the best practice,

which appears.

The board of directors is tiabte for proper functioning of the system of risk management controt,
management of key risks and approval of the poticy of and procedures for risk management, as

wetl as approval of major transactions.

The management board is tiabte for monitoring and imptementation of the measures for reducing

risks, as wetl as it watches that the Bank carries out activity within fixed limits of risks. The

obtigations of the head of the Risk Department inctude general risk management and control of
corptiance with the requirements of the effective legistation, as wetl as control of apptication of
the general principtes and methods for detecting, assessing, managing and preparing reports both

on financial and non-financial risks, lt is accountabte directly to the Chairman of the Management

Board and directty to the Board of Directors.

The credit and market risks and tiquidity risk are managed and controtted by the system of the

Credit Committees and the Committee for Asset and Liabitity Management (CALM) both at the
[eve[ of portfotio in general and at the [eve[ of separate transactions. ln order to enhance

efficiency of the decision making process the Bank created the hierarchic structure of the credit
committees depending on type and extent of risk exposure.

Both externaI and internal risk factors are detected and managed inside the organization. Special

attention is paid to detection of the whote tist of the risk factors and determination of the [eve[

of adequacy of current procedures for risk minimization. Besides the standard anatysis of the

credit and market risks, the Risk Department monitors financiaI and non-financiaI risks through

regutar meetings with the operational subdivisions in order to get expert evatuation in particutar

di rections.

The market risk is a risk of change of a fair vatue or future cash flows on a financiaI instrument

due to change of the market prices. The market risk consists ol' foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, as wett as the other price risks. The Bank is exposed to the market risk as the resutt of

open market position on interest, foreign exchange, debt and equity financial instruments, which

46
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(b)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financjal statements for the period ended on 31 Decernber 2017, thousand tenge

depend on overatl and specific fluctuations of the market conditions and change of the [eve[ of

votatility of the market Prices.

The task of the market risk management is to manage and contrr:l that exposure to the market

risk does not go beyond the timits of admissibte parameters with ensuring optimization of return

earned for assumed risk.

Risk management, continued

Market risk

The CALM headed by the Chairman of the Management Board is tiabte for management of market

risk. The CALM approves the timits of market risk based on recommendations of the Risk

Department.

The Bank manages the market risk by fixing the limits for open prosition with respect to amount

of the portfotio for separate financiaI instruments, periods for changing interest rates, foreign

exchange position, timits of losses and regutar monitoring of compliance therewith the resutts of

which ire considered and approved by the Management Board'

lnterest rate risk
The interest rate risk is a risk of change of the fair vatue or future cash ftows on a financial

instrument due to change of the market interest rates. The Bank is exposed to inftuence of

ftuctuations of prevaiting market interest rates on its financiat position and cash flows. Such

ftuctuations may increas; the tevet of interest margin, however it may atso reduce the same or,
jn case of unexpected change of interest rates, result in losses. The interest rate risk is primarity

managed through monitoring of change of the interest rates'

(i)
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

27 Risk management, continued

(b) Market risk, continued

(ii) Average interest rates

The table betow represents the average interest rates on interest assets and tiabitities as at 31

December 2017 and 31 December 2016. These interest rates represent approximate yietd to
maturity of respective assets and tiabilities.

31 December 2017
Average interest rate, %

31 December 2016
Average interest rate, %

Tenge US dollar Tenge US dollar
lnterest assets
Cash and cash equivalents
FinanciaI instruments measured at fair
vatue the changes in which are booked
as parts of profit or loss for the period
Financia[ assets avaitable for sate
Credits and advances granted/paid to
banks and other financiaI institutions
- Credits
- Term deposits
- Reverse REPO transactions
Credits granted to customers
lnterest tiabilities
Accounts and deposits of banks and
other financiaI institutions
- Credits
- term deposits
Current accounts and deposits of
customers
- Current accounts
- Term deposits

9.25

9.7
8.3

12.00
9.00

17.93
14.94 11.66

12.00
19.0

15.87

4.0;

12.57

2.69

't1.38 0.42

9.32 7.25

8.19
3 1.5

8.82
3.31

2 4.7
9.75 2.47 n3; 4.2;

(iii) Analysis of sensitivity to change of interest rates

Management of interest rate risk based on anatysis of the daters of interest rate revision is
supptemented with monitoring of sensitivity of the financiaI assets and [iabitities.

Anatysis of sensitivity of profit or loss and capital (tess taxes) to change of interest rates (risk of
interest rates revision) prepared on the basis of simptified scenarjo of 100 basis points paraltel
shift in the yietd curye toward increase or decrease in interest rates and revised positions on
interest assets and tiabitities prevailing as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 20'16 may be
presented as fottows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

100 basis point symmetrical fatl of interest rates
100 basis point symmetricaI rise of interest rates

100 basis point symmetrical fa[[ of rates
100 basis point symmetricaI rise of rates

124,ggg
(124,988)

(775,965)
725,965

Anatysis of sensitivity of profit or loss and capitaI to changes in the fair vatue of financiaI assets
avaitabte for sate due to changes in interest rates (prepared on the basis of positions prevaiting
as at 31 December 2017 and 3'l December 7016 and simptifiecl scenario of 100 basis point
paratte[ shift in the yietd curves towards increase or decrease in interest rates) may be
presented as fottows:

31 December 2017 31 December 7016
Profit or loss Capital Profit or loss Capital

thousand thousand thousand thousand
tenge tenge tenge
27,633

(23,8 ji8)
- 24,9511
- (24,445)

tenge
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 3'l December 2017, thousand tenge

27 Risk management, continued

(b) Market risk, continued

(iv) Foreign exchange risk

The Bank has assets and liabitities denominated in several foreign ,:urrencies.

Foreign exchange risk is a risk of change of fair vatue or future cash ftows on a financial
instrument due to change of foreign exchange rates. The Bank does not hedge its exposure to
foreign exch.ange risk.

As at 31 December 2017, the structure of the financiaI assets and tiabitities broken down by
currencies may be presented as fottows:

- OtherEuro TOTALcurrencles
thousand thousand thousand

tenge tenge tenge
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivatents
FinanciaI instruments measured at fair
vatue the changes in which are booked
as parts of profit or loss for the period
FinanciaI assets available for sale
Credits and advances granted/paid to
banks and other financiaI institutions
Credits granted to customers
Other financiaI assets
Other assets
TotaI assets
LIABILITIES
Accounts and deposits of banks and
other financiaI institutions
Current accounts and deposits of
customers
REPO transactions
Other financiat tiabitities
Other [iabitities
Totat liabilities
Net item
Effect of derivative instruments
Net item subject to effect of
derivative instru ments

789,635 20,631 ,311

3,343,002

3,774,470 678,173 - 3,952,643

682,709 157,472,347

US dollar

thousand
tenge

12,555,140 7,286,537

3,343,002

55,061,270 41 ,8i80 1 ,759,345 56,362,445

1,310,754 165,944 207 ,589 1,684,287
75,494,586 8,122,533 2,256,569 85,873,688

148,575,599 8,214,Ct39

14,302 634,ti05 1,542 650,649
254,939 142,2-57 27,560 419,756

148,844,840 8,991,101 706,811 158,542,752
(73,350,254) (868,568) 1,549,758 (72,669,0641

73,943,425 73,943,425

593,171 (868,568) 1,549,758 1,274,361
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27 Risk management, continued

(b) Market risk, continued

(iv) Foreign exchange risk

As at 31 Decembe 2016, the structure of the financial assets and tiabitities broken down by

currencies may be presented as fottows:

US dottar Euro 9ffi"1currencies Total
thousand thousand thousand thousand

tenge tenge tenge tenge

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivatents
FinanciaI assets avaitabte for sale
Credits and advances granted/paid to
banks and other financia[ institutions
Credits granted to customers
Other financiaI assets
TotaI assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts and deposits of banks and
other financiaI institutions 1,341 ,612 977,400 2,319,012

103,070,799 776,644 174,512 104,021,455
1,254,309 1,754,309

4,037,697 4,037,697
53,472,067 661 ,439 1 ,008,1 38 55,141 ,644

467,834 3,611 196,!!2

-1A,297,206 
1,441,694 1,182,650 164,921,550

Current accounts and dePosits of
customers 160,404,281 1,775,062 187,877 162,367,220

Other financiat tiabitities
Total liabilities
Net item

Anatysis of sensitivity of profit or loss and capitaI to change of foreign exchange rates based on

posiiions prevaiting as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December2016 and simptified scenario of 10%

change of foreign exchange rates of US dottar and Euro to tenge nray be presented as fottows:
31 December 2017 31 December 2016

thousand tenge thousand tenge-
94,907

(73,727)
(138,971)

34,743

20% increase in US dottar to tenge rate
5% decrease in US dottar to tenge rate
20% increase in Euro to tenge rate
5% decrease in Euro to tenge rate

85,613
(21,4031
(57,579)
14,395

(v)

(c)

Other price risks

Other price risks are risks of ftuctuations in fair vatue or future cash ftows on a financial

instrument as the resutt of changes in market prices (except r:hanges resutted from effect of

interest rate risk or foreign exchinge risk) irrespective of whether such changes are caused by

the factors inherent in that particular instrument or issuer thereof or the factors affecting atl

simitar pubticty traded financiaI instruments. The other price risks arise, when the Bank has a

long or short position on a financial instrument.

Credit risk

Credit risk is a risk of financiat losses resulted from defautt in obtigations of a borrower or

counterparty of the Bank. The Bank manages credit risk (on recognized financial assets and

unrecognized contractuat tiabitities) through apptying approved policies and procedures inctuding

the req-uirements for fixing and comptying with the timits of cotrcentration of the credit risk, as

wetl as through formation of the Credit Committee the funrctions of which inctude active

monitoring oflfre credit risk. The credit poticy is considered and approved by the Board of

Di rectors.

The credit poticy determines:
- the procedures for consideration and approval of credit apptications;
- (corporate and retait) borrower creditworthiness evatuation rnethods;

- Proposed security evatuation methods;
- requirements for credit documentation;
- procedures for continuous monitoring of credits and other cr,edit risk bearing products'
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 3'l December 2017, thousand tenge

Risk management, continued

Credit risk, continued

Apptication form corporate customers to obtain credits shatl be made up by respective customer

managers and then detivered for consideration to the Credit Product Department, which shatl be

tiabte for portfotio of credits granted to tegal entities. Reports of anatysts of that department are

based on structuraI analysis of business and financiaI position of a borrower. Then the

apptications and expert conclusions shatt be subject to independr:nt examination in the Security

Department, Legal Department, Ptedge Expertise and Monitoring Office, Risk Department, which

shatl present their conctusions; moreover, proper comptiance with the requirements of the

effectlve tegistation and internal regutatory documents of the Barrk shat[ be checked. The Credit

Committee thatt consider an application for a credit on the brasis of anatysis of conctusions

presented by the Security Department, LegaI Department, and Risk Department' After

consideration the Credit Committee shatt make a decision to grant or not to grant a credit.
Before the Credit Committee approves particular transactions thery shatl be checked by the Legat

Department, Tax Department and Accounting Department depend'ing on risk specific nature.

The Bank continuousty monitors status of particutar credits and regutarty revatuate solvency of its

borrowers. Revatuation procedures are based on anatysis of the financial statements of a

borrower as at the last reporting date or the other information submitted by a borrower itsetf or

obtained by the Bank in another way. The current market vatur: of a security is atso regularty

assessed Oy tfre independent firms of professional appraisers or in-house speciatists. ln case the

market vatue of security decreases, a borrower is usuatty requirecl to provide cottaterat.

Besides anatysis of individual borrowers, the Risk Department evaluates credit portfotio in

general with respect to concentration of credits and market risks.

As a rule, the maximaI tevet of the credit risk is presented in book vatue of financiaI assets in the

statement of financial position and in amount of unrecognized contractuat tiabitities' A possibitity

to set off assets and tiabitities js not substantiatty significant fcr reduction of potentia[ credit

risk.

The maximat [evet of the credit risk with respect to the financiaI assets as at the reporting date

may be presented as fottows:

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

ASSETS

Cash equivalents
FinanciaI instruments measured at fair vatue the changes in

which are booked as parts of profit or loss for the period

FinanciaI assets avaitabte for sate

Credits and advances granted/paid to banks and other
financiaI i nstitutions
Credits granted to customers
Other financiaI assets
Total maximal risk level

thousand tenge thousand tenge

57,872,879 134,660,548

518,342
476,790

527,738

2,707,494

6,611,745
169,889,325 ',l81,668,650

_ 28,857,937 8,750,335

: 258,092,961 334,39

A cottateraI usuaIty is not provided with respect to the right of ctaim on the credits and advances

granted/paid to banks, with the exception of cases, where secunities are obtained under reverse

REPO transactions and transactions retating to securities borrowing.

Anatysis of cottaterat hetd on credits granted to customers and concentration of the credit risk on

credits granted to customers is given in Note 17.

Offset of financial assets and financial liabilities

Disctosures of information presented in the tabtes betow inctude the information about financial

assets and financiaI tiabitities, which:
. are set off in the statement of financial position of the Bank or

. are the subject of tegatty vatid master netting agreement or simitar agreements, which

extend to simitar financiat instruments, irrespective of urhether they are set off in the

statement of financial position. 
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decernber 2017, thousand tenge

Risk management, continued

Credit risk, continued

Offset of financial assets and financial liabitities, continued

The Bank receives and accepts cotlateral in the form of cash and securities traded in the market

with respect to the fottowing transactions:

o REPO transactions, reverse REPO transactions; and

o credits granted to customers, securities borrowing and lending agreements.

The securities received as cottaterat/detivered as ptedge on REPO and reverse REPO transactions

may be detivered as ptedge during the period of a transaction, b,ut they must be returned until
malurity date of a transaction. The securities delivered as ptedge under securities borrowing and

lending agreements may not be detivered as ptedge or sotd during a period of a transaction and

must be ieturned untit maturity date of a transaction. Conditions of a transaction atso entitte

every counterparty to terminate respective transactions as the rr:sutt of counterparty's inabitity
to provide cottaterat.

The tabte below presents the financiaI assets, which are subject to tegatty vatid master netting

agreements and similar agreements as at 31 December 2017.

Types of
financial
assets/

financial
liabilities

Full amounts Full Net amount
of recognized amounts of of financial

financial recognized assets in the
assets/ financiaI statement of
financial liabilities, financial
liabilities which were Position

set off in
the

statement
of financial

169,189,325 - 169,189,325

Amounts, which were not Net amount
set off in the statement of

financial position

instruments cash securitY

- (5,642,183) 164,547 ,147

Position

transactions
Credits
granted to
customers
Total financial
assets
Current
accounts and
deposits of
customers
Total financial
tiabitities

188,411,691 - 188,411 (19,222,3661 ( 183) 1 64,547,1

- 5,642,183

(5,642,183) - (5,642,183)
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Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 Decernber 2017, thousand tenge

Risk management, continued

Credit risk, continued

Offset of financiaI assets and financial liabilities, continued

The tabte betow presents the financiaI assets, which are subject of tegatty vatid master netting

agreements and simitar agreements as at 31 December 2016.

Fult
amounts of
recognized
financial
liabilities,

Ful[ amounts which Net amount
Types of of recognized were set of financial
financial financial off in the assets in the
assets/ assets/ statement statement of
financial financial of financial financial Financial Received cash

liabi lities liabilities position position instrumr:nts security
132)

transactions
credits 181 ,668,650 1 81 ,668,650 (76,165,1971 1 55,503,453

granted to
customers
Total financiat llZT 120,165,197\ 155,503,453

assets
Current
accounts and
deposits of
customers
Totalfinanciat (26,165,1971 - (26,165,197) - 26,165,197

tiabitities

Amounts, which were not
set off in the statement of

fina,nciaI position Net amount

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is a risk that the Bank may face difficutties in raising funds to futfit its obtigations.

ffre 5qlidity risk arises in case of assets and tiabitities maturity mismatching' Assets and

tjabitities miturity and interest rate matching and/or controtterl mismatching is a fundamental

moment in tiquidity risk management. Due to variety of transactions settted and retated

uncertainty, futt asiets and tiabitities maturity matching is not usual practice for the financiaI

institutioni that enabtes to increase cost effectiveness of transactions, but increases the risk of

Iosses.

The Bank keeps necessary leveI of tiquidity in order to ensure continuous avaitabitity of funds

required to discharge att tiabitities as far as their maturity datel; fatt. The tiquidity management

poticy is considered and approved by the Board of Directors.

The Bank tries to activety maintain diversified and stabte structure of financing sources consisting

of long-term and short-term credits of other banks, deposits of principat corporate customers and

naturJt persons, as wetl as diversjfied portfotio of highty tiquid assets in order to enable the Bank

to promptty respond unforeseen requirements with respect to tiquidity without any sharp

ftuctuations.

The tiquidity management poticy consists of:
- cash ftow forecasting broken down by basic currencies and catcutation of necessary [eve[ of

liquid assets retated with those cash ftows;
- maintenance of diversified structure of financing sources;
- management of concentration and structure of borrowed funcls;
- devetopment of the ptans for raising funds at the expense of tlorrowed funds;
- maintenance of the portfotio of highty liquid assets, which may be freety disposed of as a

protective measure in case of cash tiquidity gap;
- devetopment of reserve ptans for keeping tiquidity and pre-set financing levet;
- controi of conformance of the tiquidity ratios to statutority prescribed rates.
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017 , thousand tenge

27 Risk management, continued

(d) Liquidity risk, continued

The Treasury Department obtains from the subdivisions the information about the structure of

tiquidity of their financial assets and tiabjtities and forecastingl of cash ftows expected from

businesi ptanned in the future. Then the Treasury Department forms respective portfotio of

short-term tiquid assets consisting substantiatty of short-term liquid securities hetd for trade,

credits and advances granted/paid to banks, and other interbarrk products in order to ensure

required [eve[ of tiquidity for the Bank in generat.

The Treasury Department daity monitors tiquidity positions and regutarty carries out stress tests

subject to various scenarios of the market condition both urrder normaI and unfavourabte

conditions. Under normal market conditions the reports on liquiclity status are submitted to the

top management on a weekty basis. Decisions regarding the tiquidity management poticy shatl be

made by the CALM and executed by the Treasury Department'

55



sJxesnslsll 3

t lu e Ia elrll

5l*.-E*-l$ll'llllt|l
,lo--o-l-ll
onl6 o. - o \tlSll
C|lJ1 -.. oo 6looll
slhsBf:ldll
!l\-o^@^ loll
Els*ER lslldl lNll.cllllul I lllllttlil

:E :YX o
E.i N
-c Lp(JOJ

Cc -Oq)Lc
Fa h
=_C 

Hlu u
:€ o
C>
16> a,)
soJdU

C
-Yd
L!ro!cooF\
0., U ;:
-Rrv;'" (5N

->
!- 0r O(JIJ!A
E .9.= E
9'c 9I.-6rv

6s.E3u-v

3 e 6;
-l!CFo]dbq
,-_'6.Y q
- aJ

=Jtsso3-ov!o
-!COJ.=ro
3 9o
c, Uq)*'al
,:. P- a
Flb U

c'=i--e u q.)*'o E
9l Er
El - C'r*'.: E
!: O rll
,-.urqla u

[]o;ET)tr=
o9f
+r,! U

\J
ftl 

-o tv
+tAP
vrLC
-c; GJ OJ
I:PL
(JCL
r.J'- f(U! U
\1 0-')-
s-icou,o
UUP.-= rE,,G
l)nrO:l<o_()-.i 0Jo yl!
"- oJ -c!q'9
+tio
e---c
!]UHhpo.r
+JCA
!9a;
.l2al
on_o 

=19od
<ulE
l=Ho
.- Q q.)
r_ (U _C.'li u P-:i>
lue E
r:-ro
19oJv
IJo>.:= (UiJ
:-/ u'-tJ=
tl P )
';<qP'-oro
]=EE

@s
o\

N
o\
q,{
o\

N
o\
c,$
o\

0)
E
o

=U
o
P 69(UU
oJ=v_o

-(6a=
-L6.5 p

5€uaE
ua9.Uv0 A'== y
'- Yo-a h
u ;.9 .s u.'

v.rL-!F

EEPgEc -E O O.EUOF\J

rfl€o
\o
\0

CA
CA
G'

ro
\o
o\

\o

@

\o
.o^
LNs
N

tnt!o
[n

naN,
Lrr.st-."1\
NLr)
F\F
@N
Fi c.i
FS

S\O€s'aq
-tnSNrN
c.i Jrn

O\oO ,

\OO
\o ta)

dodo.O
NO

d
N

ra
N
ro

$
lrl
@

\o
\0

@
o\
\o
+
@q

sln
aa

N
L.)a
N
oo
La)

Lr)
o\
N

na
tr}
\o
oo
+

s
N
.-ios
Fis

so
o.
.d
N

od
N

s
arl

!:o
an
d
N

N
\oa
@

N
od

N
o\
Fjs
Ll.)

od
La)

orn
Lr)

\o
oO

\o

L(1o
o\
Gio
rn
oi

so
c.i
N
rn
.-i

s
@
.fo
6
o

o
\
aa

s

O
@
oO

Gistn
Fi

o
o.
oa
o\
o^

orn
Lr)

d
oO

d

L(1o
o\
Gio
rn
o.

so
c.i
N
rn
..i

s€
+
C€
C

c
Ir

s

cd
d
C\
!t
c\

L
qJ

-c.
o
!
C
(o

tac
ao

Eo

o;
o-.;ol
!j
!icr
(o.1

=ro'(Ji

<ii

0,
f
(E

-:<o
oo

o
3
-9
E
.E

o

-c
co
E
N

I
\o

-c.
Pco
E
\o

I
arrl

E+,c
o
E
fn

I

cEU
E5pE
|Ec,cb9
ctAo6

o
..!J

-o
c,

=I'g
gE
u.l
Eo

=ouZ

Pc
(.,

E
OJ
L
v
oL
IE
P
oF

co
E
P
o
L
o

=

u
3o
o

rO

!oI
C
q)

OJ

o-
CJ
-o
(o

E

0)

-o(o

(o

U
C
r!
C

L
o

rO
C
(o

lP
(U

E
OJ

rO

o
N
L
OJ

-o
E
0.,
U
OJo
aa
p
(o

so
o

N
ra

$o

\o

\o(n
r..t

(Yt

o
co
o\

lrl

rt
\o

14

i'o
C

C a9L
LO
OJF
+o
=9(Ja
E:
C(o!

U
lq

6o(Zl(u.)Oql- o- P.9E _e- 
=p,^vo

=P ! .!
Ao L
dO(!,^e.Fo qC E$,e€ EEaUEe .1 p X UEE u.98=-IgPr-

:i;EEEETEoJIEa=-1-c
6VJ-.^\^- l o.= YlJ o (! !
EsVZ=ftf88iz.<.=udoFU

o
@
N
d
o.
N

@\o
o.
N

N
N
dv
o^

aa
rn

od

L.l
o.[n
o
o\

N
@

^1ln
No

O.Lr.)@ssLn
@@\O
FidJo-$Oco\o
d$N\O

N

(,,

;
-vo
oo

=o

-c.
G
U

o

\o
o.\o
s
@q

OF.a
@(\^^
.OLnN
ri .: ^irnv+
FU\O

+Fj
NN

N

o.

d
N

N\oo
tir\
rn

\
Ns\o

s3s=^
__: s
38

ô.
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notestothefinanciatstatementsfortheperiodendedon3l December2017, thousandtenge

Capital management

The Bank is activety controlting the capitat adequacy ratio in order to protect from risks inherent in

its activities. The Bank's capitat adequacy is controtted using, besides other methods, the ratios

fixed by the RK NB when supervising the activity of the Bank.

As at 31 December 20'17 and 31 December 2016, the Bank futty comptied with atl external

requirements with respect to capitat as prescribed by the legistation. The main purpose of the

capitat management for the Bank consists in ensuring compliance by the Bank of externaI

requirementr witf, respect to capitat and maintenance of high credit rating and capitaI adequacy

ratios required to carry out activity and to maximize sharehotder vatue. The Bank manages the

structure of its capitai and adjusts the same in terms of changes in economic conditions and

characteristics of risk of the types of activity carried out. Tl^re RK NB prescribes and controts

comptiance with the requirements to capitat tevet of the Bank. ln accordance with the requirements

in force as prescribed by the RK NB, the banks must maintain:

. ratio of equity to assets and contingent tiabitities weiqhted by a degree of credit risk,

assets, contingent ctaims and tiabitities calcutated subject to market risk and quantitative

operating teverage (k1 );

. ratio of 1 tier capital less investments to assets and contingent tiabitities weighted by a
degree of credit risk, assets, contingent ctaims and tiabitities catcutated subject to market

risk and quantitative operating leverage (k1.2);

. ratio of equity capita[ to assets and contingent tiabititirts weighted by a degree of credit

risk, assets, contingent ctaims and tiabitities catcutated subject to market risk and

quantitative operating leverage (k2).

The equity capitaI is catcutated as an amount of the first tier capitaI and the second tier capita[ [ess

the fottowing positive differences:

1 ) between amount of deposits of naturaI persons and equity capitaI according to details from the

batance sheet multiPtied bY 5.5;
2) between the provisions catcutated in accordance with the Guidetines for forming provisions for

impairment of aisets of the Bank in the form of loans and accounts receivabte and the provisions

foimed and booked in the accounting records of the Bank in accordance with the IFRS and the

requirements of the tegistation of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan c,oncerning business accounting and

financia[ reporting (hereinafter - the positive difference). For the purposes of catcutation of the

equity capital stated in paragraph 2), the positive difference is calcutated by the banks and included

in the fottowing amounts:
from 25 September 2017 - 5 (five) percent;
from December 2017 - 16.67 (sixteen point sixty-seven) percent;

from 1 september 2018 - 33.33 (thirty-three point thirty-three) percent;

from 1 September 7019 - 49.99 (forty-nine point ninety-nine) perr:ent;

from 1 September 2020 - 66.67 (sixty-six point sixty-seven) percent;

from 1 september 2021 - 83.33 (eighty-three point thirty-three) percent;

from 1 September 2072 - 0 (zero) percent.
The positive difference adjusted based on the resutts of inspection by the authorized body shatt be

inctuded into catcutation oi equity capitat as from the reporting date foltowing a reporting month'
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017 , thousand tenge

Capital management, continued
The tabte below contains anatysis of capital of the Bank caLcutated in accordance with the
requirements of the RK NB as at 31 December 2017 and 31 Decembrer 2016:

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

thousand tenge thousand tenge
1 tier capital
Capital stock:
Share capitaI
Regutatory additionaI paid capital
Provisions for covering general banking risk
Deferred tax tiabitity attributed to fixed asset revatuation
Regutatory retained profit - previous year
Regutatory retained profit - reporting period
Provision for revaluation of financial assets availabte for sate
Provision for fixed asset revatuation
Regu latory adj ustments:
Own purchased ordinary shares
Regutatory intangibte assets
Total 1 tier capital

2 tier capital
Subordinated debt
Total 2 tier capital
TotaI capital

Positive difference between amount of deposits of natural
persons and equity capital according to details of the
balance sheet multiptied by 5.5 deductible from equity
capital
Positive difference between provisions calculated in
accordance with the Guidelines for forming provisions for
impairment of assets of the Bank in the form of loans and
accounts receivable on previously granted bank loans and
provisions formed and booked in the accounting records of
the Bank in accordance with the lnternational Financial
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the legislation
of the Republic of Kazakhstan concerning business
accounting and financial reporting
Risk-weighted assets
Credit risk weighted assets
Credit risk weighted contingent tiabitities
Credit risk weighted derivative financiaI instruments
Assets and contingent ctaims and tiabitities catcutated subject
to market risk
OperationaI risk
Total risk-weighted assets, contingent claims and liabilities,
operational risk

Ratio k1

Ratio k1-2
Ratio k2

42,085,468
(112,895)

957,976

2,492,436

1 00,800
5,193,792

78,027,337
(14,083 )

957,976

1,456,742
865,015

99,999
294,177

qo,gog,ogl 30,532,71;

2,822,267

310,952,749 246,158,926
40,108,745 36,779,066

401,384

17,411,663 1,135,807
3,306,948 3,327,422

372,181,489 221287

o.126 0.1 06
o.126 0.1 06

0.1 06

1,154,451

0.1 19
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge
Contingent credit tiabilities

The Bank has contingent tiabitities on provision of credit re:;ources. These contingent credit
tiabitities provide for issue of credit resources in the form of approved credit, [imits on credit cards,
as we[[ as overdraft. The Bank issues bank guarantees and opens letters of credit for the purposes of
provision of futfilment of obtigations of its customers to third persons. The mentioned agreements
record the [imits of tiabitities and, as a rute, are valid for up to five years. When providing financiaI
guarantees, credit contingent tiabitities and letters of credit, the Bank appties the same risk
management poticy and procedures as when granting credits to cu:;tomers.

Contractual amounts of contingent credit liabitities are presented in the tabte below broken down
by categories. Amounts presented in the table as regards guaranti3es and letters of credit represent
maximal amount of accounting [oss, which woutd be booked as at the reporting date in case the
counterparties coutd not futfiI their obligations in accordance r,vith the terms and conditions of
contracts.

31 Decernber 2017 31 December 2016
thou:;and tenge thousand tenge

3,115,449 1,949,921Liabitities on granting credits and credit facitities
Guarantees

30

34,302,542 35,947,375
37.417.991 37,896,246

Many of the stated contingent credit tiabitities may be terminated without partiaI or fu[[ discharge
thereof. Due to this, the contingent credit tiabitities mentioned above do not represent expected
cash outftow.

Guarantees are secured with reaI estate, cash deposits, guaranl-ees of naturaI persons and other
cottaterat.

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank had two counterparties (31 December 2016: five) of which the
share of guarantees and liabilities on granting credits exceeds 10% of capitat. As at 31 December
2017, the totaI batances on guarantees and tiabitities on grienting credits of the mentioned
customers amounted lo 12,466,027 thousand tenge (31 December 7016:21,332,559 thousand tenge).

When assuming unrecognized contingent tiabitities, the Bank uses the same credit control and
management policies as when assuming the tiabitities on recognize,d transactions.

Operating lease

As at 31 December 2017 and 3'l December 2016, the Bank had not significant accounts payable under
non-canceltable operating lease contracts.

During twetve months of the year 2017, the expense in the amount of 869,472 thousand tenge was
recognized as part of profit or loss with respect to operating leilse contracts (31 December 2016:
821,977 thousand tenge).

Contingent liabi tities

lnsurance

The market of insurance services in the Repubtic of Kazakhstan is at the stage of devetopment,
therefore many forms of insurance coverage appticabte in other countries are stit[ unavaitabte in the
Repubtic of Kazakhstan. The Bank did not futty insure the buitdings and equipment, temporary
suspension of activity or tiabitity of third persons as regards property or environmentaI damage
incurred as the resutt of use of the Bank's property or in other cases retating to activity of the Bank.
UntiI the Bank sufficientty incurs its activities, there is a risk that incurred losses or forfeiture of
particutar assets may have material adverse effect on activity and financial position of the Bank.

Pending legal proceedings

ln the course of its normaI activity in the market the Bank faces clifferent types of legaI claims. The
management believes that the definitive value of tiabitities resutting from [ega[ proceedings wit[ not
have materia[ adverse effect on financiaI position or further activity of the Bank.

31

(a)

(b)
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 3'1 December 2017 , thousand tenge
Contingent liabilities, continued

On 07 February 2017, the Bank received ctaims from "Orda t3lass LTD" LLP for futfitment of
obtigations on the bank guarantees issued to "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP. Under decision of the
Speciatized lnter-district Economic Court of Kyzytorda oblast clated 09.06 .2017, the amount of
4,445,648 thousand tenge was recovered from the Bank under the above-mentioned bank guarantees
due to improper futfilment of obtigations by "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP to "Orda Gtass LTD" LLP.

The amounts of 1.244,508 thousand tenge and 933.526 thousand tenge inctuded into the amount of
recovery under decisions of the SIDEC dated 09.06.7017 were ther amounts guaranteed by the Bank
as refundabte advance payment. As it appears from the materials available today, the amounts of
advance payment of "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP were workerj off that was confirmed by the
resutts of examination and copies of the reports on works performed. Thus, actuatty stated bank
advance payment refund guarantees as of the day on which "Orda Gtass LTD" LLP fited the
statement of ctaim were terminated and not subject to execution.

ln accordance with conclusion of examination No.'1523 dated 30.03.2017 carried out within the
scope of the criminal case of "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP for the period from 0'l .03.2015 to
10.01.2017, the works were performed and services were rendere,d for "Orda Gtass LTD" LLP to the
total amount of 3.901,487 thousand tenge. Thus, on the basis of the newly revealed facts it was
ascertained that "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP actuatty rendered the services under issued advance
payment refund guarantees whereof signed reports on works performed and conclusion of
examination No.1523 dated 30.03.2017 evidence. ln addition, "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP sent for
signing to "Orda Glass LTD" LLP the reports on works performed to the amount of 317,562 thousand
tenge. lt foltows from the premises that as per information avaitabte as at the current date,
"Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP performed works to the total cost amounting lo 4,219,049 thousand
tenge.

At the present moment the Bank is preparing a suit for recovery from "Orda Glass LTD" LLP of the
unjustified beneficiation in the amount of 2,178,035 thousand tenge under the decision of the SIDEC

of Kyzytorda oblast dated 09.06.2017, in proportion to reduction of the fine amounting to 2'17,803
thousand tenge and the state duty amounting to 71,875 thousand tenge. The total ctaims made by
the Bank wittamount 1o2,685,517 thousand tenge.

The Bank's management evatuates affirmative court decision on satisfaction of the suit as very
probabte. The main argument of the Bank is that the amounts of advances for which the Bank
guaranteed refund in case of improper fulfitment of obtigations have been worked off and accepted
by "Orda Gtass Ltd" LLP.

The batance of outstanding amount of 1,760,131 thousand tenge witt be repaid by
"Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP in the frame of apptied rehabilitation procedure in accordance with
the rehabilitation ptan to be approved by the Committee of Creditors or, in case the rehabilitation
procedure is cancelled, at the expense of ptedged property.

Under issued guarantees the Bank accepted cottateral from "Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP to the
tota[ amount of 5,177,945 thousand tenge.

As at 31 December 2017, the other assets inctuded the accounts receivabte from
"Shymkentkhimmontazh" LLP in the amount of 4,577 ,164 thousand tenge consisting of the amounts
of advance payment refund guarantees and the debt on past due fees (Note 19).

Contingent tax liabilities

The tax system of Kazakhstan, which is retativety new, is characl-erized by frequent changes in the
Iegislative rutes, officiaI interpretations and judiciaI decisions, which are often inexpticit and
contradictory that admits ambiguous interpretation thereof by clifferent tax authorities, inctuding
opinions regarding procedure for accounting for incomes, expenses, and other items of the financial
statements in accordance with the IFRS. The regulatory authorillies of different levets entitted to
impose large penatties and to charge interests are in charge of audits and investigations with
respect to accuracy of tax assessment. Accuracy of tax assessment during the reporting period may
be checked during subsequent five catendar years, however under particutar circumstances that

(c)
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

period may be extended. Recent events occurred in the Repubtir: of Kazakhstan evidence that the

tax authorities hotd more rigid position when interpreting and apptying the tax [aws'
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge
31 Contingentliabilities,continued

(c) Contingent tax liabilities, continued

These circumstances may have the result that the tax risks in Ka;zakhstan witt be much higher than
in other countries. Based on its understanding of the appticabte tax laws, regutatory requirements
and judiciat decisions, the Bank's management betieves that the tax tiabitities are booked in futt.
Neverthetess, interpretation of those provisions by respective authorities may differ and, in case
they may prove lawfulness of their position that may significantty iaffect these financiaI statements.

32 Related party transactions

(a) Control

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank was under control of Mr. O.T. Iokhtarov (3'1 December 2016: Mr.
O.T. Tokhtarov), who sotety owns 52.39% shares in the Bank (see Note 1) (31 December 2016: he
owned 61.07% shares in the Bank).

(b) Transactions with the members of the Board of Directors and the Management Board

The totaI fees inctuded into the item "Costs for personnet" for the periods ended on 31 December
2017 , 2016 may be presented as follows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Members of the Board of Directors and the Management
Board of the Bank 201,740 148,926

201,740 148,926

The mentioned amounts include monetary and non-monetary fees to the members of the
Management Board and the Board of Directors.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the balances on l-he accounts and average fee rates
on transactions with the members of the Management Board and the Board of Directors amounted
to:

3'l December 2017 Average fee 31 December 2016 Average fee
thousand tenge rate thousand tenge rate

Statement of financial position
Credits granted to customers
Current accounts and deposits
of customers

42,002 14-23y" 48,212 14.20%

391,726 7,07%

The amounts inctuded as parts of profit or loss on transactions with the members of the Management
Board and the members of the Board of Directors as at 31 December 2017 may be presented as

fottows:

31 December 2017 31 December 2016
thousand tenge thousand tenge

Profit or loss
lnterest income
lnterest expense 17 ,017

538,1 66 9.80%

4,117 6,873
1 0,366
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(b)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

Related party transactions, continued

Transactions with the members of the Board of Directors and the Management Board, continued

As at 31 December 2017, the batances on settlement of payment:; and average fee rates, as wetl as

respective profit or loss on transactions with the other retated parties for twelve months ended on
3'l December 7017 amounted to:

Shareholders
Other companies under
control of shareholders Total

thousand Average thousand Average thousand
tenge fee rate, % tengr: fee rate, % tenge

Statement of financial
position
LIABILITIES
Current accounts and
deposits of customers
- Term deposits

- tenge
- US dottar
- Euro

- Current accounts and
deposits on demand

- tenge
- US dottar
- Euro
- Pound
- Roubte

Current accounts and
deposits of financial
institutions
- tenge
Profit or loss
lnterest expenses (e3s) (4,2:i8)

8,293
88
29

'l ,333
74
15

3

1

13.73%
1.75%

1.5%

51 ,446
26,331
4,813

10,525
7,598

7
1

1

13.6%
2.33%

2%

59,739
26,419
4,842

1 1 ,858
7,622

72
4
z

(5,173;
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

As at 31 December 20'16, the batances on settlement of payments; and average fee rates, as wetl as
respective profit or loss on transactions with the other related parties for the year ended on 3'l
December 2016 amounted to:

Shareholders
Other companies under
control of shareholders Total

thousand
tenge

Average thousand Average thousand
fee rate, % tenge fee rate, % tenge

Statement of financial
position
LIABILITIES
Current accounts and
deposits of customers
- Term deposits

- tenge
- US dottar
- Euro

- Current accounts and
deposits on demand

- tenge
- US dottar
- Euro
- Pound
- Rouble

Profit or loss
lnterest expenses

353,322
400

24

14,647
154
218

1,001
1

(47 ,103)

3 53,322
400

24

17,835
154
218

'1,001

1

(47,103)

14.0%
2.0%
1.5%

3,1[]8
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(a)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017 , thousand tenge

Financial assets and tiabitities: fair value and accounting classifications, continued

Accounting classifications and fair value, continued

Measurement of fair vatue is aimed at determination of a price, which would result upon sate of
an asset or paid upon delivery of a tiabitity under condition:; of a transaction settted in

organized market between the market participants as at the date of measurement.

Neverthetess, considering uncertainty and use of subjective judge'ments the fair value must not

be interpreted as reatizabte in the context of immediate sate of a:;sets or delivery of tiabitities.

Fair value of financial assets and financiat tiabitities traded in active market is based on market
quotations or deater prices. The Bank assesses fair vatue of atI other financiaI instruments of

the Bank using the other vatuation methods.

The purpose of the valuation methods is to achieve a fair vatue measurement method

representing a price at which a transaction made in organized market woutd be settted to setl

an asset or to detiver a tiabitity between the market participants ils at a measurement date.

The Bank uses widety recognized vatuation models to assess fainratue of financial instruments.
The valuation methods inctude the modets of vatuation of current net present vatue and cash

ftows discounting, comparison with simitar instruments with respect to which the market
quotation are known. The vatuation methods are aimed at assessrnent of fair vatue representing

vatue of a financiaI instrument as at the reporting date, which would be assessed by

independent market participants.

Fair value measurement hierarchY

The Bank measures fair vatue using the fottowing fair vatue measurement hierarchy considering

materiatity of data used when making the mentioned measurements.

o Level 1: quotations in active market (unadjusted) with respect to identical financial

instruments.

. Level 2: data other than quotations retating to Level 1, which is avaitable directty (id
est quotations) or indirectty (id est data derivative from quotations). This category

inctudes instruments measured using: market quotation:; in active markets for simitar
instruments, market quotations for simitar instruments in the markets not considered as

active or other vatuation methods atl used data of which are directty or indirectty based

on observable inPut data.

o Level 3: data, which is not availabte. This category inctucles instruments measured using

the information not based on observabte input data, with the assumption that such non-

observable data have materiaI effect on instrument measurement. This category
inctudes instruments measured on the basis of quotations for simitar instruments with
respect to which it is required to use material non-obsenrabte quotations or judgements

to book a difference between instruments.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Bank measured fair vatue of assets

avaitabte for sate and financiaI instruments measured at fair vatue the changes in which are

booked as parts of profit or loss for the period by using the vatuation methods based on

observabte input data (Levet 2)'

(b)
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(b)

"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

Financial assets and tiabilities: fair value and accounting classifications, continued

Fair value measurement hierarchy, continued

The tabte below contains analysis of fair vatue of financiaI instruments not measured at fair
vatue as at 31 December 2017, broken down by levets of fair value hierarchy.

thousand tenge
Cash and cash
equivatents
FinanciaI instruments
measured at fair vatue
the changes in which
are booked as parts of
profit or loss for the
period
FinanciaI assets
avaitabte for sale
Credits and advances
granted/paid to banks
and other financial
institutions
Credits granted to
customers
Other financiaI assets

Accounts and dePosits
of banks and other
fi nanciaI institutions
Current accounts and
deposits of customers
REPO transactions
Other financiaI
tiabitities

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Total fair Total book

value value

65,632,908 65,632,908 65,632,908

527,738 527,738

7 ,945,284

626,790

8,572,O74

527,738

169,889,375
28,857,937

264,907,9O8

7,945,784

626,790

7 ,945,284

626,794

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

20,097,849

264,810,845
641,658

7-,790,780

_28r,811,14 -_ 2e9;]!,4r0

Total fair
value

159,157,179 169,889,325
28,857 ,937 78,479,982

262,747,786 273,479,982

20,097,849 20,097,849

267,308,183 264,810,845
641,658 641,658

7,290,780
287,841,132

Total book
value

The tabte betow contains anatysis of fair vatue of financiaI insl-ruments not measured at fair
vatue as at 31 December 2016, broken down by levets of fair vatue hierarchy.

thousand tenge
Cash and cash
equivatents
Credits and advances
granted/paid to banks
and other financial
i nstitutions
Credits granted to
customers
Other financiaI assets

Accounts and deposits
of banks and other
fi nanciaI institutions
Current accounts and
deposits of customers
Subordinated bonds
Other financiaI
[iabitities

44,061,994

145,814,378
7,022,664

44,061,994

145,814,378
7,027,664

45,844,884

145,182,100

51,996,783 51,996,783 51,996,783

13,340,01 '1 1 3,340,01 1 13,340,011

107,539,086 24,083,4".J3 131,627,519 131,824,973
18,050,229

19O,926,1O9 24,083,4'.13

7,022,664

1,284,305 .. 1,284,305 1,284,305

198,183,341 - 198,183,341 199,333,953
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financial statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017, thousand tenge

34 Events after reporting date

ln the context of imptementation of the standards of IFRS 9 as at 01.02.2018 the provisions for
impairment of granted credits have been formed to the amount of about 2 200 000 thousand

tenge, as a resutt the totat provisions amounted to about 1 3 000 000 thousand tenge.

As at 01.03.2018, changes in provisions for January-February 2018 for impairment of granted

credits amounted to 1 708 329 thousand tenge, as wetl as the loans have been written off to
the total amount of 1 976 837 thousand tenge; as the resutt of the mentioned changes the total
provisions for impairment of granted credits amounted to about'10 536 679 thousand tenge'
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"Bank of Astana" JSC

Notes to the financia[ statements for the period ended on 31 December 2017 , thousand tenge

Appendix to the audited financialstatements for the period ernded on 31 December 2017

Calculation of book value of one share

*A dote of calculation is the lost doy of the period for which the :stotement of finonciol
position of share issuer is mode up.

Acting Chairman of the Management
"Bank of Astana" JSC M.S. Zhangabylov

Chief Accountant
"Bank of Astana" JSC Sh.K. Kurmanbayeva

thousand

BVcs Book vatue of one ordinary share 1 296.84

NAV Net assets for ordinary shares as at the date of calculation 46 792 071

TA Assets of share issuer in the statement of financial position of share
issuer as at the date of catcutation

339 682 1 33

A lntangibte assets in the statement of financial position of slrare issuer as

at the date of calculation
1 624 382

TL Liabitities in the statement of financiatposition of share is:;uer as at the
date of catcutation

291 265 680

P5 "Authorized capitat stock, preferred. shares" in the staternent of share
issuer as at the date of catcutation

NOcs Quantity of ordinary shares as at the date of calculation 36 081 627
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